Notice of Regular Meeting
Oceano Community Services District - Board of Directors Agenda
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 13, 2022 - 6:00 P.M.
Oceano Community Services District Board Room
1655 Front Street Oceano, CA

All items on the agenda including information items, may be deliberated. Any member of the public with an interest in one of
these items should review the background material and request information on the possible action that could be taken.

All persons desiring to speak during any Public Comment period are asked to fill out a “Board Appearance Form” to submit to the
Board Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. Each individual speaker is limited to a presentation time of THREE (3) minutes
per item. Persons wishing to speak on more than one item shall limit their remarks to a total of SIX (6) minutes. This time may
be allowed between items in one-minute increments up to three minutes. Time limits may not be yielded to or shared with other
speakers.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

FLAG SALUTE

AGENDA REVIEW

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

aRrobd-~

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters of
interest within the jurisdiction of the District that are not listed on the agenda. If a member of the public wishes to speak
at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes.

6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:
A. STAFF REPORTS:
i. Sheriffs South Station - Commander Jay Wells
ii. FCFA Operations - Chief Steve Lieberman

iii. Operations - Utility System Manager Tony Marraccino
iv. OCSD General Manager — Will Clemens

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS:

i. Vice President Villa
ii. Director Gibson
iii. President White
v. Director Austin
C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters
discussed durm? Special Presentations and Reports. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public
comment is limited to three (3) minutes.

7. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so when
recognized by the Presiding Officer. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public comment is
limited to three (3) minutes.

A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of March 23, 2022

B. Review of Cash Disbursements

C. Approval of a letter of support for the San Luis Obispo County Planning and Building Department's
recommendation to include the Oceano Community Services District's Water Tank Rehabilitation
Project for 2022 Community Development Block Grant Funds

D. Approval of an Application for Community Project Funding and Letter of Support through the Office of
Congressman Salud Carbajal for Projects in the District's Water Resource Reliability Program

April 13, 2022 - Page 1 of 79



8. BUSINESS ITEMS:

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on business items may do so when recognized by
the Ptresiding Officer. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3)
minutes.

A. Consideration of Appointing Financial Consultants for the USDA Financing of the Water System
Improvement Projects
B. Consideration of whether to fill the vacancy on the Board of Directors by appointment until the person
elected in the November 2022 election to fill the vacancy has been qualified
C. Consideration to adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings
9. HEARING ITEMS:

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on hearing items may do so when (ecoi(r]nized b
the PtreSId/ng Officer. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public comment is limited to three (é)
minutes.

10. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:
11. LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: Deferred Infrastructure Program (as needed), Lopez Water Contract Amendments
(2022), Wastewater CIP (Future year), Social Media Policy/ Live Stream Board Meetings (As directed), Bill
insert/ mailing policy (As directed), Policy & Procedure Manual review (As directed), CSDA Transparency
Certification (As directed), Solid Waste Education Center (As directed), Special Tax Town Hall Meeting (April 30,
2022 at 1:30pm)

13. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS:

14. CLOSED SESSION:

15. ADJOURNMENT:

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agenda is posted at the Oceano
Community Services District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA. Agenda and reports can be accessed and downloaded from the
Oceano Community Services District website at www.oceanocsd.org

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the Board
meeting, please call the Clerk of the Board at (805) 481-6730 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting
SO necessary arrangements can be made.

April 13, 2022 - Page 2 of 79



http://www.oceanocsd.org/

Oceano Community Services District

Summary Minutes
Regular Meeting Wednesday, April 13, 2022 - 6:00 P.M.
Location: TELECONFERENCE

1. CALL TO ORDER: at approximately 6:00 p.m. by President White

ROLL CALL:

Board members present: President White, Vice President Villa, Director Replogle, Director Austin, and
Director Gibson.

Staff present: General Manager Will Clemens, Business and Accounting Manager Carey Casciola, and Jeff
Minnery, Legal Counsel.

FLAG SALUTE: led by President White

AGENDA REVIEW: Agenda accepted as presented.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:

o

Charles Varni Provided feedback on the special tax FAQs listed
on the District’s website and asked questions
regarding the proposed special fire tax.

6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:
A. STAFF REPORTS:

i. Sheriff's South Station - Commander Jay Wells — Absent

ii. FCFA - Chief Steve Lieberman — Absent

iii. Operations - Utility Systems Manager - Tony Marraccino
Lopez is at 29.02% full which is 14,418 AF.
8 Work orders / 10 USAs / 6 Customer Service Calls / 0 After Hours Call Outs.
Continuing with daily, weekly, and monthly samples & rounds.
First of the month equipment startups.
Meter reads, re-reads and leak notifications completed. Comment codes are in progress.
Hydrant flushed to put into service and a hydrant hit on Pier Ave.
Continuing with trash/Ready 311 pick-up.
Identified utilities for CalTrans for a project on Hwy 1.
Accolades and appreciation to Casey Stewart for his years of service with the District.

iv. OCSD General Manager - Will Clemens
We've met twice with RCAC who is assisting Ken-Mar Gardens and Halcyon Water Systems
through a feasibility study to help with water quality issues. MKN engineering has been
selected to do the study and will begin work once the State Water Board, who is funding the
project, approves the contract. The District will provide assistance to the process as needed.
We met with CalTrans regarding their overlay project (Oceano to Pismo Beach on Hwy 1). We
will need to relocate utilities, raise, and lower water valves and move a fire hydrant. Project will
begin end of 2022 and should complete early 2023.
Drought continues to worsen. State Water deliveries reduced from 15% to 5%, however,
Oceano will be able to receive all state water requested for the year. County of San Luis
Obispo Board of Supervisors directed staff to work with CCWA to work on a drought mitigation
strategy wherein we can get additional state water supplies into the County up to 1,000 AF.
Appreciation to Casey Stewart and his years of service. Job recruitment is in progress.
April 13, 2022, Board Meeting will be in person at the District office.
Reminded the public that Special Districts can only provide services that the Local Agency
Formation Commission authorizes. Curb, gutter and sidewalks and flood control are not
powers that the Oceano CSD is authorized to provide, and our Board cannot authorize
providing those services nor can we provide funding for those powers. The lead agency for
these powers are the County of San Luis Obispo and the Flood Control District.

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS:
i. Vice President Villa - reported on the 3/10/2022 & 3/17/2022 Oceano Advisory Council (OAC)
meeting.

Agenda Item 7A April 13, 2022 - Page 3 of 79



ii. Director Austin — None

iii. President White — reported on the 3/18/2022 Five Cities Fire Authority meeting and the
3/22/2022 Zone 1(1A) Flood Control District meeting.
iv. Director Replogle —Verbally notified of her resignation from the District Board.
v. Director Gibson - reported on the 3/17/2022 Zone 3 Committee meeting.
C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:

Charles Varni

Expressed appreciation to Director Replogle for
her service to the District. Asked questions
regarding the CalTrans overlay project (Hwy 1)

7. CONSENT AGENDA:

ACTION:

a. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular
Meeting of March 9, 2022
Review of Cash Disbursements
Recommendation to Approve the General, Auto,
and other Liability Insurance Coverage for 2022
and authorize payment in the amount of $34,324

After an opportunity for public comment, Board and staff
discussion, Director Austin made a motion to approve
consent agenda items as presented with a second from
Director Replogle and a 5-0 roll call vote.

Public Comment: None

8. BUSINESS ITEMS: None

9A. HEARING ITEM:

ACTION:

Public Hearing for Public Input on Board Selected Focus
Maps for a Division Based Election System and Election
Sequencing

After an opportunity for public comment, a Presentation by
Dr. Phillips of NDC, Board and staff discussion, Director
Gibson made a motion to adopt map 202 with a second
from Director Austin and a 5-0 roll call vote.

Public Comment: None

9B. HEARING ITEM:

ACTION:

Public Hearing for Adoption of a Resolution Establishing
Voting Divisions for Elections and Defining Division
Boundaries for the Five Board of Directors Divisions

After an opportunity for public comment, a Presentation by
Dr. Phillips, Board and staff discussion, Director Gibson
made a motion to accept staff direction to adopt the
resolution with plan map 202 as exhibit “A”, with a second
from Director Replogle and a 5-0 roll call vote.

Public Comment: None

10. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: None

11.  LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: Addendum (attached)

12.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

Deferred Infrastructure Program (as needed), Lopez Water Contract Amendments (2022), Wastewater CIP
(Future year), Social Media Policy/Live Stream Board Meetings (as directed), Bill insert/mailing policy (as

directed), Policy & Procedure Manual review (As directed), CSDA Transparency Certification (as directed),
Solid Waste Education Center (As directed), Measure A-22 Town Hall Meeting (April 30, 2022 at 1:30 PM)

13. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS: None
14.  CLOSED SESSION: None
15. ADJOURNMENT: Approximately 7:07 pm

Agenda Item 7A April 13, 2022 - Page 4 of 79




T OCEANO

Advisory Council

March 21, 2022
Re: 2022 OEDC WORK PLAN 3.1.22

TO: Nick Alter
CC: OEDC PAC; OAC

FROM: Oceano Advisory Council
Dear Nick,

The Oceano Advisory Council (OAC) has reviewed the document and appreciates the
opportunity to share the following reactions. We were disappointed you declined our invitation to
meet with us on March 10 to discuss our questions and concerns.

LA
From information presented at the March16 Project Advisory Council meeting it appears this
report will not be available for some time into the future. What is the new expected date?

I.C.

In addition to emailing the report to OAC, we expect a public presentation by the principles
which includes significant time for public questions and discussion. OAC will schedule a special
meeting for this.

A1,

The OAC requests that the Spring 2022 City Regional Planning (CRP) studio include the SLO
Council of Governments ATP Grant Proposal for a $17 million curb, gutter, sidewalk, and flood
control infrastructure project. Specifically, we request that the CRP team research and
recommend coordination and funding for a concurrent street lighting project (for which OCSD
has authority).

On March 16 the CRP students presentation on transportation infrastructure in Oceano
displayed a poor understanding of the historical and current situation of what is happening and

Agenda Item 7A April 13, 2022 - Page 5 of 79 Attachment



the dynamics of preparing a ATP grant application (for example, identifying the Safe Routes
Project as lead agency rather than SLOCOG). A closer relationship between the students and
the leaders of this grant proposal needs to be developed. Offers by OAC have not been
responded to.

Il

We are extremely concerned that this section is devoid of any reference to specific Oceano
individuals or organizations as valuable sources of input and advice on land use and
development strategies for the community (other than OCSD). For example, the names of four
specific individuals are listed. Not one is from our community. For example, three organizations
are mentioned. Not one is from our community. In fact, two of the organizations are on record
as supporting the continued operations of the SVRA and vehicles on the Oceano beach and, in
the case of SOCO Chamber, formally rejected OAC as a member of their organization and
refused to work with us, instead promoting VACO.

The organizations listed have no history or record of supporting the general Oceano community
and represent profit-oriented business and development interests. The OEDC, in its literature,
has promoted equitable economic development with an emphasis on social and environmental
justice. We see no reference to these values, nor do we see any organizations (including Latino
organizations) or individuals listed from such organizations.

The fact that the OAC is not listed as a “Key Organization” is of profound concern to us. We are
an official body of SLO County and report to the Board of Supervisors on planning and
development issues in Oceano. To ignore us is tantamount and symbolic of ignoring the people
of Oceano—or, at least, gives that impression. Additionally, no other Oceano based organization
is indicated as being “Key:” not the Oceano Beach Community Association; not VACO; not the
schools. Given the history of County neglect of the community it is hugely disappointing that the
OEDC would perpetuate the appearance of such disrespect.

Finally, our representative to the PAC has expressed concern that there is a lack of
transparency regarding what specific issues are involved in the delay of the community survey
and what steps are being taken to successfully complete the project.

Sincerely and on behalf of the Océano Advisory Council,

Allene Villa/Chair

Agenda Item 7A April 13, 2022 - Page 6 of 79 Attachment



PHONE(805) 481-6730

Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475

FAX (805) 481-6836

Date: April 13, 2022

To: Board of Directors

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager

Subject: Agenda Item #7(B): Recommendation to Review Cash Disbursements

Recommendation
It is recommended that your board review the attached cash disbursements:

Discussion

The following is a summary of the attached cash disbursements:

Description Check Sequence Amounts
59474 - 59514
Disbursements:
Regular Payable Register - paid 04/07/2022 59474 - 59504 | $ 60,371.95
Customer U/B Deposit & Reim Agreement Refunds - paid 04/07/2022 59505 - 59507 | $ 1,616.38
Subtotal: S 61,988.33
Reoccurring Payments for Board Review (authorized by Resolution 2020-06):
Payroll Disbursements - PPE 03/26/2022 N/A S 34,435.63
Board Member Stipend - March 2022 N/A S 484.43
Reoccurring Utility Disbursements - paid 04/07/2022 59508 - 59514 | $ 10,127.78
Subtotal: S 45,047.84
Grand Total: S 107,036.17

Other Agency Involvement

N/A
Other Financial Considerations

Amounts are within the authorized Fund level budgets.
Results

The Board's review of cash disbursements is an integral component of the District's system of internal controls and

promotes a well governed community.

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 7 of 79




4/07/2022 2:43 PM CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER
COMPANY: 99 - POOLED CASH FUND

CHECK DATE:
CLEAR DATE:
STATEMENT:

VOIDED DATE:
AMOUNT :
CHECK NUMBER:

----AMOUNT---

53.

2,516.
30.

3,149.

50.

92

1,252

17
45.

2,495.

38.

86CR

63CR

00CR

78CR

02CR

.31CR

.50CR

.50CR

.10CR

.70CR

.29CR

.10CR

.50CR

.39CR

00CR

00CR

.58CR

60CR

STATUS

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

0/00/0000 THRU
0/00/0000 THRU
0/00/0000 THRU
0/00/0000 THRU

0.00 THRU 999,

059474 THRU

PAGE: 1
99/99/9999
99/99/9999
99/99/9999
99/99/9999
999,999.99

059504

FOLIO CLEAR DATE

A 0/00/0000 LEGAL SERVICES

A 0/00/0000 METERS - INVENTORY & REIMBURSABLE

A 0/00/0000 UNIFORMS

A 0/00/0000 SYSTEM PARTS

A 0/00/0000 U/B MAIL & POSTAGE, INSERT

A 0/00/0000 MONTHLY STD BKUP

A 0/00/0000 WHEELING SVCS

A 0/00/0000 SYSTEM PARTS

A 0/00/0000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

A 0/00/0000 ENGR SVCS

A 0/00/0000 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

A 0/00/0000 SYSTEM PARTS

A 0/00/0000 OCSD YARD SUPPLIES
A 0/00/0000 SYSTEM PARTS

A 0/00/0000 FUEL

A 0/00/0000 STRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT

A 0/00/0000 SYSTEM PARTS

A 0/00/0000 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

A 0/00/0000 SCHOOL OUTREACH PGM

A 0/00/0000 BACKFLOW RETN RCPT/CERT MAIL

A 0/00/0000 OFFICE PARTS

ACCOUNT: 1-1001-000 POOLED CASH OPERATING

TYPE: All

STATUS:  All

FOLIO: All
ACCOUNT --DATE-- --TYPE-- NUMBER --------- DESCRIPTION-—--—-—-—--

CHECK: oo
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059474 ADAMSKI MOROSKI MADDEN CUMBERL
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059475 AQUA-METRIC
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059476 ARAMARK
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059477 BRISCO'S
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059478 BURDINE PRINTING & GRAPHICS
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059479 BRENT SARKISON DBA CALTEC COMP
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059480 CITY OF ARROYO GRANDE
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059481 CONTRACTOR'S MAINTENANCE SERVI
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059482 DICKSON
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059483 DIVERSIFIED PROJECT SERVICES I
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059484 ENERGY LINK INDUSTRIAL SERVICE
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059485 FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059486 SLO CO FARM SUPPLY CO INC, DBA
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059487 ICONIX WATERWORKS (US) INC.
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059488 J.B. DEWAR, INC.
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059489 MIER BROS.
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059490 MINER'S ACE HARDWARE, INC.
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059491 NOBLE SAW, INC
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059492 ONE COOL EARTH
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059493 PETTY CASH
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059494 QUILL CORPORATION
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059495 R&R ROLL-OFF LLC

1,093.

72CR

OUTSTND

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 8 of 79

A 0/00/0000 GARBAGE CLEANUP


ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
LEGAL SERVICES

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
METERS - INVENTORY & REIMBURSABLE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
UNIFORMS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
U/B MAIL & POSTAGE, INSERT

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
MONTHLY STD  BKUP

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
WHEELING SVCS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
OFFICE SUPPLIES

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
ENGR SVCS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
OCSD YARD SUPPLIES

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
FUEL

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SYSTEM PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SYSTEM PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SYSTEM PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
GARBAGE CLEANUP

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SYSTEM PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
STRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SCHOOL OUTREACH PGM

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SYSTEM PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
BACKFLOW RETN RCPT/CERT MAIL

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
OFFICE PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE


4/07/2022
COMPANY: 99
ACCOUNT:
TYPE:
STATUS:
FOLIO:

All
All
All

ACCOUNT

CHECK:

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

1-1001-000

2:43 PM
- POOLED CASH FUND
1-1001-000

POOLED CASH OPERATING

--DATE--

4/07/2022
4/07/2022
4/07/2022
4/07/2022
4/07/2022
4/07/2022
4/07/2022
4/07/2022

4/07/2022

TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0

TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND

Agenda Item 7B

--TYPE--

CHECK

CHECK

CHECK

CHECK

CHECK

CHECK

NUMBER

059496

059497

059498

059499

059500

059501

059502

059503

059504

CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

SCOTT O'BRIEN FIRE & SAFETY CO
SLO CO DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS
SLO CO PUBLIC HEALTH DEPT.

SM TIRE, INC

TARGET SOLUTIONS LEARNING, LLC

THE TRIBUNE

TOLMAN & WIKER INSURANCE SERVI

USA BLUEBOOK

WATER SYSTEMS CONSULTING, INC.
CHECK TOTAL:
DEPOSIT TOTAL:
INTEREST TOTAL:
MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL:
SERVICE CHARGE TOTAL:
EFT TOTAL:
BANK-DRAFT TOTAL:
CHECK TOTAL:
DEPOSIT TOTAL:
INTEREST TOTAL:
MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL:
SERVICE CHARGE TOTAL:
EFT TOTAL:
BANK-DRAFT TOTAL:

CHECK DATE:
CLEAR DATE:
STATEMENT:

VOIDED DATE:

AMOUNT :

CHECK NUMBER:

----AMOUNT---

.98CR
1,532.51CR

351.21CR

34,324.00CR

410.51CR

757.05CR

60,371.95CR
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

[N eNeNeoNeNe

60,371.95CR
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

[eNeoNeNeNeNel

STATUS

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

OUTSTND

April 13, 2022 - Page 9 of 79

0/00/0000 THRU
0/00/0000 THRU
0/00/0000 THRU
0/00/0000 THRU

0.00 THRU 999,

059474 THRU

PAGE: 2
99/99/9999
99/99/9999
99/99/9999
99/99/9999
999,999.99

059504

FOLIO CLEAR DATE

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

A 0/00/0000

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
CIP-PROP1 STRM WTR PLAN CHECKS
BACKFLOW SVCS

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

ANNUAL SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION

INSURANCE

SYSTEM PARTS

NCMA 2021 ANNUAL REPORT


ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
CIP-PROP1 STRM WTR PLAN CHECKS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
BACKFLOW SVCS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
ANNUAL SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
INSURANCE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
SYSTEM PARTS

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
NCMA 2021 ANNUAL REPORT


4/07/2022 2:44 PM CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER PAGE: 1

COMPANY: 99 - POOLED CASH FUND CHECK DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
ACCOUNT: 1-1001-000 POOLED CASH OPERATING CLEAR DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
TYPE: All STATEMENT : 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
STATUS: All VOIDED DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
FOLIO: All AMOUNT : 0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99
CHECK NUMBER: 059505 THRU 059507
ACCOUNT --DATE-- --TYPE-- NUMBER --------- DESCRIPTION------—--- --—-AMOUNT--- STATUS FOLIO CLEAR DATE
CHECK : oo
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059505 ZARATE, IGNACIO 90.20CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 U/B ACCOUNT DEPOSIT REFUND
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059506 SANCHEZ, AQUILINA 26.18CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 U/B ACCOUNT DEPOSIT REFUND
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059507 JONATHAN DIAL 1,500.00CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 REIM AGREEMENT REFUND
TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0 CHECK TOTAL: 1,616.38CR
DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00
INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00
MISCELLANEOUS  TOTAL: 0.00
SERVICE CHARGE TOTAL: 0.00
EFT TOTAL: 0.00
BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00
TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND CHECK TOTAL: 1,616.38CR
DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00
INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00
MISCELLANEOUS  TOTAL: 0.00
SERVICE CHARGE TOTAL: 0.00
EFT TOTAL: 0.00
BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 10 of 79


ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
U/B ACCOUNT DEPOSIT REFUND 

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
U/B ACCOUNT DEPOSIT REFUND 

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
REIM AGREEMENT REFUND


Payroll Summary Report

Board of Directors - Agenda Date April 13, 2022

Gross Wages

Regular
Overtime Wages
Stand By

Gross Wages

Cell Phone Allowance
Total Wages

Disbursements

Net Wages
State and Federal Agencies
CalPERS - Normal
SEIU - Union Fees
Total Disbursements processed with Payroll

Health (Disbursed with reoccurring bills)

Total District Payroll Related Costs

(*)

3/12/2022 3/26/2022
$28,214.34 $29,557.28
$799.60 $234.76
$600.00 $450.00
$29,613.94 $30,242.04
$75.00 $0.00
$29,688.94 $30,242.04
$22,705.09 $23,661.90
$4,809.88 $5,014.28
$5,599.50 $5,599.49
$159.96 $159.96
$33,274.43 $34,435.63
$6,319.46 $0.00
$39,593.89 $34,435.63

(*) Previously reported in prior Board Meeting packet - provided for comparison.

Agenda Item 7B

April 13, 2022 - Page 11 of 79



Board Member Stipend Summary Report
Board of Directors - Agenda Date April 13, 2022

(*)

Gross Stipends 2/28/2022 3/31/2022

Board Member Stipends $450.00 $450.00
Gross Stipends $450.00 $450.00

Disbursements

Net Stipends $415.57 $415.57

State and Federal Agencies $68.86 $68.86
Total Disbursements processed with Stipends $484.43 $484.43

(*) Previously reported in prior Board Meeting packet - provided for comparison.

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 12 of 79



Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730 FAX (805) 481-6836

DIRECTOR’S MONTHLY REQUEST FOR
COMPENSATION FOR MEETING ATTENDANCE

name: Cynthia Replogle DATE: 03-23-2022

FOR THE MONTH of: March 2022

8.1 Each Director is authorized to receive one hundred dollars ($100.00) as compensation for each regular or
special meeting of the Board and fifty dollars ($50.00) for each committee meeting attended by him or her.
8.2 In no event shall Director compensation exceed one hundred dollars (5100.00) per day.

8.3 Director compensation shall not exceed six hundred ($600.00) in any one (1) calendar month.

MEETING DATES: 03/09 and 03/23

No. of Meetings 2 x $100.00=$ 200.

COMMITTEE MEETING(S) OR OTHER REIMBURSEMENT(S)

DATE: MEETING: AMOUNT: $
DATE: MEETING: AMOUNT: §
DATE: MEETING: AMOUNT: §
DATE: MEETING: AMOUNT: §

TOTAL coMPENSATION: $ 200.

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 13 of 79



ntoy-desmond
Highlight


Oceano Community Services District RECEIVED
1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475 MAR 7 8 2027
(805) 481-6730 FAX (805) 481-6836

* DIRECTOR’S MONTHLY REQUEST FOR
COMPENSATION FOR MEETING ATTENDANCE

NAME: K&D\'T\)-EM {'\1\ QUH’\\’L’? DATE: P )Q_U( \‘7 e

FOR THE MONTH OF: | 1) Py V{Q\)r‘

8.1 Each Director is authorized to receive one hundred dollars ($100.00) as compensation for each regular or
special meeting of the Board and fifty dollars ($50.00) for each committee meeting attended by him or her.
8.2 In no event shall Director compensation exceed one hundred dollars (5100.00) per day.

8.3 Director compensation shall not exceed six hundred ($600.00) in any one (1) calendar month.

MEETING DATES: . \b 0\\\/{0 Lol and 5 527/‘[ G L2
; e -
No. of Meetings 2’- x $100.00 = $ 20O /O{'/C) c’

COMMITTEE MEETING(S) OR OTHER REIMBURSEMENT(S)
DATE: 3![@{1()22/ MEETING:EW Cilees 52/19'/ AMOUNT: $ﬁ /&/faa
DATE: 2 72«"2027—/ meeive: Ze2¢ (= ([T amount: s N
oute: B\ 20727~ weenwe:_(/ YK D AMOUNT: $ }?\

1=

\ ) ; )
DATE: %{@{’LODL meeTing: (V) FY ¢ AMOUNT: $ &

g 69
TOTAL COMPENSATION: $ 2/5 [ y J

SIGNATURE

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 14 of 79


ntoy-desmond
Highlight


Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street | P.O. Box 599 | Oceano, CA 93475
PHONE: (805) 481-6730 | FAX: (805) 481-6836 i e =AY ,-)

MAR 7 8 2022

Meeting Date: %//é /?2675 Z—
Director Name: W /\/\ (/()H_LT

Pl Mesting Hearing i< Cifrie < m_,&mm

Notes: ﬂLCv‘&i(’U/\, leS)\on/ (QNV Dﬁ\f\@‘ﬁﬁ%\/ gem{@\
(e Pl
@ﬂ\n@% Vnapaddie d podls £ e
Ju(\)\/\ NO o DW&&A«:&Q‘/%% ca X
Yein @z»é\wcf élﬁlzuz
@ Pellioz2 Ao Sapeal £ svipls ‘
Pute 2006 Seul Lnadiemn i peed - e
e 200,060 mdét// “uall 5&6&\(&\
(Ao M Sherer hdzovvar—iegniel draRt
o202 2202% Sl ho C\%X%M\B@M&%
@/V b& rAJLEN uA/AT()M gf—bﬁ%?\/f\km&&
c0 = Qrvw@&@ e

Attached: Agenda / Other Documents [ ]Yes )(No

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 15 of 79



ntoy-desmond
Highlight


Oceano Community Services District
1655 Front Street | P.O. Box 599 | Oceano, CA 93475 : -CFRIVER
PHONE: (805) 481-6730 | FAX: (805) 481-6836 A Y
MAR 7 8 2077

Meeting Date > IZZ\QOZL

Director Name: [\ \DV\ZEV\/ \1\ (U

ic Meatidg / Hearing 212\ A DY S\ O Cﬂ%@o& C@v@wﬁ/
M/H/\, g‘m S s b b

Notes: X Mar& LM reeededN by Nahag ¢ \00(9
bl ol e D CiodpGronda_ Oraad SnsnaX,
Y\\&W\IVG\QQ/ Néﬁ\ﬂq Kol\Cipn Wfﬁz&? w@h_)b/%\,@k
vemeed oo cresde bed oa &"’W\

P&&Xﬁa \\Q)Da‘&séa( *nmcww% AN V\MW
el Hoshgale loprorend prosed—
&k posttn ef Cree P Nal emle Lu(f?
L@ S0redyle ) B \oole of 2 proosel s

A e N\ GANLLCS mowmw ﬁué% W@"‘éf
il fw&’ °

e 2t aednd slaked B oce Tl flsy
@/k OCJ/MO ﬁ{»@“w\/ 5 <0l 5{—@}@

Attached: Agenda / Other Documents [ ]Yes quo

ljgnature

April 13, 2022 - Page 16 of 79

Agenda Item 7B


ntoy-desmond
Highlight


4/07/2022 3:41 PM CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER PAGE: 1

COMPANY: 99 - POOLED CASH FUND CHECK DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
ACCOUNT: 1-1001-000 POOLED CASH OPERATING CLEAR DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
TYPE: All STATEMENT : 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
STATUS:  All VOIDED DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
FOLIO: All AMOUNT : 0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99
CHECK NUMBER: 059508 THRU 059514
ACCOUNT --DATE-- --TYPE-- NUMBER --------- DESCRIPTION------—--- --—-AMOUNT--- STATUS FOLIO CLEAR DATE
CHECK: = mmmmm oo o
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059508 MAP COMMUNICATIONS, INC. DBA A 248.59CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 ANSWERING SVC
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059509 AGP VIDEO INC. 1,400.00CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 BOD MEETING TELECONF ARCHIVE SVC
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059510 COASTAL COPY, INC. 230.05CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 COPIES/MAINTENANCE
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059511 DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVI 150.15CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 COPIER LEASE
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059512 HIRIARTE'S INDOOR CLEANING SER 825.00CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 CLEANING SERVICE
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059513 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 7,041.26CR  OUTSTND A 0/00/0000 UTILITY
1-1001-000 4/07/2022 CHECK 059514 VERIZON WIRELESS 232.73CR  OUTSIND A 0/00/0000 FIELD CELL SVC
TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0 CHECK TOTAL: 10,127.78CR
DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00
INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00
MISCELLANEOUS  TOTAL: 0.00
SERVICE CHARGE TOTAL: 0.00
EFT TOTAL: 0.00
BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00
TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND CHECK TOTAL: 10,127.78CR
DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00
INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00
MISCELLANEOUS  TOTAL: 0.00
SERVICE CHARGE TOTAL: 0.00
EFT TOTAL: 0.00
BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

Agenda Item 7B April 13, 2022 - Page 17 of 79


ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
ANSWERING SVC

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
BOD MEETING TELECONF ARCHIVE SVC

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
COPIES/MAINTENANCE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
COPIER LEASE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
CLEANING SERVICE

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
UTILITY

ntoy-desmond
Typewriter
FIELD CELL SVC


Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730  FAX (805) 481-6836

Date: April 13,2022

To: Board of Directors

From: Will Clemens, General Manger

Subject: Agenda Item #7(c): Approval of a letter of support for the San Luis Obispo County Planning and

Building Department’s recommendation to include the Oceano Community Services District’s
Water Tank Rehabilitation Project for 2022 Community Development Block Grant Funds.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board approve and authorize the President to sign the attached letter of
support for the San Luis Obispo County Planning and Building Department’s recommendation to include the
Oceano Community Services District’s Water Tank Rehabilitation Project for 2022 Community Development Block
Grant Funds.

Discussion

The District’s Water Resource Reliability Program (WRRP) includes a list of capital improvement projects.
On October 27, 2021, your Board approved a motion supporting a grant application to the San Luis Obispo County
Planning and Building Department’s Community Development Block Grant Funds to fund the District’s Water Tank
Rehabilitation Project (Project 1-13) of the District’s WRRP. The County of San Luis Obispo Planning and Building
Department staff has included the District’s project in their recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. The
recommendation will be considered at the Action Plan Hearing on April 19, 2022, and the County’s Draft Action
Plan is attached.

Other Agency Involvement
County of San Luis Obispo Planning and Building Department.
Financial Considerations
The grant total estimated allocation is $1,772,309 with $724,181 for County/unincorporated areas. The

request for this project is $225,000. Estimated project and grant administration costs are $27,000 which will come
from the Water fund budget.

Agenda Item 7C April 13, 2022 - Page 18 of 79



Oceano Community Services District

Board of Directors Meeting

Results

Pursuing grant revenues and project development supports a well-governed, healthy, and livable
community.

Attachments:

e Letter of Support
e  SLO County Planning Draft Action Plan Recommendations

Agenda Item 7C April 13, 2022 - Page 19 of 79



Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street | P.0.Box 599 | Oceano, CA 93475
PHONE (805) 481-6730 | FAX (805) 481-6836

April 13, 2022

County of San Luis Obispo
Board of Supervisors
CDBG 2022 Action Plan Projects

SUBJECT: THE COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 2022 DRAFT ACTION PLAN PROJECTS RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS FOR THE OCEANO COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT PUBLIC FACILITIES — WATER TANK REHABILITATION

Dear Board Supervisors,

The Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) writes this letter in support of the OCSD’s Water Tank
Rehabilitation Project (Project), submitted to the San Luis Obispo County Planning Department for funding
under the County of San Luis Obispo Community Development Block Grant (CDGB) Program.

The OCSD represents the Disadvantaged Community (DAC) of Oceano in San Luis Obispo County. This is the
third consecutive year that OCSD has applied for CDBG funds for the Project which is identified in the OCSD
Water Resource Reliability Program (WRRP). The Project is part of system-wide improvements to the OCSD
potable drinking water system. The Project will rehabilitate a 297,000-gallon storage tank that provides drinking
water to the entire community of Oceano. The Project will benefit this DAC community by preventing potential
health and safety issues from arising due to deterioration of the water tank and by financially assisting the OCSD
to implement this improvement.

Please accept this letter as our endorsement of the Project and our commitment to participate in future
outreach and planning activities with the community related to this Project.

Sincerely,

Karen M. White
President

Agenda Item 7C April 13, 2022 - Page 20 of 79 Attachment - Draft Letter of Support



2022 Action Plan Projects
Draft Recommendations

CDBG

ESG HOME HOME-ARP Title 29 PLHA
Housing Atroyo Grande Auscadero Motro Bay Paso Robles Pismo Beach | San Luis Obispo Co. of San Luis Obispo
Olmeda Transitional Housing (FCN) $44,210.00 $155,789.68
mbria Pincs (PSHH) $545,449.80 $1,025,000.00
Del Rio Ridge (PSHH) $139,465.00 $690,000.00 $229,700.00
AG Affordable Housing (IASLO) $54,274.00
Pismo Beach Affordable Senior Housing (HASLO) $249,000.00 $345,000.00 $250,987.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $139,465.00 $0.00 $794,449.80 $2,104,210.00 $534,961.00 $155,789.68
CDBG
Public Services ESG HOME HOME-ARP General Fund Support PLHA
Atroyo Grande Auscadero Motro Bay Paso Robles Pismo Beach | San Luis Obispo Co. of San Luis Obispo
40 Prado (CAPSLO) $74,132.00 $44,383.14 $85,246.34 $109,598.00
Adult Day Center $13,495.00
Homeless Shelter (] $8,524.00 $12,095.00 $40,240.69 §76,302.00 §125,514.32
Youth Activities Scholarship (Atascadero Community Services Foundation) $11,029.00
Homeless Prevention, Rapid Re-Housing, Subsistence payments, outreach (SCHC) $13,000.00 $1,644.00 $900.00 $3,500.00 $5,245.00 $24,003.17 $56,830.89 $25,100.00
Supportive Housing (PSHH) §7,748.00 $6,185.00
(CAPSLO)(ECHO)(5CHC) §328,957.00
Emergency Assistance (Lumina) $42,000.00
$13,000.00 $21,197.00 $8,648.00 $35,275.00 $5,245.00 $74,132.00 $108,627.00 $142,077.23 $0.00 $0.00 $253,000.00 $454,471.32
CDBG
Public Facilities ESG HOME HOME-ARP General Fund Support PLHA
Atroyo Grande Auscadero Motro Bay Paso Robles Pismo Beach | San Luis Obispo Co. of San Luis Obispo
Water Res Rehab Project (OCSD) $225,000.00
Santa Rosa Barrier Removal (Atascadero) $115,499.00
Housing and PF Project (SLO) $385,483.00
Barricr Removal Project (Pismo) $25,176.00
Curb Ramp and Sidewalk Improvement Project (AG) $56,333.00
17th Street Pedestrain Improvements (Paso Robles) 56.00
Small Business TA (MCSC) $65,000.00
$56,333.00 $115,499.00 $0.00 $152,856.00 $25,176.00 $385,483.00 $290,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Planning & Capacity Building
Capacity Building $6,076.00 $17,297.00
Homeless Management Information Systems (FIMIS) $15,290.00
$6,076.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,297.00 $15,290.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00
Administration
Administration (Jurisdiction retains) $9,763.00 $4,036.00 $16,462.00 $17,297.00 $129,546.00 $11,519.00 $88,272.00 $494,192.85
Cities Admin share to the County (Share added 1o Connty’s fotal) $11,267.00 §18,130.00 §7,495.00 §30,571.00 $4,546.00 $64,247.00
County Admin Totals $281,092.00 $11,519.00 $88,272.00 $494,192.85

Agenda Item 7C

April 13, 2022 - Page 21 of 79

Attachment: Draft Action Plan




Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730  FAX (805) 481-6836

Date: April 13,2022

To: Board of Directors

From: Will Clemens, General Manger

Subject: Agenda Item #7(d): Approval of an Application for Community Project Funding and Letter of

Support through the Office of Congressman Salud Carbajal for Projects in the District’s Water
Resource Reliability Program.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board:

1. Approve an Application for Federal Community Project Funding through the Office of Congressman Salud
Carbajal for Projects in the District’'s Water Resource Reliability Program.
2. Approve and authorize the President to sign the attached letter of support.

Discussion

The District’s Water Resource Reliability Program includes a list of capital improvement projects that will
repair and upgrade aging, undersized, and leaking waterlines throughout the community. The District received
the attached invitation to apply for Federal Community Project Funding through the Office of Salud Carbajal.

Other Agency Involvement
If successful, funding would most likely come from the Environmental Protection Agency.
Financial Considerations
The District currently has $1,160,530 in shovel ready projects with design completed that it will include in

the application. A State or local match of $232,106 would be required and the District will concurrently pursue
State Prop 1 grant funding to cover the matching requirement.

Results
Pursuing grant revenues supports a well-governed, healthy, safe, and livable community.

Attachments:

e  Funding Invitation
e Letter of Support

Agenda Item 7D April 13, 2022 - Page 22 of 79



From: Haas. Greg

To: Vice President White; Will Clemens

Subject: Congressman Carbajal: FY23 Community Project Funding

Date: Thursday, March 31, 2022 1:43:12 PM

Attachments: FY2023 CPF_Approps Resource Guide for District Stakeholders (1).pdf

Good Afternoon President White,

The Congressman is excited to announce FY23 Community Project Funding, a supplement to the
traditional federal appropriations process that allows for direct project inclusion in federal
appropriation bills. This is similar to what used to be referred to as an “earmark” but comes with

added restrictions and requirements to prevent misuse including:

¢ Only non-profit entities are eligible (local government, special districts, non-profits)

e Limited to the criteria established by each committee (see resource guide)

e Demonstrated community support via letters from elected leaders, resolutions, community
development plans, media
Must have matching state/local government funds
Project funding for FY 2023 — one-time funding
Each member will be allowed to submit 15 projects total to the appropriations committees for
consideration. Not all 15 projects that are submitted will be guaranteed funding.

The project proposal deadline: April 14, 2022.
If additional time is needed, please reach out to me directly.

Projects can be submitted on the Congressman’s website: https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-
services/community-project-funding.htm

Additionally, given the limited number of projects that can be submitted by the Congressman, we
want to impress that projects with widely demonstrated community support will be held in higher
consideration.

Please take some time to review the criteria in the attached Community Project Funding Resource
Guide and should you have any questions regarding your project, please reach out to me directly.

Greg Haas

Senior District Representative
Congressman Salud Carbajal (CA-24)
1411 Marsh St., Ste 205

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

(805) 546-8348w

(805) 699-1442c

(805) 439-3574fx
Greg.Haas@mail.house.gov

https://carbajal.house.gov/

New COVID-19 Protocols: Per guidance from the (enters for Disease Control, community members are encouraged to take precantions, including
(leaning your hands often, wearing masks, practicing social distancing, and staying home as much as possible to further reduce risk of being exposed to COVID-19. The
Congressional Offices are currently closed, but you may contact us via phone, email or fax.

Agenda Item 7D April 13, 2022 - Page 23 of 79 Attachment 1


mailto:Greg.Haas@mail.house.gov
mailto:directorwhite@oceanocsd.org
mailto:will@oceanocsd.org
https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm
https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm
mailto:Greg.Haas@mail.house.gov
https://carbajal.house.gov/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/prevention.html

U.S. CONGRESSMAN

Il SALUD CARBAJAL

Representing California's 24th District

Community Project Funding
Resource Guide

Updated: March 28, 2022





UNITED STATES
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Dear Friend,

| am pleased to share this following resource guide regarding how to request
Community Project Funding through the annual appropriations process. This guide
is an effort to streamline the process and provide you with the best information
available in a clear and concise format. My team and | are committed to creating a
fair and equitable process that will be beneficial to all of California’'s 24"
Congressional District.

In this guide, you will find an overview of the appropriations process, the Community
Project Funding process, answers to many frequently asked questions, my staff
contact information, and a brief overview of alternate federal funding sources.

As you prepare your requests, please keep in mind that my office will receive far more
Community Project Funding requests than can be fulfilled. As a result, many
deserving, appropriate, and eligible projects will not be provided federal assistance in
fiscal year 2023. That is why it is extremely important that every project and requestor
pursue other grant and federal/state/local funding opportunities where available.

Thank you again for your interest in this year's Community Project Funding process.
My team is available to answer your questions as needed. | look forward to working
with you to bring needed federal resources to California's Central Coast in the 24
Congressional District.

Sincerely,

dlocly

Salud Carbajal

Member of Congress

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 2





Table of Contents

Staff Contact List
Overview of the Appropriations Process
Overview of the Community Project Funding Process
Data and Lessons from FY 22
Community Project Funding Eligible Accounts
Agriculture Subcommittee
Department of Agriculture
Community Facilities Grants
ReConnect Program
Distance Learning and Telemedicine Grants
Agricultural Research Service, Buildings and Facilities
Natural Resources Conservation Service, Conservation Operations
Commerce, Justice, and Science Subcommittee
Department of Justice
State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance - Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)
Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) - Technology and Equipment
Department of Commerce
NIST Scientific and Technical Research and Services (STRS)
NIST Construction of Research Facilities - Extramural Construction

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Operations, Research, and
Facilities

National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)
NASA Safety, Security, and Mission Services

Defense Subcommittee

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

11
12
12
13
13
14
15
15
16
18
18
18
20
22
22

23

25
27
27

29





Energy and Water Development Subcommittee
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and Bureau of Reclamation
Department of Energy
Financial Services and General Government Subcommittee

General Services Administration

Federal Buildings Fund - New Construction, Major Repairs & Alterations & Basic Repairs

Account
National Archives and Records Administration
National Historical Publications and Records Commission
Small Business Administration
Small Business Initiatives
Homeland Security Subcommittee
Department of Homeland Security
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Projects
Emergency Operations Center Grant Program
Interior and Environment Subcommittee
Department of the Interior
Save America’s Treasures (SAT) through the National Park Service
Land Acquisition through the Land and Water Conservation Fund
Environmental Protection Agency
State and Tribal Assistance Grants (STAG)
U.S. Forest Service
State and Private Forestry
Labor, Health and Human Services, and Education Subcommittee
Department of Labor
Employment and Training Administration
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Demonstration Program

Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

30
30
33
35

35

35
35
35
37
37
39
39
39
41
43
43
43
45
46
46
49
49
52
52
52
52
53





Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)
Health Facilities Construction and Equipment
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)
Administration for Children and Families
Child Abuse Prevention
Social Services Research and Demonstration
Administration for Community Living
Department of Education
Elementary and Secondary Education
Innovation and Improvement
Postsecondary Education
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education (FIPSE)
Limitations on Education-Related Community Project Funding
Military Construction, Veterans Affairs Subcommittee
Department of Defense - Military Construction Accounts
Future Year Defense Program (FYDP)
Unfunded Requirements/Unfunded Priorities Lists (UFRs/UPLS)
Cost-to-Completes (CTCs)
Department of Veterans Affairs
Construction Programs
Transportation, Housing and Urban Development Subcommittee
Department of Transportation
Transit Infrastructure Projects
Highway Infrastructure Projects
Airport Improvement Program (AIP)
Department of Housing and Urban Development

Economic Development Initiative (EDI)

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

53
53
54
55
55
56
56
57
57
57
58
58
58
59
59
60
60
60
61
62
64
64
64
66
67
69
69





Frequently Asked Questions

Other Federal Funding Resources

Key Resources

Feedback

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

71

78

78

79





Staff Contact List

Please submit all FY 2023 Appropriations requests through my office's form
at https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-
funding.htm

e The deadline to submit Programmatic/Language Requests for FY
2023 will be April 14th.

Please submit all FY 2023 Community Project Funding requests through
my office’s form at https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-
services/community-project-funding.htm

e The deadline to submit a Community Project Funding request for
FY2023 will be April 14th. All materials must be submitted no later
than 5:00pm on April 14th*

*NOTE*: If you need more time to procure pieces of Community Support, please
let my team know in advance. My team will work with each requestor on an
individual and as needed basis.

For specific questions, please reach out to my staff below:
e Johanna Montiel, Legislative Director

o Johanna.Montiel@mail.house.gov

e Erica Reyes, District Director

o Erica.Reyes@mail.house.gov

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal



https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm

https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm

https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm

https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm

mailto:Johanna.Montiel@mail.house.gov

mailto:Erica.Reyes@mail.house.gov



Overview of the Appropriations Process

Each year, the United States Congress considers and enacts annual appropriations
bills, which provide the federal government with the funding it needs to operate.
These bills fund numerous activities, including government operations, medical
research, national defense, infrastructure, and education. The appropriations process
begins with the release of the President’'s Budget request, due the first Monday in
February but Presidents of both parties typically release a late budget. Then the
authorizing and appropriations committees hold hearings to consider the
President’'s request before writing their own bills - this process typically occurs during
the Spring.

As a member of the House of Representatives, | want to ensure that the federal
government invests in the policies and programs that help move our communities,
state, and country forward. That's why it's important | hear directly from you about
what our federal budget should prioritize.

You or your organization may submit programmatic or language requests.
Programmatic requests include funding for specific federal programs that are
important to you or your organization. Language requests include specific policy
directives to federal agencies.

We ask that you submit your programmatic or language requests by our
deadline. You and your organization should begin developing your request well in
advance to ensure that your request is submitted properly and tailored to the needs
of your project. As you develop your request, please feel free to contact my staff and
use this resource guide to ensure your project request meets all requirements.

In order to submit a request, please complete the form on my website at
https://carbajal.nouse.gov/constituent-services/community-project-
funding.htm. We cannot guarantee that requests submitted after the deadline
noted on my form will be considered. If you have problems or questions while
completing these forms, please feel free to contact my staff. My staff is unable to
forward request forms to other Congressional or Senate offices.

My team will review each request. The entire appropriations process can take several
months. Appropriations bills approved by the House Appropriations Committees
must be agreed to by both the House and Senate, and signed into law by the
President before the end of the fiscal year on September 30th; however, the process
often extends beyond this date (using a process called a Continuing Resolution).

Your patience during this lengthy and arduous process is greatly appreciated.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 8



https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm

https://carbajal.house.gov/constituent-services/community-project-funding.htm



Overview of the Community Project Funding
Process

In addition to programmatic and language requests, the House Appropriations
Committee will again accepting Community Project Funding requests for Fiscal Year
2023. These requests will be funded through the numerous government funding bills.

My team and | are looking forward to recommending important local projects for
federal funding this year. However, it is important that you know how this process will
work this year.

First, you should know that my team and | expect to receive hundreds of requests for
funding. While it's my goal to fund as many projects as possible, Members of
Congress can only submit 15 requests to fund Community Projects, and we cannot
guarantee what will be funded.

Second, it is important that any request you make satisfies every requirement laid
out by the House Appropriations Committee. Generally, accounts have the same
requirements and application needs as regular federal grants of the same name My
team encourages you to also look for grant opportunities and if your project qualifies
for that, we are happy to help support your application.

Most importantly, each request must include demonstrated community support.
You will be required to submit evidence of community support, including (but not
limited to):

- Letters of support from elected community leaders

- Press articles highlighting the need for the specific project

- Resolutions passed by local/county/state governments

- Projects listed on community development plans, state intended use plans,
and other publicly available planning documents

- Support from local newspaper editorial boards, etc.

Additional requirements are listed below:

- A financial disclosure statement from myself certifying that neither my
immediate family nor | have any financial interest in the proposed project.

- No funds can be used by for-profit recipients.

- Matching funding must be available for each project from the state/local
government (matching funding does NOT have to be in-hand, but officials
must have a plan to fund in order to meet this requirement).

- Each project is funded only for FY 2023.

In the interest of transparency, all Members are required to post all Community
Project Funding requests submitted to the committee on their website. The posting

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 9





must include the name of the proposed recipient, the address, the amount of the
request, and an explanation of the purpose and justification for the use of taxpayer

funds.

As more information becomes available, this guide will be updated.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

10





Data and Lessons from FY 22

For the FY22 Community Project Funding Process, the House Appropriations
Committee included 2,723 total Member Requested Projects across the sub-
committee spending bills. The total appropriated funding was $4,168,945,143, with
an average award of $925,000.

A government spending bill for the remainder of the year including our Community
Project Funding requests was passed by the U.S. House of Representatives on
March 11, and the final spending bill was signed into law on March 15 by President
Biden.

Nine of my requests were funded, totaling $17,487,340 for CA-24.

The majority of projects requested committee-wide were in the Transportation,
Housing and Urban Development Subcommittee (namely, Economic
Development Initiative grants), Labor, Health and Human Services, Education
Subcommiittee, Interior Subcommittee (namely, STAG Grants), and Commerce,
Justice, Science Subcommittee.

Included in this guide will be the total funding, average funding, median of funding,
and number of requests for each subcommittee and account.

Our team learned that the House Appropriations Committee values quality projects,
so requests that are of high quality and well put together will have a higher chance
of being included.

As you will see, we also learned that the House Appropriations Committee is willing
to fund higher dollar requests than originally thought. When making a request,
please request the amount you can conceivably use, even if that number seems
higher than the average award for that account.

As we move forward this year, this guide will be updated with more lessons and
information.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal n





Community Project Funding Eligible
Accounts

Aqgriculture Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $195,341,506
Average Project Cost: $1,759,833.39
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Number of Requests: 111

For each Community Project Funding request, Members will be asked to respond to
a series of questions intended to provide transparency and ensure the project is a
valuable use of taxpayer funds.

Here are the specific pieces of information needed for the Agriculture bill:

1. The website address of the proposed recipient.

2. Ifthere are additional costs necessary to complete the project, have those
been secured?

3. For Rural Development projects, is the project for an eligible purpose and
does it meet all eligibility requirements under current law?

4. Does the entity plan to make grants to other entities from the funds provided
and if so, to whom?

5. Why is the project a priority for the district? Briefly explain the community
benefits.

6. Has any funding for the project been included in any presidential budget and
if so, how much, in which fiscal year, and in which agency or agencies and
program(s)?

7. Has the project received federal funding before and if so, how much, when,
and from which agency or agencies and program(s)?

8. For ARS B&F only, what is the estimated start date of the project? How soon
could the feasibility/engineering design phase commence? [mm/yy]

9. For ARS B&F only, does the project have distinct and separable phases?

10. For ARS B&F only, what is the estimated completion date of the project?
When does completion of construction occur? [mm/yy]

1. For ReConnect requests only, please provide relevant information, such as
the number of households, businesses, or farms that would be served, what
the performance of the service to be offered will be, and whether healthcare
or educational facilities will be served.

12. For Conservation Operations, briefly describe how the project will reduce soil
erosion, enhance water supplies, improve water quality, increase wildlife

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 12





habitat, or other objectives that will help conserve, maintain, and improve
natural resources.

Department of Agriculture

Community Facilities Grants

In FY 22

Total Funding: $112,036,714
Average Project Cost: $1,302,752
Median Project Cost: $911,969
Highest Request: $7,000,000
Lowest Request: $16,800
Number of Requests: 86

Grants to purchase, construct, or improve essential commmunity facilities, to purchase
equipment, and pay other related project expenses. Essential community facilities
include, but are not limited to, healthcare facilities, public facilities, public safety
measures, educational services, or other community support services. Examples of
eligible projects include medical or dental clinics, towns halls, courthouses, childcare
centers, police or fire departments, public works vehicles, or distance learning
equipment. Any project must serve a rural area as specified in 7 CFR 3570.53 (rural
areas including cities, villages, townships and Federally Recognized Tribal lands with
no more than 20,000 residents), and the Member's request must demonstrate
community support. Requests should ensure that their request provides the fullest
description of the project as possible. Submissions should include details on all
proposed uses of funds, activities that will occur, timeline, and detailed information
on the complete service territory, including median household income of the
proposed project.

Please review all program regulations carefully, most notably:

e Cost share requirements. The Community Facilities program has a cost share
calculated on a graduated scale. The applicant should be aware of any cost
share as documented in 7 CFR 3570.63(b).

e Credit Elsewhere Test. Applicants shall certify they cannot finance the project
from their own resources and credit is not otherwise available on reasonable
terms from non-Federal sources.

Community Facilities grants generally cannot be used to pay initial operating
expenses or annual recurring expenses, refinance existing debt, pay interest, build or
repair facilities in non-rural areas, or pay for construction costs of facilities that will be
used for commmercial rental space.

The State Rural Development Office is a valuable resource to answer program
guestions, including eligibility.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 13





For fiscal year 2022, the average CPF funding level was just over $1 million. Please note
that the Committee will consider higher project requests for fiscal year 2023.
However, projects requesting significantly more than that average may be more
difficult to fund and funding will depend on program demand and other variables.
Any future potential project caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the
full universe of requests.

ReConnect Program

In FY 22

Total Funding: $36,604,792
Average Project Cost: $1,926,568
Median Project Cost: $1,500,000
Highest Request: $4,000,198
Lowest Request: $212,022
Number of Requests: 19

ReConnect broadband pilot grants facilitate broadband deployment in rural areas.
Grant funding can be used for the costs of construction, improvement, or acquisition
of facilities and equipment needed to provide broadband service to rural areas
without sufficient broadband access, which is defined as 10 Mbps downstream and 1
Mbps upstream.

The area must be rural and lack sufficient access to broadband service. A rural area is
any area which is not located within: (1) A city, town, or incorporated area that has a
population of greater than 20,000 inhabitants; or (2) an urbanized area contiguous
and adjacent to a city or town that has a population of greater than 50,000
inhabitants. Sufficient access to broadband is defined as greater than 90% of any rural
area in which households have fixed, terrestrial broadband service delivering at least
10 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstream. Mobile and satellite services will not be
considered in making the determination of sufficient access to broadband.

Stand-alone, middle-mile projects are not eligible under the ReConnect Program.
However, middle-mile facilities are eligible if they are needed to bring sufficient
broadband service to all premises in the area.

It is strongly recommended that Community Project Funding requests include
specific information, such as the number of households, businesses, or farms that
would be served in the area, what the performance of the service to be offered would
be, and whether healthcare or educational facilities would be served.

USDA's Rural Development is a valuable resource to answer program questions,
including eligibility.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 14





For fiscal year 2022, the average ReConnect CPF award was nearly $2 million. Please
note the subcommittee will consider higher project requests for fiscal year 2023.
However, projects requesting significantly more than that average may be more
difficult to fund and funding will depend on program demand and other variables.
Any future potential project caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the
full universe of requests.

Additionally, when submitting a request, requestors are reminded that all policies
and procedures apply, including environmental and related reviews and the cost
share requirement of 25% of the overall project cost. Policies and procedures can be
found at https://go.usa.gov/xexPT.

Distance Learning and Telemedicine Grants
*This is a new account for FY 23*

The Distance Learning and Telemedicine program (DLT) helps rural residents better
utilize the enormous potential of modern telecommunications and the internet for
education and healthcare, two critical components of economic and community
development. The DLT program helps rural commmunities acquire the technology and
training necessary to connect educational and medical professionals with students,
teachers, and patients in rural areas.

Grants may be used for audio and video equipment, broadband facilities that support
distance learning or telemedicine (not actual broadband), computer hardware or
network components/software, and acquisition of instructional programming.

All requests are subject to all the regulations governing the program which can be
found at 7 CFR Part 1734. The program requires a 15% match that cannot come from
another federal source. The State Rural Development Office is a valuable resource to
answer program qguestions, including eligibility.

Competitive awards typically range from $50,000 to $1,000,000 and the Committee
will consider projects in this range. This a new account for the fiscal 2023 House
process; in fiscal year 2022, the average Senate CPF in this account was $359,000.
Requestors are strongly encouraged to provide as much detail as possible on how
the award will be utilized, what equipment of service will be acquired and any
information on population(s) served. The program is intended to serve rural areas
with populations of 20,000 or less.

Agricultural Research Service, Buildings and Facilities

In FY 22
Total Funding: $46,700,000
Average Project Cost: $7,783,333

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 15



https://go.usa.gov/xexPT



Median Project Cost: $4,350,000
Highest Request: $20,000,000
Lowest Request: $4,000,000
Number of Requests: 6

The Agricultural Research Service (ARS) owns and operates laboratories and facilities
across the United States. Many of these laboratories/facilities are decades old, have
outlived their functional lifespan, and are badly in need of major repairs, renovation,
or replacement. Facility requests must be for ARS-owned facilities or for facilities that
will enhance ongoing ARS work. Requests can assist in the acquisition of land,
construction, repair, improvement, extension, alteration, and purchase of fixed
equipment or facilities as necessary to carry out the agricultural research programs
of the Department of Agriculture. It is strongly encouraged that Community Project
Funding requests include details on the research to be conducted, why the research
is a high priority, as well as details on the modernization and why it is critical in
carrying out the research. Requests for ARS-owned facilities will be given priority for
funding.

https://www.ars.usda.gov/about-ars/

Natural Resources Conservation Service, Conservation Operations
*This is a new account for FY 23*

The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) supports private landowners,
conservation districts, and other organizations to conserve, maintain, and improve
the Nation's natural resources. Conservation Operations has four major program
components: Conservation Technical Assistance, Soil Survey, Snow Survey and Water
Supply Forecasting, and Plant Materials Centers. Examples of specific objectives
include reduce soil erosion, improve soil health, enhance water supplies, improve
water quality, increase wildlife habitat, and reduce damage caused by floods and
other natural disasters. Due to the newness of the urban agriculture program, the
subcommittee will not consider such proposals this year as part of CPFs in
Conservation Operations.

It is strongly encouraged to provide details on the work to be done, including if the
project will conduct surveys, investigations, or research, and if there is a plan to
publish the results of any such work. Requests should also describe any preventive
measures to be taken, such as engineering operations,methods of cultivation, or
changes in use of land.

This is a new account for the fiscal year 2023 House process; in fiscal year 2022, the
average Senate CPF in this account was $1.1 million. The Committee will consider
higher project requests for fiscal year 2023. However, projects requesting significantly
more than that average may be more difficult to accommodate and will depend on

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 16



https://www.ars.usda.gov/about-ars/



program demand and other variables. Any future potential project caps will be
determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe of requests.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 17





Commerce, Justice, and Science Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $189,350,000
Average Project Cost: $884,813
Median Project Cost: $550,000
Number of Requests: 214

Department of Justice

State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance - Byrne Justice Assistance
Grant (JAQ)

In FY 22

Total Funding: $100,754,000
Average Project Cost: $763,288
Median Project Cost: $526,000
Highest Request: $5,000,000
Lowest Request: $4,000
Number of Requests: 132

Byrne JAG Grants assist state, local, and tribal law enforcement efforts to prevent
crime, improve the criminal justice system, provide victims' services, and other
related activities. Community projects funded under this category must comply
with the requirements cited in JAG statutes and be consistent with US.
Department of Justice guidance for the program. Below are the links to the
Department's guidance and frequently asked questions regarding Byrne-JAG:

https://bja.ojp.gov/program/jag/overview

https://bja.ojp.gov/sites/qg/files/xyckuh186/files/media/document/jag-fags.pdf

The House Appropriations Committee encourages community project funding
designed to help improve police-community relations. Historically, the House
Appropriations Committee has not funded vehicles or building construction or
renovation as part of commmunity project funding under this account. Note the
Committee may consider similar or higher project amounts for FY 23. Any caps will
be determined after reviewing the full universe of requests, and while there are no
guarantees, projects of a modest size are more likely to receive full funding.

Requestors submitting Byrne JAG project requests are required to submit answers
to the following additional questions. Failure to complete all required questions will
result in an incomplete project request. Incomplete project requests will not be
considered for community project funds.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 18





Please describe, with as much specificity as possible, the overall objectives of
the proposed project and how the requested funds would be spent to achieve
those goals.

If a non-profit, is the recipient entity a non-profit organization as described
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from
tax under section 501(a) of such code?

Please provide the location of this project, in the format ‘City (or County), State’.
Is the requested project currently authorized in law? If yes, please provide a
specific legal citation of such authorization.

Are the proposed project activities consistent with the activities of the Federal
agency? [yes/no]

o |If yes, please describe how these activities are consistent with the
activities of the Federal Agency. If not, why is the project being
requested?

Has the project been funded in the past? [yes/no]

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, how much funding has been
provided to date?

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, were such funds provided for
discrete, severable activities?

Please specify any non-Federal sources of funding that have been or are fully
anticipated to be applied toward the project, including any dollar amounts and
timelines for funding.

Is the proposed recipient currently in material non-compliance of a prior grant
award made by the proposed Federal funding agency? [yes/no]

Recognizing that the Appropriations Committee may not be able to provide
the full amount of funding requested, can this project spend a smaller amount
of appropriated funds within 12 months of the enactment of the
Appropriations Act? If yes, please provide any details that may be helpful for
understanding the scalability of the project.

Is this proposed project a priority for the local community? [yes/no]

o If the project is not a priority for the local community, why is it being

requested?
Please describe the current developmental status of this project.
What is the estimated impact of this project, eg. number of jobs
created/sustained, number of community members served, other projected
impacts?
Is the intended recipient a for-profit entity? [yes/no]
Are you aware of another Member making a request for this same project?
Have you submitted this request to any other Member of Congress or Senator?
[yes/no]
Regarding this request, please provide any additional information that would
be useful for the Appropriations Committee to have.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 19





e Is this request consistent with all current statutory and regulatory
requirements of Byrne Justice Assistance Grant recipients and subrecipients?
[yes/no]

Is this project intended to serve primarily youth under age 18? [yes/no]
Is this request to fund the acquisition of property or the construction or
renovation of a building? [yes/no]

e Hasthe intended recipient received any COPS or Byrne-JAG funds at any time
in the past ten years? [yes/no]

o Ifyes, in what fiscal years and for what purposes?

Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) - Technology and
Equipment

In FY 22

Total Funding: $55,766,000
Average Project Cost: $1,186,511
Median Project Cost: $540,000
Highest Request: $8,245,000
Lowest Request: $25,000
Number of Requests: 47

Funding will be provided for community project grants for State, local, and tribal law
enforcement to develop and acquire effective technologies and interoperable
communications that assist in investigating, responding to, and preventing crime,
provided that such equipment meets the applicable requirements of the National
Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Office of Law Enforcement Standards
(OLES).

This funding will allow recipients the opportunity to establish and enhance any of
a variety of technical equipment and/or programs to encourage the continuation
and enhancement of community policing efforts within their jurisdictions. These
projects should help improve police effectiveness and the flow of information
among law enforcement agencies, local government service providers, and the
communities they serve.

Historically, the Committee has not funded vehicles or building construction or
renovation as part of community project funding under this account. Recipients of
community project funding under this account may not subgrant to other
organizations or agencies. Note the Committee may consider similar or higher
project amounts for FY 23. Any caps will be determined after reviewing the full
universe of requests, and while there are no guarantees, projects of a modest size are
more likely to receive full funding.

Requestors submitting COPS project requests are required to submit answers to the
following additional questions. Failure to complete all required questions will result

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 20





in an incomplete project request. Incomplete project requests will not be considered
for community project funds.

Please describe, with as much specificity as possible, the overall objectives of
the proposed project and how the requested funds would be spent to achieve
those goals.

If a non-profit, is the recipient entity a non-profit organization as described
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from
tax under section 501(a) of such code?

Please provide the location of this project, in the format ‘City (or County), State’.
Is the requested project currently authorized in law? If yes, please provide a
specific legal citation of such authorization.

Are the proposed project activities consistent with the activities of the Federal
agency? [yes/no]

o |If yes, please describe how these activities are consistent with the
activities of the Federal Agency. If not, why is the project being
requested?

Has the project been funded in the past? [yes/no]

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, how much funding has been
provided to date?

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, were such funds provided for
discrete, severable activities?

Please specify any non-Federal sources of funding that have been or are fully
anticipated to be applied toward the project, including any dollar amounts and
timelines for funding.

Is the proposed recipient currently in material non-compliance of a prior grant
award made by the proposed Federal funding agency? [yes/no]

Recognizing that the Appropriations Committee may not be able to provide
the full amount of funding requested, can this project spend a smaller amount
of appropriated funds within 12 months of the enactment of the
Appropriations Act? If yes, please provide any details that may be helpful for
understanding the scalability of the project.

Is this proposed project a priority for the local community? [yes/no]

o If the project is not a priority for the local commmunity, why is it being

requested?
Please describe the current developmental status of this project.
What is the estimated impact of this project, e.g. number of jobs
created/sustained, number of community members served, other projected
impacts?
Is the intended recipient a for-profit entity? [yes/no]
Are you aware of another Member making a request for this same project?
Have you submitted this project to another Member of Congress or Senator?

[yes/no]

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 21





e Regarding this request, please provide any additional information that would
be useful for the Appropriations Committee to have.
e Is this request to fund the acquisition of property or the construction or
renovation of a building? [yes/no]
e Hasthe intended recipient received any COPS or Byrne-JAG funds at any time
in the past ten years? [yes/no]
o Ifyes, in what fiscal years and for what purposes?

Department of Commerce

NIST Scientific and Technical Research and Services (STRS)
*This is a new account for FY 23*

Funding must be for activities consistent with and supportive of NIST's mission and
within its authorities, such as STEM education activities, scientific research, or other
activities that support American manufacturing and industry.

The median award in this account for FY 22 was $1,250,000. Note the Committee may
consider similar or higher project amounts for FY 23. Any caps will be determined
after reviewing the full universe of requests, and while there are no guarantees,
projects of a modest size are more likely to receive full funding. This account does not
fund vehicles or building construction or renovation.

Requestors submitting NIST STRS community project requests are required to
submit answers to the following additional questions. Failure to complete all required
guestions will result in an incomplete project request. Incomplete project requests
will not be considered for community project funds.

e Please describe, with as much specificity as possible, the overall objectives of
the proposed project and how the requested funds would be spent to achieve
those goals.

e If a non-profit, is the recipient entity a non-profit organization as described

under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from
tax under section 501(a) of such code?
Please provide the location of this project, in the format ‘City (or County), State’.
Is the requested project currently authorized in law? If yes, please provide a
specific legal citation of such authorization. Are the proposed project activities
consistent with the activities of the Federal agency? [yes/no]

o |If yes, please describe how these activities are consistent with the
activities of the Federal Agency. If not, why is the project being
requested?

e Hasthe project been funded in the past? [yes/no]

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 22





o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, how much funding has been
provided to date?

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, were such funds provided for
discrete, severable activities?

e Please specify any non-Federal sources of funding that have been or are fully
anticipated to be applied toward the project, including any dollar amounts and
timelines for funding.

e Isthe proposed recipient currently in material non-compliance of a prior grant
award made by the proposed Federal funding agency? [yes/no]

e Recognizing that the Appropriations Committee may not be able to provide
the full amount of funding requested, can this project spend a smaller amount
of appropriated funds within 12 months of the enactment of the
Appropriations Act? If yes, please provide any details that may be helpful for
understanding the scalability of the project.

e s this proposed project a priority for the local community? [yes/no]

o If the project is not a priority for the local commmunity, why is it being
requested?
Please describe the current developmental status of this project.
What is the estimated impact of this project, e.g. number of jobs
created/sustained, number of community members served, other projected
impacts?
e Isthe intended recipient a for-profit entity? [yes/no]

NIST Construction of Research Facilities - Extramural Construction
*This is a hew account for FY 23*

This account funds the construction and renovation of research facilities, provided
that such facilities will be used in a manner that is aligned with and supportive of the
mission of NIST. The median award in this account was $10 million in FY 22, but this
account was not open to community project funding in the House in FY 22. Note the
Committee may consider lower project amounts for FY 23, and any caps will be
determined after reviewing the full universe of requests. Given the expectation of
limited resources and the large cost of research facilities, the Committee may not be
able to fully fund all requests. While there are no guarantees, preference will be given
to more modest requests.

Requestors submitting NIST Construction community project requests are required
to submit answers to the following additional questions. Failure to complete all
required questions will result in an incomplete project request. Incomplete project
requests will not be considered for community project funds.

e Please describe, with as much specificity as possible, the overall objectives of
the proposed project and how the requested funds would be spent to achieve
those goals.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 23





If a non-profit, is the recipient entity a non-profit organization as described
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from
tax under section 501(a) of such code?

Please provide the location of this project, in the format ‘City (or County), State’.
Is the requested project currently authorized in law? If yes, please provide a
specific legal citation of such authorization.

Are the proposed project activities consistent with the activities of the Federal
agency? [yes/no]

o If yes, please describe how these activities are consistent with the
activities of the Federal Agency. If not, why is the project being
requested?

Has the project been funded in the past? [yes/no]

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, how much funding has been
provided to date?

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, were such funds provided for
discrete, severable activities?

Please specify any non-Federal sources of funding that have been or are fully
anticipated to be applied toward the project, including any dollar amounts and
timelines for funding.

Is the proposed recipient currently in material non-compliance of a prior grant
award made by the proposed Federal funding agency? [yes/no]

Recognizing that the Appropriations Committee may not be able to provide
the full amount of funding requested, can this project spend a smaller amount
of appropriated funds within 12 months of the enactment of the
Appropriations Act? If yes, please provide any details that may be helpful for
understanding the scalability of the project.

Is this proposed project a priority for the local community? [yes/no]

o If the project is not a priority for the local community, why is it being

requested?
Please describe the current developmental status of this project.
What is the estimated impact of this project, eg. number of jobs
created/sustained, number of community members served, other projected
impacts?
Is the intended recipient a for-profit entity? [yes/no]
Are you aware of another Member of Congress making a request for this same
project? Have you submitted this project to another Member of Congress or
Senator? [yes/no]
Regarding this request, please provide any additional information that would
be useful for the Appropriations Committee to have.
Please provide a detailed budget and schedule timeline for the planned
construction or renovation project associated with this request.
Please explain how this project is aligned with the mission of NIST.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 24





National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Operations,
Research, and Facilities

In FY 22

Total Funding: $23,980,000
Average Project Cost: $799,333
Median Project Cost: $705,000
Highest Request: $2,000,000
Lowest Request: $100,000
Number of Requests: 30

Community project funding for NOAA will only be considered within the Operations,
Research, and Facilities account. This account does not fund construction projects,
and as such, any such requests will not be considered. Requests for funding will be
considered for research, demonstration, or education projects performed by external
partners or for prioritizing NOAA internal funds for geographically specific projects.
Any such project must be aligned with NOAA's mission and within their existing
authorities. Note the Committee may consider similar or higher project amounts for
FY 23. Any caps will be determined after reviewing the full universe of requests, and
while there are no guarantees, projects of a modest size are more likely to receive full
funding.

The subcommittee will not entertain requests for the Office of Marine and Aviation
Operations.

Coastal Zone Management funds are distributed to states on a formula basis and
will not be considered for community project funding.

Historically, the Committee has not funded vehicles or building construction or
renovation as part of community project funding under this account.

Requestors submitting NOAA Operations, Research, and Facilities community
project requests are required to submit answers to the following additional
guestions. Failure to complete all required questions will result in an incomplete
project request. Incomplete project requests will not be considered for community
project funds.

e Please describe, with as much specificity as possible, the overall objectives of
the proposed project and how the requested funds would be spent to achieve
those goals.

e If a non-profit, is the recipient entity a non-profit organization as described
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from
tax under section 501(a) of such code?

Please provide the location of this project, in the format ‘City (or County), State’'.
Is the requested project currently authorized in law? If yes, please provide a
specific legal citation of such authorization.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 25





Are the proposed project activities consistent with the activities of the Federal
agency? [yes/no]

o |If yes, please describe how these activities are consistent with the
activities of the Federal Agency. If not, why is the project being
requested?

Has the project been funded in the past? [yes/no]

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, how much funding has been
provided to date?

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, were such funds provided for
discrete, severable activities?

Please specify any non-Federal sources of funding that have been or are fully
anticipated to be applied toward the project, including any dollar amounts and
timelines for funding.

Is the proposed recipient currently in material non-compliance of a prior grant
award made by the proposed Federal funding agency? [yes/no]

Recognizing that the Appropriations Committee may not be able to provide
the full amount of funding requested, can this project spend a smaller amount
of appropriated funds within 12 months of the enactment of the
Appropriations Act? If yes, please provide any details that may be helpful for
understanding the scalability of the project.

Is this proposed project a priority for the local commmunity? [yes/no]

o If the project is not a priority for the local commmunity, why is it being

requested?
Please describe the current developmental status of this project.
What is the estimated impact of this project, e.g. number of jobs
created/sustained, number of community members served, other projected
impacts?
Is the intended recipient a for-profit entity? [yes/no]
Are you aware of another Member of Congress making a request for this same
project? Have you submitted this request to another Member of Congress or
Senator? [yes/no]
Regarding this request, please provide any additional information that would
be useful for the Appropriations Committee to have.
Has the intended recipient received any competitive grant funding or other
funding from NOAA at any time in the past ten years? [yes/no]

o Ifyes, in what fiscal years and for what purposes?

For any science research project request, please provide the name of the
individual who is anticipated to be the Principal Investigator for the research
project, as well as a link to such person's curriculum vitae, and a list of this
person's peer-reviewed publications related to the topic of the requested
research project.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 26





National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)

NASA Safety, Security, and Mission Services

In FY 22

Total Funding: $8,850,000
Average Project Cost: $1,770,000
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Highest Request: $5,000,000
Lowest Request: $650,000
Number of Requests: 5

Funding must be for activities consistent with and supportive of the work of NASA's
mission directorates and within the agency’s authorities, such as STEM education
activities and scientific research. Funding for building construction or renovation
projects will not be considered for community project funding. Note the Committee
may consider similar or higher project amounts for FY 23. Any caps will be
determined after reviewing the full universe of requests, and while there are no
guarantees, projects of a modest size are more likely to receive full funding.

Requestors submitting NASA Safety, Security, and Mission Services community
project requests are required to submit answers to the following additional
guestions. Failure to complete all required questions will result in an incomplete
project request. Incomplete project requests will not be considered for community
project funds.

e Please describe, with as much specificity as possible, the overall objectives of
the proposed project and how the requested funds would be spent to achieve
those goals.

e If a non-profit, is the recipient entity a non-profit organization as described
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from
tax under section 501(a) of such code?

Please provide the location of this project, in the format ‘City (or County), State’.
Is the requested project currently authorized in law? If yes, please provide a
specific legal citation of such authorization.

e Arethe proposed project activities consistent with the activities of the Federal
agency? [yes/no]

o |If yes, please describe how these activities are consistent with the
activities of the Federal Agency. If not, why is the project being
requested?

e Hasthe project been funded in the past? [yes/no]

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, how much funding has been
provided to date?

o Ifthe project has been funded in the past, were such funds provided for
discrete, severable activities?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 27





Please specify any non-Federal sources of funding that have been or are fully
anticipated to be applied toward the project, including any dollar amounts and
timelines for funding.
Is the proposed recipient currently in material non-compliance of a prior grant
award made by the proposed Federal funding agency? [yes/no]
Recognizing that the Appropriations Committee may not be able to provide
the full amount of funding requested, can this project spend a smaller amount
of appropriated funds within 12 months of the enactment of the
Appropriations Act? If yes, please provide any details that may be helpful for
understanding the scalability of the project.
Is this proposed project a priority for the local community? [yes/no]

o If the project is not a priority for the local commmunity, why is it being

requested?

Please describe the current developmental status of this project.
What is the estimated impact of this project, e.g. number of jobs
created/sustained, number of community members served, other projected
impacts?
Is the intended recipient a for-profit entity? [yes/no]
Are you aware of another Member making a request for this same project?
Have you submitted this project to any other Member of Congress or Senator?
[yes/no]
Regarding this request, please provide any additional information that would
be useful for the Appropriations Committee to have.
Is the project intended to serve primarily youth under age 182 [yes/no]
Has the intended recipient received any competitive grant funding or other
funding from NASA at any time in the past ten years? [yes/no]

o Ifyes, in what fiscal years and for what purposes?
For any science research project request, please provide the name of the
individual who is anticipated to be the Principal Investigator for the research
project, as well as a link to such person's curriculum vitae, and a list of this
person's peer-reviewed publications related to the topic of the requested
research project.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 28





Defense Subcommittee

The subcommittee will accept project requests in the following accounts:

Research, Development, Test, and Evaluation: Army
Research, Development, Test, and Evaluation: Navy
Research, Development, Test, and Evaluation: Air Force
Research, Development, Test, and Evaluation: Space Force
Research, Development, Test, and Evaluation: Defense-Wide

The subcommittee will not accept project requests in any other account.
Requestors will be asked to:

e Provide the name of the specific recipient for the project request and the
amount requested for fiscal year 2023.

e Provide a description of the desired outcome of the project and how it would
benefit the Department of Defense.

e List the line number and Program Element number proposed to fund the
project. This information can be found in the budget justification documents
that will be posted at https://comptroller.defense.gov/Budget-Materials/.
Disclose whether the project is being requested in another bill.

State whether the request is a new or existing project; if existing, whether it
previously received federal funds; and if so, identify the account, amount of
funding, and fiscal year.

Provide the total cost of the project.

List the required funding in future years and the source of that funding.
Determine whether the program could start in a limited capacity if the
Appropriations Committee cannot fully fund the request.

Project amounts in these accounts were funded between $200,000 and $4 million
in fiscal year 2022. Note that the Committee may consider similar project amounts
for fiscal year 2023. Any caps will be determined after reviewing the full universe of
requests.

Please be particularly mindful of the difference between program and Community
Project Funding requests. The following would be a program request, as it does not
list a specific recipient:

$1 million above the fiscal year 2023 budget request for RDT&E Army, line 2,
PE # 0601102A

Should a program request be funded, the Department of Defense or Services would
determine to whom and where funds would be awarded. Meanwhile, the following
would be a Community Project Funding request, as it lists a specific non-federal
recipient:

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 29



https://comptroller.defense.gov/Budget-Materials/



$1 million above the fiscal year 2023 budget request for RDT&E Army, line 2,
PE # 0601102A for the University of the District of Columbia to...

As a reminder, the Appropriations Committee will only consider requests meeting
certain guidelines, including that the recipient is a state or local government or
eligible non-profit. No requests for for-profit recipients will be considered.
Requestors must also provide evidence of community support that were
compelling factors in deciding to select the requested project.

Energy and Water Development Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $835,250,000
Average Project Cost: $7,733,796
Median Project Cost: $1,758,000
Number of Requests: 108

The subcommittee will only be considering requests in the following accounts:

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Investigations

Construction

Mississippi River and Tributaries

Operation and Maintenance

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
e \Water and Related Resources

Department of Energy
e Topics include:
o energy efficiency, renewable energy, sustainable transportation
cybersecurity, energy security, emergency response
electricity, energy storage
nuclear energy
fossil energy, carbon management, critical minerals

O O O O

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and Bureau of Reclamation

All requests for the Corps of Engineers (Corps) and Bureau of Reclamation
(Reclamation) accounts listed above should reflect a funding amount that can be
realistically utilized in FY23. This is referred to as the project’s “capability” for FY23. All
projects will be sent to the relevant agency for technical assistance, including

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 30





regarding project capability.. It is possible that approved Community Project Funding
requests will be funded at a level lower than the requested level.

If the scope of the request varies from the President's budget request (i.e. the Member
is seeking an amount above the budget request amount), then the request must be
submitted as a CPF request.

If the project is not included in the President’s budget request, the Member must
submit it as a CPF request.

Please note that for the Corps, the Subcommittee may provide funding for a very
limited number of new start projects, if any, in the Investigations, Construction, and
Mississippi River and Tributaries accounts. While requests for new starts in these
accounts will be accepted, please consider this limitation when making requests.

Please note that for the Corps, the Subcommittee may provide funding for a limited
number of Environmental Infrastructure (El) projects and Continuing Authorities
Program (CAP) projects, if any, in the Construction account. While requests for specific
projects will be accepted, please consider these limitations when making requests.
Please note that for Reclamation, projects authorized under sections 4007, 4009(a),
and 4009(c) of the Water Infrastructure Improvements Act for the Nation (WIIN) Act
of 2016 (Public Law 114-322) will not be accepted.

Requestors are encouraged to keep in mind that only a very limited number of new
start projects will be considered, if any, in the Investigations, Construction, and
Mississippi River and Tributaries accounts. Similarly, requestors are encouraged to
keep in mind that only a very limited number of Environmental Infrastructure
projects, if any, will be considered in the Construction account. A very limited number
of Continuing Authorities Program projects will be considered in the Construction
account. Projects authorized under sections 4007, 4009(a), and 4009(c) of the Water
Infrastructure Improvements Act for the Nation (WIIN) Act of 2016 (Public Law 114-322)
will not be accepted.

Supplemental Questions:

1. Please provide the official project name as assigned by the Corps or
Reclamation. You can find the project name from the previously mentioned
lists of authorized projects or through working in consultation with your local
Corps District or Reclamation Region office.

2. Please provide the project authorization. You can contact your local Corps
District or Reclamation Region office for this information.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 31





a. Ifmaking a request for a Continuing Authorities Program (CAP) project,
please provide the specific Continuing Authorities Program section
applicable to your project request (i.e. “204", “1135", etc.).

b. If making a request for an Environmental Infrastructure (El) project,
please provide the El program authorization, including the Public Law
and specific section number (i.e. Section 595 of Public Law 106-53).

3. Ifmaking a Corps request, please provide the name of the Corps District where
the project is located. If making a Reclamation request, please provide the
name of the Reclamation Region where the project is located.

Investigations in FY 22
Total Funding: $29,625,000
Average Project Cost: $955645
Median Project Cost: $650,000

Highest Request: $3,693,000
Lowest Request: $200,000
Number of Requests: 31

Construction in FY 22
Total Funding: $553,630,000

Average Project Cost: $18,454,333
Median Project Cost: $4,500,000
Highest Request: $350,000,000
Lowest Request: $75,000
Number of Requests: 30

Mississippi River and Tributaries in
FY 22
Total Funding: $27,333,000
Average Project Cost: $9,111,000
Median Project Cost: $5000,000
Highest Request: $19,333,000
Lowest Request: $3,000,000
Number of Requests: 3

Operation and Maintenance in FY 22
Total Funding: $134,521,000
Average Project Cost: $5173,885
Median Project Cost: $3,451,000
Highest Request: $32,720,000
Lowest Request: $124,000
Number of Request: 26

Bureau of Reclamation in FY 22
Total Funding: $88,341,000
Average Project Cost: $9,815667
Median Project Cost: $2,000,000

Highest Request: $67,342,000
Lowest Request: $500,000
Number of Requests: 9

Section 103 in FY 22
Total Funding: $100,000

Average Project Cost: $50,000
Number of Requests: 2

Section 107 in FY 22
Total Funding: $1,050,000
Average Project Cost: $525000
Number of Requests: 2

Section 135 in FY 22
Total Funding: $300,000
Number of Requests: 1

Section 14 in FY 22
Total Funding: $100,000
Number of Requests: 1

Section 205 in FY 22
Total Funding: $250,000

Average Project Cost: $83333
Number of Requests: 3

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 32





Department of Energy

*Department of Energy CPF Requests are new to FY 23*

All CPF requests for the Department of Energy (DOE) should reflect a funding
amount that can complete the project or complete a discrete segment of the project.
In the event that the Subcommittee cannot fully fund your request, information is
required to be provided about a minimum funding level that could be realistically
utilized in FY23 to advance the project or complete a discrete segment of the project.
If the minimum amount exceeds available funding, then the project may not be
funded. The number of projects and the amount will be limited. In FY10, the last year
these DOE CPFs were included in the House, House projects selected for funding
received $740,000 on average, 7 and the range of funding was approximately $75,000
to $3 million. Note that the Committee may consider similar or slightly lower amounts
for FY23,and any caps will be determined after reviewing the full universe of requests.
Members should not expect that every request will be able to be funded or funded in
full.

Given the ban on directing Community Project Funding to for-profit entities, projects
with for-profit entities as a recipient are not allowed. In addition, funds may not be
used to support building construction (no brick and mortar). Electric vehicle (EV)
charging station projects will not be considered unless there is a renewable energy
or energy storage connection to the charging station. Please direct questions about
any other EV charging station request to the Transportation, and Housing and Urban
Development Subcommittee.

Statutory cost sharing requirements may apply to these projects, as required by
section 988 of the Energy Policy Act of 2005. The amount of required cost sharing will
depend on the scope and technological maturity of the project:

e Research or development activities of a basic or fundamental nature: no
mMinimum cost share

e Research or development activities of an applied nature: minimum 20 percent
cost share

e Demonstration or commercial application: minimum 50 percent cost share

Some projects may contain elements of more than one of the categories shown
above. Therefore, some projects may have a blended cost share. It is recommended
that you ensure the requested recipient is aware of and can meet applicable cost
sharing requirements prior to submitting a CPF request.

Supplemental Questions:

1. Please provide an explanation of the benefit of the project to addressing the
nation's energy challenges. This should not repeat the Project Description

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 33





already provided.

Please indicate if the requested funding completes the project. As a reminder,
all requests for DOE should reflect a funding amount that can complete the
project or complete a discrete segment of the project. If the Subcommittee
cannot fully fund your request, information is required to be provided about a
funding level that could be realistically utilized in FY23 to advance the project
or complete a discrete segment of the project.

Please provide the minimum amount of funding, or smallest useful increment
of funding, that could be used to advance the project or complete a discrete
segment of the project if the full requested amount is not available. If the
minimum amount exceeds available funding, then the project may not be
funded.

Please select which type of project it is. The types of projects are:

a. Basic or fundamental science: for research or development activities of
a basic or fundamental nature

b. Applied research and development:. for research or development
activities of an applied nature

c. Demonstration or commercial: for demonstration or commercial
application activities

d. Combination:for projects that contain elements of more than one of the
categories above You will be required to provide an explanation

e. Other: You will be required to provide an explanation

Please provide an explanation if “combination” or “other” was selected for the
previous question.

a. If “combination” was selected, please list each relevant category of the
project.

b. If “other” was selected, provide an explanation of how the project does
not fit into the categories of the previous question but still meets the
mission of the Department of Energy.

Please indicate yes or no if the recipient has the ability to meet the statutory
cost sharing requirements that may apply to the project. As a reminder,
statutory cost sharing requirements may apply to the project, as required by
section 988 of the Energy Policy Act of 2005. Additional information about cost
sharing requirements is provided above.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 34





Financial Services and General Government
Subcommittee

General Services Administration

Federal Buildings Fund - New Construction, Major Repairs & Alterations
& Basic Repairs Account

*This is a new account for FY 23*

Projects are limited to line items in the GSA Federal Buildings Fund requested by the
Administration in either the FY22 or FY23 budget request. This account was not
eligible for community project funding in the House in FY22 but was eligible for
community project funding in the Senate. The awards in FY22 ranged from $500,000
to $50 million. Note that the Committee may consider a similar project range for
FY23, and any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Supplemental Questions:

Does the public have access to the building the project will be completed in?
Can this project be executed by a small business?

Does this request augment an existing Basic Repairs project?

Has a Major Alteration and Repairs project been completed at this site in the
last three years?

5. Community engagement and support is crucial in determining which projects
are worthy of Federal funding. To that end, please describe or include evidence
of community support that were compelling factors in the Member's decision
to submit this project request. Please include any relevant links to information
posted on your website, or online, including letters of support as well as a list
of any material you are uploading.

INNOINEES

National Archives and Records Administration

National Historical Publications and Records Commission
*This is a hew account for FY 23*

Projects that help ensure online public discovery and use of historical records
collections, encourage public engagement with historical records, strengthen the
nation’s archival network, or publish documentary editions of historical records.
Generally, projects should comply with the eligibility requirements for existing

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 35





National Historical Publications and Records Commission grants programs as
specified at https://www.archives.gov/nhprc/apply/eligibility.html. This account was
not eligible for community project funding in the House in FY22 but was eligible for
equivalent funding in the Senate. The average award in FY22 was just under
$500,000. Note that the Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts for
FY23, and any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Supplemental Questions:

1.

o

10.

.

12.

13.

How will this project directly help ensure online public discovery and use of
historical records collections, encourage public engagement with historical
records, strengthen the nation’s archival network, or publish documentary
editions of historical records?

Please provide a detailed spend plan for the requested funding, breaking
down anticipated expenditures for each major category of project activity.
Are there matching funds associated with the requested funds? If yes, please
list the source(s) and amount(s).

If the request does not fully fund the project, describe where the remaining
funding comes from to fund the project.

If the Appropriations Committee is not able to provide the full amount of
funding requested, can this project start in a limited capacity?

Is this a new or ongoing project? If it is an ongoing project, please provide a
history of funding for the project, including Federal, state, or local government;
non-profit; corporate.

Will the funds go to an organization that will make sub-grants of those funds
to other organizations? If yes, please list the sub-grantees.

Is this a capital project or will any funds support operating costs?

Who will oversee the administration/management of the project and what
accountability measures will be in place to ensure the appropriate use of
taxpayer funds?

What performance standards will be used to evaluate whether the program or
project supported by the funds meets its mission?

Has the organization or any potential sub-grantees been subject to sanction
or litigation by State, local, or Federal governments in the past five years? If yes,
please provide details.

Has the organization received funding from the National Archives and Records
Administration in the past 5 years? If yes, please provide details on the
amount(s) and purpose(s) for which these funds were received.

Community engagement and support is crucial in determining which projects
are worthy of Federal funding. To that end, please describe or include evidence
of community support that were compelling factors in the Member's decision
to submit this project request. Please include any relevant links to information

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 36



https://www.archives.gov/nhprc/apply/eligibility.html



posted on your website, or onling, including letters of support as well as a list
of any material you are uploading.

Small Business Administration

Small Business Initiatives

In FY 22

Total Funding: $32,424,945
Average Project Cost: $589,544
Median Project Cost: $500,000
Highest Request: $1,000,000
Lowest Request: $50,000
Number of Requests: 55

Projects in support of small businesses, including but not limited to entrepreneur
training, workforce development, counseling, research, and construction or
acquisition of facilities. The average award in this account for FY22 was $650,000.
Note the Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts for FY23, and any
caps Wwill be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe of requests.

Supplemental Questions:

1.

2.

O @

10.

How will this project directly benefit small businesses and/or entrepreneurs at
the local, regional, and/or national level?

Please provide a detailed spend plan for the requested funding, breaking
down anticipated expenditures for each major category of project activity.
Are there matching funds associated with the requested funds? If yes, please
list the source(s) and amount(s).

If the request does not fully fund the project, describe where the remaining
funding comes from to fund the project.

If the Appropriations Committee is not able to provide the full amount of
funding requested, can this project start in a limited capacity? {yes/no}

Is this a new or ongoing project? If it is an ongoing project, please provide a
history of funding for the project, including Federal, state, or local government;
non-profit; corporate.

Will the funds go to an organization that will make sub-grants of those funds
to other organizations? If yes, please list the sub-grantees.

Is the project a capital project or will the funds support operating costs?

Who will oversee the administration/management of the project and what
accountability measures will be in place to ensure the appropriate use of
taxpayer funds?

What performance standards will be used to evaluate whether the program or
project supported by the funds meets its mission?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 37





1.

12.

13.

Has the organization or any potential sub-grantees been subject to sanction
or litigation by State, local, or Federal governments in the past five years? If yes,
please provide details.

Has the organization received funding from the Small Business Administration
in the past 3 years? If yes, please provide details on the amount(s) and
purpose(s) for which these funds were received.

Community engagement and support is crucial in determining which projects
are worthy of Federal funding. To that end, please describe or include evidence
of community support that were compelling factors in the Member's decision
to submit this project request. You may include any relevant links to
information posted on your website, or online, including letters of support.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 38





Homeland Security Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $149,452,686
Average Project Cost: $2,019,631
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Number of Requests: 74

Department of Homeland Security

Pre-Disaster Mitigation Projects

In FY 22

Total Funding: $127,867,283
Average Project Cost: $2,906,075
Median Project Cost: $1,500,000
Highest Request: $9,950,000
Lowest Request: $187,500
Number of Requests: 44

Only projects that meet the requirements detailed in the most recent Notice of
Funding Opportunity for the Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities
(BRIC) grant program will be considered for funding, including the cost-share
requirement and environmental and historic preservation requirements, as
applicable. For any projects designated for funding in the final fiscal year 2023
Homeland Security Appropriations Act, the state agency responsible for
administering mitigation grants in the requestor’s state must submit an application
to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and that entity will serve as the
administrative agent for the grant. Therefore, all project proposals must be
accompanied by a letter of support from the appropriate state agency affirming that
it believes the project is eligible.

Please pay careful attention to FEMA's eligibility requirements when answering the
following questions:

1. Is the requesting jurisdiction a state, Indian tribal government, local
government, or territory as defined by section 102 of the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5122)7?

2. Is the proposed project eligible under the most recent Notice of Funding
Opportunity for the Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities grant
program?

3. Can the requesting jurisdiction provide the required non-federal cost share, as
detailed in the NOFO?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 39





10.

1.

12.
13.

14.
15.

6.

17.

18.

If less than the requested amount were provided as the federal share, would
additional state local, or other eligible funding sources be available to support
the project?

Can the requesting jurisdiction provide a Cost-Benefit Analysis or other
documentation that validates cost-effectiveness, which is defined by FEMA as
having a Benefit-Cost Ratio (BCA) of 1.0 or greater? A non-FEMA BCA
methodology may only be used if preapproved by FEMA in writing.

Is the entity that will benefit from the proposed activity covered by the current
FEMAapproved multi-hazard mitigation plan in compliance with 44 CFR Part
201? If so, what is the Final FEMA Approval date.

How will the project provide long-term permanent risk-reduction, as opposed
to simply supporting emergency protective measures?

Can the recipient describe how the project supports the needs of vulnerable
populations?

Does the recipient specifically encourage the adoption and enforcement of the
latest disaster resistant building codes?

Provide a clear and detailed description of the proposed mitigation activity.
How will the mitigation activity be implemented?

Who will manage and complete the mitigation activity?

What risks will remain from all hazards after project implementation (i.e,
residual risk)?

How does the project take into account future conditions?

Has the project has been submitted to current or previous competitive BRIC
funding cycles?

a. Ifthe answer to the previous question is yes, what is the subgrant ID?
Community engagement and support is crucial in determining which projects
are worthy of federal funding. Please describe or include evidence of
community support that were compelling factors in the Member’s decision to
submit this project request, including letters of support and any relevant links
to information posted on the Member's website or other online sources.

Has the community consulted with state/county/local emergency
management officials or with FEMA about the proposed project?

a. If the answer to the previous question is yes, please provide name

agency and contact information.
Is there or will there be a letter from the appropriate state officials confirming
that should the project be approved the appropriate state agency is willing and
able to serve as the recipient for the grant?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 40





Emergency Operations Center Grant Program

In FY 22

Total Funding: $21,435,403
Average Project Cost: $739,152
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Highest Request: $1,000,000
Lowest Request: $36,000
Number of Requests: 29

Only projects that meet the requirements detailed in the most recent Notice of
Funding Opportunity for the Emergency Operations Center Grant Program,
including the cost-share requirement and environmental and historic preservation
requirements, as applicable, will be considered for funding. For any projects
designated for funding in the final fiscal year 2023 Homeland Security
Appropriations Act, the respective state administrative agency (SAA) must submit
an application to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and that agency
will serve as the administrative agent for the grant. Therefore, all project proposals
must be accompanied by a letter of support from the appropriate SSA affirming
that it believes the project is eligible.

Please pay careful attention to FEMA's eligibility requirements when answering the
following questions:

1. Is the requesting jurisdiction a state, Indian tribal government, or local
government as defined by section 102 or 602 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 USC 5122, 519537

2. Is the proposed project eligible under the most recent Notice of Funding
Opportunity for the Emergency Operations Center Grant Program? (For
EOCs, the fiscal year 2011 NOFO is the most recent))

3. Can the requesting jurisdiction provide the required 25 percent non-federal
cost share?

4. If less than the requested amount were provided as the federal share, would
additional state local, or other eligible funding sources be available to support
the project?

5. Is the requestor in a position to enhance their emergency management
capabilities and address their Emergency Operations Center needs?

6. Is the proposed project related to a structure or facility that meets the
definition of an EOC, to include supporting incident management (on-scene)
operations across multiple functional disciplines and/or jurisdictions?

7. Isthe facility (or will the facility) be the primary Emergency Operations Center
for the jurisdiction?

8. Community engagement and support is crucial in determining which
projects are worthy of federal funding. Please describe or include evidence of

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 41





10.

community support that were compelling factors in the Member's decision
to submit this project request, including letters of support and any relevant
links to information posted on the Member's website or other online sources.
Has the community consulted with state/county/local emergency
management officials or with FEMA about the proposed project?

a. If the answer to the previous question is yes, please provide name

agency and contact information.

Is there or will there be a letter from the appropriate state officials confirming
that should the project be approved the appropriate state agency is willing
and able to serve as the recipient for the grant?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 42





Interior and Environment Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $443,928,695
Average Project Cost: $1,441327
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Number of Requests: 308

Department of the Interior

For each community project funding request, Member offices will need to submit
the following information:

Amount requested

Total project cost

FY 2023 President’s Budget Request (if applicable).

FY 2022 enacted level (if applicable).

Can the project obligate all of the appropriated funds within 12 months after

enactment (yes/no)?

e Was this request submitted to another subcommittee this fiscal year, and if
so, which one?

e Estimated start and completion dates for the project.

Save America’s Treasures (SAT) through the National Park Service
*This is a new account for FY 23*

The Save America's Treasures grant program is for preservation and/or conservation
work on nationally significant collections and historic properties. The SAT program
falls under the purview of the Historic Preservation Fund account and was
established in 1998 to celebrate America's premier cultural resources in the new
millennium (Public Law 113-287, Section 308902, 128 Stat. 3244, 54 USC 3089 et seq.).
The existing competitive grant program funds two categories of projects: awards
managed by the National Park Service (NPS) for preservation projects at properties
listed in the National Register of Historic Places for national significance or
designated a National Historic Landmark; and awards managed by the Institute of
Museum and Library Services for projects involving nationally significant collections
(including artifacts, museum collections, documents, sculptures, and other works of
art).

To be considered for Community Project Funding, each applicant must provide
information consistent with competitive application requirements. All grant
recipients must comply with relevant requirements for recipients of Federal financial
assistance and program-specific requirements found here on NPS's SAT website.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 43



https://www.nps.gov/subjects/historicpreservationfund/sat-grant-info.htm



Consistent with prior years, Members are encouraged to consider a project funding
threshold of up to $500,000 when making requests in this account. This a new
account for the FY23 House process.

All SAT grants require a dollar-for-dollar non-federal matching share. Recipients of
any SAT project funded in the Interior bill must be able to match the amount
provided. The property must be on the National Register of Historic Places in order to
be eligible to receive funding. Grants are not available for work on sites or collections
owned by the NPS. Other federal agencies working with a nonprofit partner to
preserve the historic properties or collections owned by the federal agency may
submit applications through the partner. If the project has received previous
appropriations, it is not eligible. A building or structure may only receive one SAT
grant. Previous SAT projects can be viewed here: https://go.nps.gov/satmap.

If the historic structure has been moved, it is probably not eligible for funding. It is
best to ask the State Historic Preservation Officer if the proposed work meets the
Secretary of Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Buildings
(https://ncshpo.org/). Work that has already been done prior to SAT funding may have
had an adverse effect on the historic features of the building and make it ineligible
for the National Register and for SAT funding.

Contractors for the project must be competitively selected, as stipulated under
Government- wide Grants Requirements set by OMB. New construction is not
eligible. The SAT grant program was created to preserve nationally significant
properties by repairing them, not adding to or changing them.

Demolition of an historic building or significant changes to it are not eligible projects
under the SAT grant program. The sponsors of this project must agree to a
preservation easement or covenant. The National Park Service not only pays for the
work to fix the roof, but also ensures that if the property is sold later, then the
covenant or easement will bind the new owner to maintain and preserve the historic
building that gets the SAT grant.

Supplemental Questions:

1. If the request is for a preservation project, does the property meet the SAT
requirement to be listed in the National Register of Historic Places at the
national level of significance or to be designated a National Historic Landmark,
either individually or as contributing to an historic district?

2. Is the recipient one of the eligible entities under the HPF, as identified in 54
USC 30890172

3. What type of eligible entity is the recipient?

4. Does the recipient have in place, or a plan to provide, the one-to-one match
with nonfederal cash and/or in-kind contribution?

5. Would the requested project fund an eligible activity under the SAT program?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 44



https://go.nps.gov/satmap

https://ncshpo.org/



6. Is the applicant prepared to accept the required preservation
easement/covenant that is required by the program?

7. Has this project been completed or advanced beyond emergency
stabilization?

8. Is the applicant financially sound and capable of managing a federal grant so
to minimize the risk of fraud, waste, and abuse and loss of federal funding?

Land Acquisition through the Land and Water Conservation Fund

In FY 22

Total Funding: $7,824,000
Highest Request: $4,124,500
Lowest Request: $3,700,000
Number of Requests: 2

Federal acquisition of lands and water and interests therein must be for the
purpose of land and habitat conservation and the encouragement of outdoor
recreation, as established by the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) Act of
1965. Land acquisition project requests funded from the LWCF should be requested
through the agency that would manage the land being acquired. The four land
management agencies are: within the Department of the Interior, (1) the Bureau of
Land Management, (2) the Fish and Wildlife Service, (3) the National Park Service;
and within the Department of Agriculture, (4) the Forest Service.

Third party organizations (i.e. The Nature Conservancy, Trust for Public Land, etc.)
frequently participate in the federal acquisition process by coordinating the
negotiation and purchase of tracts. If the project you are requesting involves a
third-party organization, please be mindful that funding for a land acquisition
project goes to the agency that will manage the land.

The Great American Outdoors Act of (Public Law 116-152) and the Consolidated
Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 116-260) mandates that the President submit,
along with the upcoming fiscal year's budget request, proposed and supplemental
project lists. The Committee will look favorably upon requests for projects that
appear in either of these lists. When submitting your request, please indicate
whether the project is on these lists.

Supplemental Question:

1. Isthe requested project on either the president’s proposed or supplemental
LWCF project list submitted by the agency?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 45





Environmental Protection Agency

State and Tribal Assistance Grants (STAG)

In FY 22

Total Funding: $428,577,695
Average Project Cost: $1,488,117
Median Project Cost: $1,040,000
Highest Request: $3,500,000
Lowest Request: $68,000
Number of Requests: 288

The vast majority of requests made to the Interior Subcommittee are for STAG
infrastructure grants. These grants fund local wastewater and drinking water
infrastructure projects. This includes construction of and modifications to
municipal sewage treatment plants and drinking water treatment plants. Similar
to past practice, the Committee will be limiting STAG infrastructure grants only to
projects that are publicly-owned or owned by a non-profit entity and that are
otherwise eligible for the funding from that state’'s Clean Water or Drinking Water
State Revolving Funds (SRF) loan programs. Members should use the range of
House and Senate project amounts funded in FY22 as a general guide when
making requests. In FY22, the majority of EPA STAG infrastructure projects funded
in the House bill ranged from $60,000 - $3,500,000, though there were a handful
of exceptions. Note that the Committee may consider higher project amounts for
FY23,and any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Privately-owned projects are NOT eligible for infrastructure grants, even if they are
otherwise eligible for assistance under a SRF program. The Committee will look
favorably upon requests for projects that are listed on a state’'s most recent
Intended Use Plan.

There isa minimum 20% cost share requirement for any portion of a project funded
through a STAG infrastructure grant. For example, a $1 million project could receive
a maximum of $800,000 from the Federal government, with the remaining
$200,000 the responsibility of the grantee. In almost all cases, other federal funds
cannot be used to meet this 20% cost share. 10 Ability to fund the 20% cost share is
required before EPA can award a STAG grant. Please note that assistance provided
by a SRF counts towards the project’'s matching requirement.

STAG projects have very specific eligibility requirements, and the Committee will
not consider projects that do not meet those requirements.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 46





Projects that generally ARE NOT eligible for STAG Grants include:

Clean Water/Wastewater

1.

SNGIESEAREN

7.

Land: except for projects described in the subsequent table under eligibility
#11

Operations and Maintenance Costs.

Non-Municipal point source Control.

Acid Rain Drainage Correction.

Ambient Water quality monitoring.

Flood Control Projects, unless the project is otherwise managing, reducing,
treating, or recapturing stormwater.

Privately Owned Sewer Pipes.

Drinking Water

o 0

Dams or rehabilitation of dams.

Operations and Maintenance Costs.

Water Rights, except if the water rights are owned by a system thatis being
purchased through consolidation as part of a capacity development
strategy or if the water rights purchase is covered by EPA's DWSRF Class
Deviation for Water Rights 2019.

Reservoirs, except for finished water reservoirs and those reservoirs that
are part of the treatment process and are located on the property where
the treatment facility is located.

Laboratory Fees for Monitoring.

Projects needed mainly for fire protection.

Projects for systems that lack adequate technical, managerial, and
financial capability, unless assistance will ensure compliance.

Projects for systems in significant noncompliance, unless funding will
ensure compliance.

Projects primarily intended to serve future growth.

Projects that generally ARE eligible for STAG Grants:

Clean Water/Wastewater

1.

Wastewater treatment plants, including sludge handling facilities - new,
upgraded (increase in treatment level) or expanded (increase in treatment
capacity) facilities, including biological facilities, mechanical, a lagoon
system, a land treatment system, or individual on-site systems.

Collector Sewers - Small sewers that convey wastewater from residences,
commercial establishments, and industrial sites to larger interceptor
sewers.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

47





10.

.

12.

13.

1.

Interceptor Sewers - Large sewers that convey wastewater from collector
sewers directly to a wastewater treatment facility.

Sewer Pipes - Rehabilitation is eligible only if pipes are publicly owned.
Outfall Sewer - A sewer that conveys treated wastewater from a
wastewater treatment facility to the receiving waters (i.e., a river, stream,
lake, ocean, etc.).

Stormwater Management - Measures to manage, reduce, treat, or
recapture stormwater or subsurface drainage water (i.e. storm sewers,
green infrastructure, etc.).

Combined sewer overflow (CSO) control and sanitary sewer overflow (SSO)
control - Combined sewers are sewers that convey both wastewater and
storm water and may overflow during periods of heavy rain. The costs to
correct CSO and SSO overflow problems are eligible.

Infiltration/Inflow Correction - Construction activities that prevent surface
water or groundwater from entering the sewer system.

Water Security - These projects include installation or upgrade of physical
security infrastructure such as lighting, fencing, monitoring and access
control. Also, cybersecurity measures, installation of safer treatment
technologies, and more secure storage of on-site treatment.

Septic Tanks - Remediation, rehabilitation, removal and replacement of
failing tanks are eligible, as well as installation of new tanks where none
had previously existed.

Land - The leasing and fee-simple purchase of land, including surface and
subsurface easements, needed to locate eligible municipal or tribal
projects, and land integral to the treatment process (e.g., land for effluent
application or recharge basins), and a place to store equipment and
material during POTW construction. Municipal purchase of land and/or
conservation easements for source water protection are also eligible.
Water Reuse - Projects involving the municipal reuse or recycling of
wastewater, stormwater, or subsurface drainage water. This includes but
is not limited to the purchase and installation of treatment equipment
sufficient to meet reuse standards, distribution systems to support effluent
reuse, recharge transmission lines, injection wells, and equipment to reuse
effluent (e.g., gray water, condensate, and wastewater effluent reuse
systems).

Capital Nonpoint Source Pollution Control Projects - e.g., river or
streambank restoration, agricultural best management practices (i.e,
buffer strips, manure containment structures), wetlands restoration, etc.

Drinking Water

Facilitate compliance with national primary drinking water regulations or

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

48





8.

address serious risks to public health including non-regulated
contaminants (i.e. PFAS).

Rehabilitate or develop water sources (excluding reservoirs, dams, dam
rehabilitation and water rights) to replace contaminated sources.

Install or upgrade treatment facilities.

Install or upgrade storage facilities, including finished water reservoirs, to
prevent microbiological contaminants from entering the water system.
Install or replace transmission and distribution pipes to prevent
contamination caused by leaks or breaks in the pipe, or improve water
pressure to safe levels.

Projects to consolidate water supplies — for example, when individual
homes or other public water supplies have a water supply that is
contaminated, or the system is unable to maintain compliance for financial
or managerial reasons — are eligible for DWSRF assistance.

Land is eligible only if it is integral to a project that is needed to meet or
maintain compliance and further public health protection.

Project planning, design and other related costs.

Supplemental Questions:

1.

2.

Is this a Clean Water SRF project or a Drinking Water SRF project?

Does the project have (or expects to have within 12 months) its 20 percent
matching fund requirement?

Is the project on your state's most recently finalized Clean Water/Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund Intended Use Plan?

Has the project received federal funds previously? If so, please describe.

U.S. Forest Service

State and Private Forestry

In FY 22

Total Funding: $7,526,500
Average Project Cost: $418,139
Median Project Cost: $429,000
Highest Request: $750,000
Lowest Request: $50,000
Number of Requests: 18

The Forest Service is an agency within the Department of Agriculture. Requests
that do not fit into the described categories below are unlikely to be eligible for
funding under the Forest Service.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal





The State and Private Forestry (S&PF) account provides technical and financial
assistance, usually through the network of State Foresters, to improve the
management, protection, and utilization of the Nation’'s forests. Community
projects are usually limited and include various specific urban and community
forestry projects and specific forest disease or pest treatment areas. Members
may also request specific State fire assistance projects or specific forestry
assistance projects in this account. Please carefully review the information the
Forest Service provides on its website regarding what activities are permitted
under the various S&PF programs and consult with your State Forester office if
needed to confirm that all of a project’s activities are eligible for S&PF funding.
Members should use the range of House and Senate project amounts funded in
FY22 as a general guide for making requests. In FY22, the majority of State and
Private Forestry projects in the House bill ranged from $50,000 - $750,000. Note
that the Committee will consider similar project amounts for FY23, and any caps
will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe of requests.

Note, State and Private Forestry projects are required to meet the 1.1 matching
requirement mandated by the Forest Service. Keep this in mind when
considering the amount being requested for the project. The amount being
requested can be no more than half of the total project cost to account for
matching funds being used (ex. If a project has been calculated to cost $200,000,
then a request for a CPF can be no more than $100,000 for that project to allow
for 1:1 matching funds to be used.) Additionally, project amounts should be to the
nearest thousand (ex. $100,000 instead of $100,500).

The Committee will look favorably upon requests for projects that are listed on
any federal or state ordinal list or are clearly demonstrated to meet the goals of a
State Forest Action Plan(s). Please ensure any requests submitted for S&PF
funding include not only full details on the types of activities in the project, but
other details relevant to the specific type of S&PF program the project would fall
under (ex. For landscape scale restoration, precise location data is needed).

Supplemental Questions:

1. Doestherecipient have in place, or a plan to provide, the one-to-one match
with nonfederal cash and/or in-kind contribution?

2. Has the project received federal funds previously? If so, please describe.

3. Is the project ranked in a priority setting system/list? If so, please provide
list name and rank.

4. How does this project meet the goals of the State Forest Action Plan and/or
support community plans?

5. Does this project meet the eligibility requirements of one of the following
Forest Service, State and Private Forestry Programs? Landscape Scale

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

50





Restoration, Forest Health Management, Cooperative Fire Assistance,
Forest Stewardship, or Urban and Community Forestry

Provide evidence to support the project's eligibility within a specific State
and Private Forestry program. Some examples include: (If landscape scale
restoration) Does this project meet the eligibility requirements of the
Landscape Scale Restoration program as listed in the instructions on the
Forest Service website? (If Forest Health Management) Is this project
treating a specific insect, disease, or invasive plant infestation listed in the
FY23 Forest Service Budget Justification? (If Urban and Community
Forestry) How does the project meet the goals outlined in the 2016-2026
Urban Forestry Action plan?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal

51





Labor, Health and Human Services, and Education
Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $670,080,000
Average Project Cost: $781,890
Median Project Cost: $600,000
Number of Requests: 857

The Labor-HHS-Education Subcommittee previously received requests for
community project funding to construct or renovate buildings. Health facilities are
the only types of construction projects normally eligible for community project
funding in the Labor-HHS-Education bill.

Department of Labor

Employment and Training Administration

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Demonstration Program

In FY 22

Total Funding: $62,910,000
Average Project Cost: $648,557
Median Project Cost: $500,000
Highest Request: $2,000,000
Lowest Request: $20,000
Number of Requests: 97

Community project funding is designated under Training and Employment Services.

These projects must meet all statutorily mandated requirements, except that they
are exempt from the requirement to compete. In addition, all projects must:

1. Include direct services to individuals to enhance employment opportunities;

2. Demonstrate evidence of a linkage with the State or local workforce
investment system; and

3. Include an evaluation component.

Equipment purchases may be included within community project funding only as an
incidental part of the entire project. A similar standard applies to curriculum
development, which should be incidental to the project’'s emphasis on direct services
to individuals.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 52





Community project funding cannot be used for construction or renovation of
facilities.

House project amounts in this account were funded between $100,000 and
$2,000,000 in FY 2022. The Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts
for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Department of Health and Human Services

Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)

Requests that fit into one of the below categories are eligible for Community Project
Funding under HRSA

In FY 22

Total Funding: $359,390,000
Average Project Cost: $940,812
Median Project Cost: $842,500
Highest Request: $4,000,000
Lowest Request: $15,000
Number of Requests: 382

Health Facilities Construction and Equipment

Grants to help with the cost of construction, renovation, or capital equipment for
facilities for provision of health, mental health, or substance abuse services, training
of health professionals, or medical research. Examples of eligible facilities include
hospitals; health centers and clinics; skilled nursing facilities; mental health centers;
facilities for schools of medicine, nursing or other health professions; and medical
research laboratories.

In addition to construction and renovation, grants can be used to acquire capital
equipment, such as lab equipment or x-ray machines. Equipment-only grants—that
is, grants not involving construction—are permissible (and commonly done).
Generally, any equipment having a useful life of more than one year and a unit cost
of at least $5,000 will be eligible as capital equipment. In addition, equipment with
lower costs may also be eligible, provided that it is treated as an item of capital
expense under the recipient institution’s pre-existing, written accounting policies.
Equipment expenses for health information systems and electronic medical records
systems are permitted expenditures. The costs of expendable supplies such as
pharmaceuticals, lab chemicals, or office paper are not eligible.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 53





HRSA Health Facilities grants cannot be used to acquire land or purchase existing
buildings, or to pay salaries or other operating costs. They cannot be used to pay for
work previously completed. Grants can be used for architectural and engineering
costs associated with an eligible construction project, but cannot be used for general
feasibility studies.

House project amounts in this account were funded between $100,000 and
$2,000,000 (or up to $4,000,000 for projects jointly submitted by multiple Members)
in FY 2022. Note that the Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts
for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)

In FY 22

Total Funding: $68,405,000
Average Project Cost: $589,698
Median Project Cost: $462,500
Highest Request: $2,000,000
Lowest Request: $15,000
Number of Requests: 116

Community project funding through SAMHSA provides resources for substance use
and/or mental health services — including prevention, harm reduction, treatment, or
recovery support services.

Community project funding within SAMHSA should be submitted through the
Health Surveillance and Program Support account.

Generally, SAMHSA projects cover:

e Evidence-based substance use disorder and/or mental health treatment

services.

Evidence-based harm reduction activities.

Crisis services, including 24-hour mobile crisis teams.

Suicide prevention activities including awareness training, screening, referral
to treatment, as well as postvention activities.

e Recovery support services, which includes case management, outreach, peer
recovery mentors, peer support specialists, childcare, training, transportation,
and housing, as well as helping individuals to navigate these various services.

e Screening and assessment of individuals, including the presence of co-
occurring mental and substance use disorders and referral to treatment.
Referral and access to treatment services.

Educational materials on substance misuse, HIV prevention, hepatitis
prevention, and mental health promotion.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 54





e Practitioners or community members training on evidence-based behavioral
health practices.

e FDA-approved medications for the treatment of opioid use disorders in
combination with comprehensive psychosocial services, including counseling,
behavioral therapies, recovery support services, and other clinically
appropriate services.

Projects that support the hiring of behavioral health providers.
Limited indirect costs that are directly related to the projects.

Note: This is not an exhaustive list of the types of programs and services that SAMHSA
funds. A listing of SAMHSA NOFO's can be found at:
https://www.samhsa.gov/grants/grantannouncements-2022.

SAMHSA project funds cannot be used for:

Inpatient treatment or hospital-based detoxification services.
Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in
prevention or treatment services.
Meals and food.
Research projects (e.g., scientific, academic, clinical trials, studies,
development of research technology).

e Construction (other than a limited amount of renovation necessary to carry out
a funded project).

More information on allowable or unallowable costs can be found on the HHS
Webpage at: https.//www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/index.html

House project amounts in this account were funded between $100,000 and
$2,000,000 in FY 2022. The Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts
for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Administration for Children and Families
*These are new accounts for FY 23*

ACF community project funding cannot be used for construction or renovation of
facilities. Commmunity project funding within ACF should be submitted through the
Children and Families Services Programs account and must fall under one of the
following categories:

Child Abuse Prevention

Community project funding may be used for projects to improve the prevention,
assessment, identification, and treatment of child abuse and neglect through

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 55



https://www.samhsa.gov/grants/grantannouncements-2022

https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/index.html



research, model service improvement, information dissemination, and technical
assistance. Projects must serve or target children and families who are at risk or who
have experienced child abuse and neglect.

Social Services Research and Demonstration

Community project funding may be used for projects to promote the ability of
families to thrive through financial self-sufficiency in order to prevent and reduce
poverty and to promote the healthy development and greater well-being of children
and families. Projects can serve a diverse population including: low-income
individuals, children, youth, families, individuals with developmental disabilities, and
Native Americans.

The House LHHS bill did not include projects in this account in FY 2022. The
Committee expects to consider project amounts in this account between $100,000
and $2,000,000 for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing
the full universe of requests.

Administration for Community Living

Community project funding within ACL should be submitted through the Aging and
Disability Services Programs account.

Community project funding may be used for projects to improve or create new
opportunities for older adults, individuals of all ages with disabilities, and their eligible
family caregivers, to live independently and participate fully in their coommmunities.
Generally, community project funding should focus on improving access to, or the
guality of, education, health services, training, support services, and independent
living services for older adults, individuals with disabilities, and eligible family
caregivers.

ACL community project funding cannot be used for construction or renovation of
facilities.

The House LHHS bill did not include projects in this account in FY 2022. The
Committee expects to consider project amounts in this account between $100,000
and $2,000,000 for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing
the full universe of requests.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 56





Department of Education

Elementary and Secondary Education

Innovation and Improvement

In FY 22

Total Funding: $86,860,000
Average Project Cost: $582,953
Median Project Cost: $500,000
Highest Request: $2,000,000
Lowest Request: $50,000
Number of Requests: 149

Community project funding for elementary and secondary education should be
submitted through the Innovation and Improvement account. Elementary and
secondary education community project funding includes instructional services,
afterschool centers, curricula development, teacher training, acquisition of books and
computers, arts education, social and emotional learning activities, full-service
community schools, and early childhood education. In general, the focus of
elementary and secondary education community project funding should be
providing early childhood or K-12 educational services.

Community project funding to provide and improve special education services at the
elementary and secondary levels are also eligible under elementary and secondary
education. Community project funding may include early intervention services for
infants and toddlers, transition services, and postsecondary education services.

Eligible grantees are state education agencies, school districts, colleges and
universities, and other public and private nonprofit entities. Generally, community
project funding intended for individual schools is provided to the applicable school
district and not directly to the individual school.

Community project funding cannot be used for construction or renovation of school
buildings, except in the case of minor remodeling required as part of technology
upgrades. Daycare and childcare projects that do not include educational services
are also not eligible.

House project amounts in this account were funded between $100,000 and
$2,000,000 in FY 2022. The Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts
for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 57





Postsecondary Education

Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education (FIPSE)

In FY 22

Total Funding: $92,515,000
Average Project Cost: $818,717
Median Project Cost: $750,000
Highest Request: $2,000,000
Lowest Request: $95,000
Number of Requests: 113

Community project funding can be designated under this heading for a wide variety
of higher education projects. Generally, cormmunity project funding should focus on
improving access to, or the quality of, postsecondary education. Community project
funding cannot be used for construction or renovation of academic buildings, except
in the case of minor remodeling required as part of technology upgrades.

Examples of the types of projects that can be funded under FIPSE include projects to
hire and train faculty, establish and improve degree programs, improve teacher
preparation programs, develop and improve curricula, upgrade technology and
telecommunications, acquire science laboratory equipment, provide student
support, implement university partnerships with school districts, and establish
research and training centers.

Grantees are usually colleges and universities, but may include other public and
private nonprofit organizations.

House project amounts in this account were funded between $100,000 and
$2,000,000 in FY 2022. The Committee may consider slightly higher project amounts
for FY 2023. Any caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe
of requests.

Limitations on Education-Related Community Project Funding

Except where specifically authorized, community project funding cannot be used for
construction (or the acquisition of property) or renovation of buildings. In addition,
grantees may not restrict participants based on race, ethnicity or gender. Finally,
recipients of community project funding may not sub-grant to other organizations
or agencies.

In addition, grantees may not restrict participants based on race, ethnicity, or gender.
Any project that appears to target services toward a particular race, ethnicity, or
gender must have a description that makes clear that it will be operated in a
race/ethnicity-neutral and gender-neutral manner.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 58





Military Construction, Veterans Affairs Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $227,726,666
Average Project Cost: $8,434,320.96
Number of Requests: 27

*NOTE: Most of these requests MUST be included in the President’s FY23 Budget to
be requested as a CPF

The following types of projects are eligible to be considered for community project
funding, provided that they comply with the specified guidelines listed below. The
subcommittee will not consider requests for community projects unless they
appear on a list provided to Congress by the Secretary of Defense or his/her
designee. More detail regarding such lists can be found below.

Department of Defense - Military Construction Accounts

Construction and Unspecified Minor Construction— Active Components

Eligible community project requests include both construction and unspecified
minor military construction projects for active components. An unspecified minor
military construction project is a project that has an approved cost equal to or less
than $6,000,000. The types of projects under this heading include construction,
installation, equipment of temporary or permanent public works, military
installations, and facilities for the accounts listed below:

Army

Navy and Marine Corps

Air Force

Space Force

Defense-Wide Agencies (SOCOM, DHA, etc.)

Construction and Unspecified Minor Construction— Reserve Components

Eligible community project requests include both construction and unspecified
minor military construction projects for Reserve Components. An unspecified minor
military construction project is a project that has an approved cost equal to or less
than $6,000,000. Some Reserve Component projects require a State funding match.
Requesting offices must determine whether the proposed project requires such a
match and if so, confirm that the project has current State match funding before the
request can be considered. The types of projects under this heading include
construction, expansion, rehabilitation, and conversion of facilities for training and
administration for the accounts listed below:

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 59





Army National Guard
Air National Guard
Army Reserve

Air Force Reserve
Navy Reserve

Planning and Design

Planning and design funding can be requested for specific projects when they are
not yet at 35 percent design and therefore ineligible for construction funding. The
types of projects under this heading include improving facility resilience, study,
planning, design, and architect and engineer services for the accounts listed below:

Army

Navy and Marine Corps

Air Force

Defense-Wide Agencies (SOCOM, DHA, etc.)
Army National Guard

Air National Guard

Army Reserve

Air Force Reserve

Navy Reserve

Future Year Defense Program (FYDP)

FYDP is a projection of the forces, resources, and programs needed to support DoD
operations over a five-year span. The FYDP is released simultaneously with the
President’s budget request. The updated document listing projects eligible for FY
2023 will be obtainable after the FY 2023 full budget rollout, through the Under
Secretary of Defense (Comptroller) website: https://comptroller.defense.gov/Budget-

Materials/.

Unfunded Requirements/Unfunded Priorities Lists (UFRs/UPLs)

UFRs/UPLs are lists that each Service provides to Congress that identify priority
projects that were not included in the President’'s budget request. These lists must
be approved by the Secretary of Defense. UFRs/UPLs become available to Congress
within ten days of the President’s full budget release and can be found by contacting
the Congressional Liaison Offices of the Armed Services.

Cost-to-Completes (CTCs)

CTCs are projects that have previously received an appropriation but require
additional funding for completion. These lists represent the requirements identified
by each Service for the additional funding necessary to complete a project. The lists

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 60



https://comptroller.defense.gov/Budget-Materials/

https://comptroller.defense.gov/Budget-Materials/



are approved by each Service Secretary and can be obtained by contacting the
Congressional Liaison Offices of the Armed Services.

The average award for Military Construction projects in FY 2022 was $18 million. Note
the Committee may consider similar project amounts for FY 2023, and any caps will
be determined by the Chair after reviewing the full universe of requests.

For Community Project Funding requests for DoD Military Construction, you will
need to answer supplemental questions in support of these requests specifically. The
subcommittee specific questions and additional information required include:

e Which Service is the project for?

e State/territory where project is located.

e Installation Name.

e Project Name and Amount.

e Isthe funding request for major construction, minor construction, or planning
and design?
Is the project on the FY 2023-2027 FYDP? If so, for what fiscal year?
Is the project on a Service unfunded requirement (UFR)/unfunded priority list
(UPL)?

e Isthe project a cost-to-complete from a prior year? If so, what year?

e DD Form 1391

e If a Reserve Component project, does it require a State funding match?

e Isthe project at 35 percent design and shovel-ready in FY 2023?

e Can the project funds be obligated within 12 months of enactment of the bill?

e If a construction funding request, has the Environmental Impact Study been

initiated?

e Was the project previously authorized? If not, has a corresponding request
been submitted to HASC?

e Who is the point of contact in the requesting office?

Department of Veterans Affairs

*This is a new account for FY 23*

The following information outlines the type of projects that are eligible to be
considered for community project funding, provided that they comply with the
specified guidelines listed below. The subcommittee will not consider requests for
community projects unless they appear on VA's 2023 Construction SCIP List.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 61





Veterans memorials, parks, museums, and other similar projects are not eligible for
community project funding. Funds are also not available for direct grants to veterans
organizations or for local programmmatic efforts.

Construction Programs

VA has three types of construction projects: Major Construction (projects that are
expected to cost above $20,000,000), Minor Construction (projects that are expected
to cost equal to or less than $20,000,000), and Nonrecurring Maintenance (NRM)
(projects that consist of upkeep, construction and maintaining building systems). The
classification of each construction project is determined by VA.

Community project funding requests are eligible ONLY for VA Minor Construction
projects. VA's Minor Construction program includes capital projects with costs equal
to or less than $20,000,000, particularly projects that construct new space instead of
renovating existing space. Examples may include expanding existing facility square
footage to provide additional healthcare capacity, construction of specialty care
buildings or clinics, building of parking structures, or expanding gravesite space at
cemeteries.

The Committee will only consider projects that appear on VA's Integrated
Department wide Priority List for 2023 Construction Projects (2023 Construction SCIP
List). This list will be included in the FY 2023 President’'s Budget submission.

The yearly Construction SCIP List includes projects that have been reviewed by VA
and are determined to be at an advanced enough stage to receive funds. This will
ensure that Federal dollars are not set aside for projects that are not yet ready to
spend them. Please note that while this list includes both Major Construction and
Minor Construction projects, only Minor Construction projects will be considered for
Member requests.

Criteria for VA Community Project Funding (CPF):

e The subcommittee will consider supporting Community Project Funding only
for VA Minor Construction projects that are equal to or less than $20,000,000
in total estimated project cost, and they must be included in the 2023
Construction SCIP List (this list will be included in the FY 2023 President’s
Budget submission materials).

e Projects must be listed as unfunded on VA's 2023 Construction SCIP List with
$0 in the 2023 Request column. Projects with a dollar amount in the 2023
Request column are requested in the President’'s budget request, and if
requested, should be submitted as programmatic requests.

e Funding for a CPF project will be capped at 10 percent of the total estimated
cost of the project to support planning and design that can be executed within
twelve months of receiving funding. (Similar projects on the FY 2022 list would
generally have been in the range of $1,000,000 to $2,000,000.)

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 62





o Exceptions to the 10 percent cap may be made for projects where
construction is ready to be supported in year one, and only applies to
some National Cemetery Administration (NCA) Minor Construction
projects. Please consult with the subcommittee and VA to determine if
the full scope of an NCA project can be executable in one year.

Final decision on funding caps will be determined by the Chair after reviewing
the full universe of requests.

For Community Project Funding requests for VA Minor Construction, you will need to
answer supplemental questions in support of these requests specifically. The
subcommittee-specific questions and additional information required include:

State/territory where the project is located.

City where the project is located.

Veterans Integrated Services Network (VISN) where the project is located or
VA Administration.

Specific facility where the project is located.

Is the project listed on VA's 2023 Construction Strategic Capital Investment
Planning (SCIP) list?

VA Construction Program Type (note — only Minor Construction projects are
eligible for CPF funding).

What is the total estimated cost of the project? (must be equal to or less than
$20 million)

Where is the project in the construction process? [Planning; Design; Awaiting
construction; In the middle of construction; Other, please explain]

Please provide a history of Federal funding for the project, if any.

Can the project funds be obligated within 12 months of enactment of the bill?
Why is the project a priority for the Congressional district?

Who is the point of contact in the requesting office?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 63





Transportation, Housing and Urban Development
Subcommittee

In FY 22

Total Funding: $1,425,390,645
Average Project Cost: $1,470,991
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Number of Requests: 969

Department of Transportation

Transit Infrastructure Projects

*The following information is for last year's Local Transportation Priorities
account. This account has been split into Transit Infrastructure Projects and
Highway Infrastructure Projects for FY 23*

In FY 22

Total Funding: $422,417,090
Average Project Cost: $1,852,707
Median Project Cost: $1,350,000
Highest Request: $5,000,000
Lowest Request: $30,000
Number of Requests: 228

Transit Infrastructure Projects are public transportation capital projects eligible
under chapter 53 of title 49 of the United States Code. Eligible capital projects are
described under Section 5302(4) of title 49, United States Code, and Section 5339(b)(1)
and (c)(1)(B) of title 49, United States Code.

All projects must be:

e Transit capital projects or project-specific planning/design for a transit capital
project.

e Supported by the state, local governmental authority, or Tribal government
that would administer the project. Inclusion on a Statewide Transportation
Improvement Plan (STIP) or Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) would
satisfy this requirement.

e Administered by public entities or Tribal entities.

Public transportation or transit is defined in Section 5302(15) and (22) of title 49,
United States Code, as regular, continuing shared-ride surface transportation that is
open to the general public or open to a segment of the general public defined by

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 64





age, disability, or low income, and does not include intercity passenger rail
transportation, intercity bus service, charter bus service, school bus service,
sightseeing service, courtesy shuttle service for patrons of one or more specific
establishments, or intra-terminal or intra-facility shuttle services.

The Subcommittee will not fund activities that are administrative in nature even if
they are eligible expenses under the statutory citation. These include general
operating expenses, and activities authorized under sections 5303, 5304, and 5305 of
title 49, United States Code. The Subcommittee will continue to treat the Capital
Investment Grants (CIG) program as programmatic requests and will not fund CIG
projects under Transit Infrastructure Projects, consistent with the fiscal year 2022
process.

The average award in this account for fiscal year 2022 was $2.5 million. Note that the
Committee may consider project amounts of up to $7 million for FY23, but any caps
will be determined by the Chairman after reviewing the full universe of requests.

For each Transit Infrastructure Projects request, Members will need to provide
specific information through the electronic database. The database will include the
following questions to assist the Subcommittee in vetting and selecting projects.
Several of them will require additional information from your office. Please ensure
community project funding requests are not duplicative of requests to another
Committee or Subcommittee.

Supplemental Questions:

1. What are the benefits of this project and why is it a priority?

2. Whatis the total cost of the project and what is the amount requested through
community project funding?

3. What is the anticipated start/completion date?

4. What is the total project cost, and what is the amount requested for this
project?

5. Has this project been requested by another Member of Congress or Senator?
Has this request been submitted to another Committee this Fiscal Year? (If yes,
which one(s))?

6. Does the project have other public (federal, state, local) and/or private funds
committed to meet match or cost-share requirements for costs related to
construction, operations, and maintenance? If so, what is the source and
amount of those funds? NOTE: The cost-share requirements are defined in
statute. In general, transit capital projects typically require 20 percent local
share.

7. Does the project require an environmental review? If so, what is the status
and/or outcome of the environmental review and National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) category of action (if applicable)?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 65





8. Where is the project in the construction process? NOTE: Options include:
Planning and Environmental Review, Final Design, Right of Way, Capital
purchase or lease (including bus purchases), Construction, and Other (please
specify).

9. Was the project on a State, Tribal or territorial Transportation Improvement
Plan (STIP) or a transportation improvement plan (TIP) as of 12/31/20217 If yes,
please provide a link to the plan.

10. Please provide the STIP or TIP ID Number and specify which plan (ex. North
Carolina STIP, New York Metropolitan Transportation Council TIP) the ID
Number comes from.

1. Please provide a history of federal funding for the project, if any. Include both
formula funds and any discretionary grants.

12. If the request does not fully fund the project, describe where the remaining
funding comes from to complete the project.

Highway Infrastructure Projects

Highway Infrastructure Projects are capital projects eligible under title 23 of the
United States Code. Eligible projects are described under Section 133(b) of title 23,
United States Code, as amended by title Il of division A of the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act. Tribal and territorial capital projects authorized under
Chapter 2 of title 23, United States Code, are also eligible.

All projects must be:

Capital projects or project-specific planning/design for a capital project.
Supported by the state or Tribal government that would administer the
project. Inclusion on a Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP) or
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) would satisfy this requirement.

e Administered by public entities or Tribal entities.

The Subcommittee will not fund activities that are administrative in nature even if
they are eligible expenses under the statutory citation. These include general
operating expenses, and activities required under sections 134 and 135 of title 23,
United States Code.

The average award in this account for fiscal year 2022 was $2.7 million. Note that the
Committee may consider project amounts of up to $7 million for FY23, but any caps
will be determined by the Chairman after reviewing the full universe of requests.

Supplemental Questions:

1. What are the benefits of this project and why is it a priority?

2. Whatisthe total cost of the project and what is the amount requested through
community project funding?

3. What is the anticipated start/completion date?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 66





4. Can the project obligate appropriated funds within 12 months after
enactment? If not, what would be the expected date of obligation?

5. Has this project been requested by another Member of Congress or Senator?
Has this request been submitted to another Committee this Fiscal Year? (If yes,
which one(s))?

6. Does the project have other public (federal, state, local) and/or private funds
committed to meet match or cost-share requirements for costs related to
construction, operations, and maintenance? If so, what is the source and
amount of those funds?

7. Does the project require an environmental review? If so, what is the status
and/or outcome of the environmental review and National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) category of action (if applicable)?

8. Type of project eligible under 23 USC 133(b) include NOTE: Highway, Bridge, EV
Charging Infrastructure, Wildlife Crossing, Bike/Pedestrian, and Other (please
specify). Please specify.

9. Where is the project in the construction process? Options include: Planning
and Environmental Review, Final Design, Right of Way, Capital purchase or
lease, Construction, and Other (please specify).

10. Was the project on a State, Tribal or territorial Transportation Improvement
Plan (STIP) or a transportation improvement plan (TIP) as of 12/31/2021? If yes,
please provide a link to the plan.

1. Please provide the STIP or TIP ID Number and specify which plan (ex. North
Carolina STIP, New York Metropolitan Transportation Council TIP) the ID
Number comes from.

12. Please provide a history of federal funding for the project, if any. Include both
formula funds and any discretionary grants.

13. If the request does not fully fund the project, describe where the remaining
funding comes from to complete the project.

Airport Improvement Program (AlP)

In FY 22

Total Funding: $79,959,135
Average Project Cost: $2,579,327
Median Project Cost: $2,000,000
Highest Request: $5,000,000
Lowest Request: $250,000
Number of Requests: 31

AIP community project requests may be used for enhancing airport safety, capacity,
and security, and mitigating environmental concerns.

All projects must be:

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 67





AIP eligible in accordance with sections 47101 to 47175 of title 49, United States
Code, and FAA policy and guidance.

Supported broadly by local stakeholders, including residents, businesses, and
elected officials.

Administered by an airport and/or airport sponsor.

The average award in this account for FY22 was $4 million. Note that the Committee
may consider project amounts of up to $7 million for FY23, but any caps will be
determined by the Chairman after reviewing the full universe of requests. Please
ensure community project funding requests are not duplicative of requests to
another Committee or Subcommittee.

Supplemental Questions:

1.
2.

10.

.

12.
13.
14.
15.
6.

What are the benefits of this project and why is it a priority?
What is the total project cost, and what is the requested amount for
Community Project Funding?
Can the project obligate all appropriated funds within 12 months after
enactment? If not, what would be the expected date of obligation?

a. Obligation occurs when a project sponsor signs a grant agreement with

a federal agency.

Estimated start and completion dates.
Has the project been requested by any other Member of Congress or Senator?
Does the project have other public (federal, state, local) and/or private funds
for the required cost-share and committed for the forecasted operations and
maintenance costs? If so, what is the source and amount of those funds?
Does the project require an environmental review? If so, what is the status
and/or outcome of the environmental review and National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) category of action (if applicable)?
How will the project contribute to the airport’s disadvantaged business
enterprise goals?
Has the project received previous Federal funding? If so, how much and which
public law (e.g., appropriations act or authorization act) provided it?
Is the project AlP-eligible?
Has the airport submitted a grant application for this same project to FAA? If
so, when?
Would the project increase or decrease air traffic?
Would the project increase or decrease aviation safety?
Would the project increase or decrease environmental risks?
Does the airport and airport sponsor support the project?
Are there any stakeholders - such as residents that live near the airport, state
or local officials, state department of transportation officials - that oppose the
project?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 68



https://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/

https://www.transportation.gov/civil-rights/disadvantaged-business-enterprise

https://www.transportation.gov/civil-rights/disadvantaged-business-enterprise

https://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/aip_handbook/



Department of Housing and Urban Development

Economic Development Initiative (EDI)

In FY 22

Total Funding: $923,014,420
Average Project Cost: $1,300,020
Median Project Cost: $1,000,000
Highest Request: $5,000,000
Lowest Request: $25,000
Number of Requests: 710

EDI community project funding may be used for economic and community
development activities, including land or site acquisition, demolition or rehabilitation
of housing or facilities, construction and capital improvements of public facilities
(including water and sewer facilities), and public services. Requests may also include
planning and other activities consistent with previously funded activities eligible
under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program (title | of the
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 5301 et
seq.)), unless otherwise specified. EDI community project funding is not eligible for
the reimbursement of expenses for activities or costs incurred prior to the obligation
of funds, if such activities are not eligible under the CDBG program. Capital and
operating expenses for fire and police stations are not eligible for EDI community
project funding.

The average award in this account for fiscal year 2022 was $1.5 million. Note that the
Committee may consider project amounts of up to $4 million for FY23, but any caps
will be determined by the Chairman after reviewing the full universe of requests.

All projects must be:

e Supported broadly by local stakeholders, including residents, businesses, and
elected officials.

e Administered by governmental or non-profit entities, including public housing
agencies, as well as tribes and tribally designated housing entities.

Supplemental Questions:

1. What are the benefits of this project and why is it a priority? Benefits could
include safety, environmental, economic, equity, mobility, etc.

2. What is the total project cost, and what is the requested amount for
Community Project Funding?

3. Can the project obligate all appropriated funds within 12 months after
enactment? If not, what would be the expected date of obligation?

a. Obligation occurs when a project sponsor signs a grant agreement with
a federal agency.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 69





IS

o

10.

.

12.

13.

What is the estimated start/completion date?

Does the project have other public (federal, state, local) and/or private funds
committed to meet match or cost-share requirements for costs related to
construction, operations, and maintenance? If so, what is the source and
amount of those funds? NOTE: EDI community project funding does not have
a match requirement.

Has this project been requested by any other Member of Congress/Senator?
Does the project require an environmental review? If so, what is the status
and/or outcome of the environmental review and National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) category of action (if applicable)?

Is the project purpose primarily for services, new construction, rehabilitation,
land or site acquisition, planning, or economic development?

Does the project primarily benefit persons of low-income or Tribal
communities? If yes, please describe who the project is intended to benefit.
Who are the community partners participating in this project?

If the project purpose is for new construction or land or site acquisition, does it
comply with local zoning requirements?

Is the projectincluded or supported by an identified priority area within a state
or local HUD Consolidated Plan? If yes, please provide a link to the plan.

Is the project intended to address climate change, resiliency, mobility, or
equitable access to housing or services?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 70





Frequently Asked Questions

The process of requesting and submitting requests for Community Project
Funding can be confusing. Here are some of the most frequently asked
questions about the process. Please check this section for answers to many
of your questions before following up with my staff.

What is Community Project Funding?

Community Project Funding is generally defined as spending provisions in
federal legislation that:

e Are requested on behalf of constituents or constituent organizations
by a Member of Congress or Senator;

e Provides, authorizes, or recommends a specific amount of
discretionary budget authority, credit authority, or specific funding
amount to a specific entity for a specific purpose; and,

e The purpose of the project must meet the objective of a federal
program under existing law.

Community Project Funding is typically requested for projects with a clear
purpose and goal above and beyond normal operating activities, for which
private, non-federal funding is not available or sufficient. Commmunity Project
Funding will typically only serve as a partial contribution to the total cost of a
project.

Community Project Funding is known as Congressionally Directed Spending
in the U.S. Senate.

Is there a deadline for submitting a request?

Yes. The deadline to submit a Community Project Funding request for our
office is April 14th. If you need additional time to procure additional pieces of
Community Support, please let my team know in advance. My team is happy
to work with you on a case-by-case basis.

What if | miss a deadline? Are any exceptions made if the bill hasn’t
been passed?

Congressional offices review numerous requests in a short amount of time.
As a result, deadlines are strictly enforced. Once our office submits my
requests to the full committee, | am unable to change or add requests. That
is why it's important to submit your request before the deadline.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 71





Are Community Project Funding requests publicly disclosed?

Yes. All requests for Community Project Funding submitted by the Member
to the committee for consideration must be publicly listed on that Member's
website, including the name and address of the requestor, the amount
requested, and the justification for use of taxpayer funds no more than 20
days after requests are submitted.

How many Community Project Funding requests will the
Congressman make?

| am limited to submitting 15 requests for Community Project Funding
across the entire House Appropriations Committee for FY 2023.

Are there limitations on what Community Project Funding can be
used for?

Yes. Federal Programs have very specific restrictions on how federal funds
can be used. It is recommended that you closely examine this guide for
references to eligible uses or limitations on use. Generally, funding cannot be
used for debt service, recurring or routine expenses, reimbursement of costs,
or projects that cannot demonstrate value to the community.

Can | request funding for “bricks and mortar”?

In general, no. One of the most common requests for funding is for building
construction or renovation. Most appropriations accounts specifically
prohibit this kind of project given the high demand.

There are some exceptions to this rule, including the Economic
Development Initiative under the Department of Housing and Urban
Development, and certain projects under the Military Construction
Subcommittee, etc.

Should | submit my request to both my U.S. Representative and U.S.
Senators?

Yes. It is strongly recommended that you submit your request to all of your
federal representatives.

How much should | request?

It depends on the account from which you are requesting funds. You should
request the amount you need and can realistically use in the time frame laid

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 72





out for use in the grant (generally one year from when funds are received.)
Receiving funds from Community Project Funding in one Fiscal Year is not a
guarantee for Community Project Funding in future Fiscal Years. Many
accounts have information from the committee on the maximum level of
funding that will be considered.

How should | determine how much funding to request?

The level of funding request should be justified by the project proposal,
budget plan, and community support. Data on the range of projects can be
found in this guide, though you should request what you can realistically use
and spend in the Fiscal Year of award. In FY 22, the committee awarded well
outlined and high-quality projects with the requested amount generally.

A helpful indication may be to look at what a typical grantee may receive for
a one-year allocation of funding for the specific program you are interested
in requesting a Community Project Funding request for.

Is there a minimum amount one should request for Community
Project Funding?

No, there is no minimum amount of funding to request.

What if | do not know the appropriate Account or Agency for my
project request?

This guide has been prepared to outline information on available accounts.
Requestors should use this guide to identify the appropriate account to
identify one that meets the needs of your project or organization. Please call
my office if you need additional information.

If my project is funded, will | receive the full amount | request?

There is no guarantee that an approved Community Project Funding
request will be funded at the requested level. In FY22, most projects were
funded at the requested level, though we expect that could change. Please
keep this in mind when requesting support for your project.

Do | need letters of support?

Yes. The more community support for a project, the better. As listed above,
letters of support from local, municipal, and state elected officials and
stakeholders, as well as editorials and articles in local newspapers on the
importance and necessity of the project are all important.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 73





| submitted a request. Will it be approved? When will | know?

The FY 2023 Community Project Funding process is extremely targeted, and
this process is also very competitive. While my team will look at all requests,
it is strongly recommended you explore other grant and funding sources as
well.

Many subcommittee deadlines were in mid-April for FY 2022. In order for my
team and | to properly examine all requests, my office’s deadline is on April
14th, 2022.

The House Appropriations bills are typically considered in the late spring,
with the Senate considering bills in late spring and over the summer. The
House and Senate have to convene a “conference committee” to work out
the differences in each of those bills.

The Committee requires all members to publicly disclose and post their final
requests to the Appropriations Committee once the requests are made.
Please remember, even if your project is supported in the House and/or
Senate Appropriations bills, the funding level is subject to change until the
final bill is signed into law.

This process can be long, but my team and | will be sure to keep all projects
apprised of their status.

If my Community Project Funding request is granted, what is the
process for getting the assistance and how quickly will | receive it?

In general, recipients of Community Project Funding will be contacted by
the appropriate agency or office that oversees the account from which your
project received funding. This cannot happen until the appropriations bill in
which your project was listed is signed into law. The timing varies between
departments and agencies — some may start the process within several
weeks, others may take several months after the bill's enactment into law.

In Mmost cases, you will have to complete and submit a grant application
outlining the project’s goals, cost estimates and other requirements. You will
work with a program or contract officer to complete these steps; they may
have questions or additional requirements that could affect the timing of the
obligations or outlay of funding to your organization.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 74





The process of accessing funding and the time it takes to complete the
necessary steps, surprises many recipients who expect the money to be
provided immediately.

Please be sure to take this into account when submitting a request.

Can | depend on receiving Community Project Funding for the
same project more than once?

Generally, no. Most successful requests are one-time infusions of funding,
generally used to launch a project or partially contribute towards the total
cost of a project.

Given the limitations on the appropriations process for Community Project
Funding, there is no guarantee that Congress will support a project for more
than one year. However, you should discuss the needs of your project with
your Congressional sponsor(s) if you believe that federal support will be
needed beyond a single fiscal year.

Can funds from the American Rescue Plan for State/Local
Government Relief be used for the non-federal match component
of Community Project Funding?

Our office anticipates guidance from the Department of Treasury to address
this question. In the CARES Act, state and local funding was eligible to pay
for the non-federal share of a narrow set of Stafford Act costs related to
FEMA.

What is the anticipated timing for disbursement of Community
Project Funding relative to passage of the legislation?

When Community Project Funding is secured in the final spending bill, this
will create a grant program for which the requester is the only eligible
applicant. The requester will need to apply for the grant that is their
Community Project Funding before funds will be disbursed. In terms of
timeline, this will vary by federal department/agency as this will be a new
process to implement. For context, regular grants usually take between 6-10
months.

Does Fiscal Year 2023 refer to the federal fiscal year or the state
fiscal year?

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 75





This refers to the Federal Fiscal Year; Fiscal Year 2023 begins on October 1,
2022. Many states have a fiscal year that begins in July. It is not an issue if the
state FY 2024 overlaps with federal FY 2023.

If the FY23 spending bill isn't finalized until much later (i.e.
December 2022), will Community Project Funding requests still
need to be fully obligated and spent by September 30, 2023, or will
they have 12 months after enactment to obligate funds?

The question on our Community Project Funding form regarding 12 months
is primarily for planning purposes and to assess whether the recipient is
ready to access the funds. If approved, Community Project Funding will be
available for the same “period of availability” as other federal funds in the
same account. That could be for one-year, two-years, or five-years depending
on the project type.

Will Community Project Funding be taken from the overall funding
pot for specific agencies?

As of now, the House Appropriations Committee does not have an overall
funding level for discretionary spending for FY 2023. However, no more than
1% of discretionary spending will be allocated to fund all Community Project
Funding.

What limitations are there on non-federal matching funds? Can this
come from private donations or is it limited to state and local
funding sources? Would in-kind matches be determined at the
programmatic level or is there a general rule?

Some programs allow for in-kind matches. The criteria differ based on what
the laws for each agency and program allows.

Are capital projects eligible for Community Project Funding?

In certain cases, yes. This guide outlines which programs do and don't
include capital funding.

Is there a preference for programmatic funding or Community
Project Funding?

There is no preference, but the distinction between the two should help
guide whether your request is programmatic in nature or a Community
Project Funding request. Community Project Funding is for a specific

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 76





governmental entity or non-profit to carry out a specific program or project
in the spending bill at a specified level.

Can Community Project Funding be used for payroll and other
operating expenses?

No. Community Project Funding is intended as a one-time infusion of
resources to move a project forward that benefits the community, and using
it for operating expenses would potentially create a budgeting cliff. There's
Nno guarantee that if one receives Community Project Funding in one fiscal
year that there will be subsequent funding in later fiscal years for the same
project.

When will we hear back about our request?

This will be a long and competitive process. First, my office will publicly post
the requested Community Project Funding requests | will submit to the
House Appropriations Committee. Then, the House Appropriations
Committee will review and finalize a list of Commmunity Project Funding
requests from across the country to be included in the FY 23 House spending
bill, which is expected to pass the House in the late summer. Any differences
between the House and Senate Appropriations bills will need to be resolved
in the early fall before passing and enacting a final spending bill for FY 23.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 77





Other Federal Funding Resources

The Community Project Funding process is highly competitive, and while there are

many worthy projects that deserve support, funding limitations prevent many from
receiving funding through the Congressional appropriations process. However, it is

important to note that Community Project Funding represents only a small fraction
of the discretionary funding available through competitive grants, loans, and other

opportunities.

Below are a number of useful resources to explore other federal funding
opportunities. Each Congressional office has staff dedicated to assisting
organizations with seeking and applying for grants; you are strongly encouraged to
contact your Congressional representatives to discuss how you can access any
assistance from your federal elected officials.

Key Resources

Grants.gov

Looking for other federal funding opportunities? At Grants.gov, organizations can
search and apply for competitive grants from 26 different federal agencies. Grants
can be searched by agency, type of applicants, intended purposes, and more.

SAM.gov

The official U.S. government website for people who make, receive, and manage
federal awards.

GovLoans.gov

Interested in finding out which loans or benefits you may be eligible for? Here you
can learn more about federal loans, determine which loans may be right for you,
and more.

Benefits.gov

This tool will help you figure out what government benefits you may be eligible for.
It also provides information on how to apply for these programes.

USA.gov
The official guide to US Government Information and Services.

This section will be updated with more information at a later date.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 78





Feedback

| hope this guide is helpful to you in compiling your Community Project Funding
requests. My team has spent many hours putting our process and this guide
together. Your feedback is essential to ensuring that this guide and process remain
user-friendly. Please share any feedback you have with my staff.

Thank you.

Office of Rep. Salud Carbajal 79






Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street | P.0.Box 599 | Oceano, CA 93475
PHONE (805) 481-6730 | FAX (805) 481-6836

April 13, 2022

Congressman Salud Carbajal
1411 Marsh St., Ste. 205
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

SUBJECT: FY23 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING REQUEST

Dear Congressman Carbajal,

The Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) writes this letter in support of the OCSD’s Water Resource
Reliability Program (WRRP) Waterline Replacement Projects (Project), submitted to your office for consideration
in receiving Community Project Funding for FY23.

The OCSD represents the small Disadvantaged Community (DAC) of Oceano in San Luis Obispo County. The
median household income for Oceano is $39,000 as documented by an income survey prepared by the Rural
Community Assistance Corporation. The Project is part of system-wide improvements to the OCSD potable
drinking water system. The Project will replace and upgrade aging, undersized, and leaking waterlines that
provide drinking water to the entire community of Oceano. The Project will benefit this DAC community by
preventing potential health and safety issues from arising due to deterioration of the waterlines and by
financially assisting the OCSD to implement these improvements. The WRRP Project is also included in the San
Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan current list of projects. This plan has 29
participating agencies within the County indicating the regional significance of the WRRP Project.

Please accept this letter as our endorsement of the Project and our commitment to participate in future
outreach and planning activities with the community related to this Project. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Karen M. White
President

Agenda Item 7D April 13, 2022 - Page 24 of 79 Attachment 2: Draft Letter of Support



Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730 FAX (805) 481-6836

Date: April 13, 2022
To: Board of Directors

From: Will Clemens, General Manager

Subject: Agenda Item #8(a): Consideration of Appointing Financial Consultants for the
USDA Financing of the Water System Improvement Projects

Recommendation

It is recommended that your Board appoint Weist Law LLP as Bond Counsel and
California Municipal Advisors LLC as Municipal Advisor, for the USDA Financing of the Water
System Improvement Projects and authorize the General Manger to enter into the attached
consulting agreements with each of these firms.

Discussion

The District has previously retained Cannon Engineering (Cannon) to update the current water
master plan for the District, and to develop a list of proposed projects (the “Projects”) in order
of priority to be implemented over a ten year timeframe. Some projects have been completed
and others are currently in progress, funded through various grants obtained and water rates.
Staff continues to pursue various grant opportunities such as Federal CDBG and Community
Project Funds, State Prop 1 funds, etc. However, because interest rates are at historic lows, it
makes financial sense to complete the balance of projects that do not receive grant funding by
issuing debt.

The debt program with the lowest annual cost to ratepayers is funded by the United
States Department of Agriculture (USDA). Cannon has also been retained to prepare a
“Preliminary Engineers Report” or “PER.” The PER is a required part of the application process
needed to receive USDA funding for the Projects.

The USDA guidelines require the analysis and discovery of implications for project
related factors that include, but are not limited to, environmental impact(s), project
sustainability, technical feasibility, water and energy efficiency, economic feasibility, life-cycle
analysis, and the awareness and support of the public. These factors, implications, and costs are
discussed in the PER.

Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 25 of 79



Oceano Community Services District

Board of Directors Meeting

Cannon has drafted the PER setting forth all the elements required by USDA,
establishing the need to upgrade the water system to District standards and to improve overall
reliability. The District is now in a position to finalize the USDA application process and focus on
the financing aspects of the USDA process.

The USDA financing process is a two-stage undertaking, with stage one requiring the
District to seek and arrange short-term bridge financing to pay for the costs of constructing the
Projects, and stage two being the execution of the take out financing provided by USDA. Both
stages require experienced financial and legal consultants that specialize in these types of
municipal bond issuance matters.

The District has in the past (the recent pension UAL refinancing) utilized the services of
Weist Law LLP, as Bond Counsel, and California Municipal Advisors LLC, as Municipal Advisor.
Both firms are highly qualified to perform the work required for both stages of the financing
process required by USDA, having worked on many USDA project financings. The District can be
confident that they will help negotiate the best terms possible for the District and its residents.

Other Agency Involvement
The USDA would provide the financing to complete the Projects.

Other Financial Considerations

None at this time. However, because the consultants have agreed to work on a fully
contingent basis, only if the financing occurs, would there be cost implications to the District.
This includes staff time spent on administrative tasks associated with the financing process and
cost of issuance associated with the financing team of $45,000. Current interest rates on USDA

financing are in the range of 2% over a term of 40 years.

Results

Financing the improvements through USDA will take advantage of historically low
interest rates and create more budget predictability and save ratepayer money which
contributes to a safe, healthy, prosperous, and well-governed community.
Attachments:

Bond Counsel Services Agreement

Financial Advisory Services Agreement

Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 26 of 79



AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this  day of April, 2022 by and between the
Oceano Community Services District (the “District”), whose address is 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 93445,
and The Weist Law Firm (the “Bond Counsel”), whose address is 20 South Santa Cruz Avenue, Suite 300,
Los Gatos, California 95030.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the District desires to cause the issuance of certain municipal bond obligations (the
“Bonds”) to be purchased by the United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Department
(the “USDA”), as necessary to provide financing for the Oceano Community Services District, Water System
Upgrade Project (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, as a prerequisite to USDA’s commitment to provide long-term Bond financing for the
Project, the District is required to procure interim financing in the form of Bond Anticipation Notes (the
“Notes”), as well as the long-term take-out financing of the BANs through USDA bonds (the “Bonds,” and
together with the Notes, the “Debt Obligations”); and

WHEREAS, Bond Counsel has provided services to the District on past debt issuances and has
gained detailed knowledge and understanding of District's finances and current debt obligations; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain Bond Counsel to do the necessary legal work hereinafter
outlined, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, to cause the issuance and delivery of Debt
Obligations financing of the Project; and

WHEREAS, Bond Counsel is specifically trained and experienced in the conduct of proceedings for
the issuance of municipal securities such as the proposed Debt Obligations, and hereby represents that it is

ready, willing and able to perform said work; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and premises herein contained and other
good and valuable consideration, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. Scope of Services.

Bond Counsel Services: Bond Counsel shall provide the following legal services in connection with
the preparation of the resolutions, documents, certificates and regulatory forms necessary for the sale and
delivery of the Debt Obligations. Such services shall include the following:

1. Consult with representatives of USDA and the District, as well as the District’s financing
and accounting staff, engineers, advisors, and others, with respect to the timing, terms and legal structure of
each proposed issuance of Debt Obligations.

2. Prepare all resolutions, ordinances, notices, affidavits, Internal Revenue Service forms,
indentures, installment sale agreements, lease or loan agreements, and other legal documents customarily
prepared by Bond Counsel, as required for the issuance of each series of Debt Obligations (the “Principle
Documents”).

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
-1 -
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 27 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



3. Review relevant documents prepared by District staff, USDA representatives, financial
advisors, or consulting engineers, related to or having a direct bearing on the issuance of the Debt Obligations.

4. Review documentation with respect to any bond provisions, parity debt provisions and
reserve fund provisions provided or required by USDA having a bearing on the issuance of the Debt
Obligations.

5. Review the various financing structures that may be available to the District for securing the
Debt Obligations. Our analysis will examine the range of capital borrowing methods available to the District,
including, but not limited to, revenue bonds and certificates of participation.

6. Attend such meetings or hearings of the Board, as well as working group meetings or
conference calls as the District may request, and as Bond Counsel deems prudent and necessary.

7. Prepare final closing papers to be executed by the District required to effect delivery of the
Debt Obligations and coordination of the closing of the Debt Obligations.

8. Render Bond Counsel’s customary final legal opinion on the validity of each series of Debt
Obligations and the respective exemption from gross income for federal income tax purposes and from
California personal income tax of interest thereon.

9. Prepare the required reports to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
(pursuant to section 8855 et seq. of the Government Code) respecting the sale of the Debt Obligations and
Form 8038-G to the Internal Revenue Service (pursuant to Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986).

10. Prepare transcripts of the legal proceedings, containing originally signed copies of all
resolutions, ordinances, legal agreements, disclosure statements, certificates and notices. Two copies shall be
provided to the District, and every other member of the financing team shall be provided with one copy each.

Excluded Services Bond Counsel’s services are limited to those specifically set forth above. Bond
Counsel’s services do not include representation of the District or any other party to the transaction in any
litigation or other legal or administrative proceeding involving any of the Debt Obligations, the Project or any
other matter. Bond Counsel’s services also do not include legal services relating to the Project, including but
not limited to compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act, the National Environmental Policy
Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, the Hazardous
Material Transportation Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Safe Drinking Water Act, the Porter-Cologne Water
Quality Control Act, the Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986, the Hazardous Substance
Account Act, the Hazardous Waste Control Act, or any determinations pertaining to completion and readiness
for acceptance.

Bond Counsel’s services also do not include any responsibility for compliance with state blue sky,
environmental, land use, real estate or similar laws or for title to or perfection of security interests in real or
personal property, including the acquisition of interests in real property, whether through gift, negotiation or
the exercise of the power of eminent domain. Bond Counsel’s services also do not include any responsibility
the negotiation or preparation of joint powers agreements with other agencies. Bond Counsel will not be
responsible for the services performed or acts or omissions of any other participant.

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
0.
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 28 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



Also, Bond Counsel’s services relating to a series of Debt Obligations will not extend past the date
of issuance of such corresponding series of Debt Obligations and will not, for example, include services
related to on-going administration, annexation, rebate compliance or continuing disclosure or otherwise
related to the Debt Obligations, proceeds of the Debt Obligations or a refunding after issuance of the Debt
Obligations.

Bond Counsel may be willing to perform such excluded services on such terms as might be mutually
agreed to at the time of need. The performance by Bond Counsel of services excluded by the above paragraph,
if required by the District, shall be under separate written agreement.

Section 2. Compensation.

(a) Legal Fees for Bond Counsel Services in Connection with the Project. For each series of
Debt Obligations issued by the District in connection with the Project, Bond Counsel shall be paid a flat fee
of $29,500. This fee shall be increased by $2,500 on the twelfth month anniversary of this Agreement and
each for each twelfth month anniversary thereafter until either the Debt Obligations are issued or this
Agreement is terminated in accordance with Section 3 below.

(b) Out-of-Pocket Expenses. In addition to the legal fees, Bond Counsel shall be reimbursed its
normal and customary out-of-pocket expenses, including travel (including at of office fee of $650 per day of
travel) and customary mileage rates; parking charges and bridge tolls as incurred, photocopies at forty-five
cents per page, transcript preparation (which are expensed at $400 per transcript) and distribution; telephone
and facsimile charges as incurred, and postage and express delivery charges as incurred for each series of
Debt Obligations issued.

(c) Miscellaneous Legal Services. If and to the extent Bond Counsel is requested in writing (with
a return written acknowledgment by Bond Counsel) by the General Manager to perform legal services that
are outside the scope of services set forth in Section 1, Bond Counsel shall be paid at the agreed upon hourly
rate.

Section 3. Termination of Agreement and Legal Services.

This Agreement and all legal services to be rendered under it may be terminated at any time by written
notice from either party, with or without cause. In that event, all finished and unfinished documents prepared
for adoption or execution by the District, shall, at the option of the District, become its property and shall be
delivered to it or to any party it may designate; provided that Bond Counsel shall have no liability whatsoever
for any subsequent use of such documents. In the event of termination by the District, Bond Counsel shall be
paid for all services rendered (it being hereby agreed that not less than 80% of legal fees are deemed earned
upon Bond Counsel’s distribution of the Principal Documents), unless the termination is made for cause, in
which event compensation, if any, shall be adjusted in the light of the particular facts and circumstances
involved in the termination. This continuing right to receive compensation shall survive the term of this
Agreement.

If not sooner terminated as aforesaid, this Agreement and all legal services to be rendered under it
shall terminate upon issuance of the final series of Debt Obligations contemplated in this Agreement. Upon

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
-3-
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 29 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



termination, Bond Counsel shall have no future duty of any kind to or with respect to the Project, the Debt
Obligations or the District.

Section 4. Nature of Engagement.

The District acknowledges that Bond Counsel regularly performs legal services for many private and
public entities in connection with a wide variety of matters. Bond Counsel has represented, is representing or
may in the future represent other public entities, underwriters, trustees, rating agencies, insurers, credit
enhancement providers, lenders, contractors, suppliers, financial and other consultants/advisors, accountants,
investment providers/brokers, providers/brokers of derivative products and others who may have a role or
interest in the Debt Obligations or the Project or that may be involved with or adverse to the District in this
or some other matter. Bond Counsel agrees not to represent any such entity in connection with the Debt
Obligations during the term of this Agreement, without the consent of the District.

Given the special, limited role of Bond Counsel described above, the District hereby waives any
conflict of interest that might appear actually or potentially to exist, now or in the future, by virtue of this
Agreement or any such other attorney-client relationship that Bond Counsel may have had, have or enter into,
and except where Bond Counsel subsequently represents another client in the same or a substantially related
matter in which the prospective client’s interests are materially adverse to District’s interests, the District
specifically consents to any and all such relationships.

Section 5. Standards of Professional Conduct.

Bond Counsel and every employee thereof shall provide their services, advice and any reports in full
compliance with all applicable law and professional standards. Bond Counsel represents that it is specially
trained, experienced, expert and competent to perform the services required under this Agreement, and that
each individual providing legal services is a member in good standing of the State Bar and is licensed to
practice in California. Bond Counsel certifies that it will not accept representation in any matters, including
litigation, under this Agreement if it or any employee thereof has any personal or financial interest therein.

Bond Counsel certifies that it accepts this retention because it has the time, energy, skills and ability
necessary to perform the duties required in an efficient, trustworthy, professional and businesslike manner. It
is understood that the services under this Agreement must be provided immediately, and that they are time-
critical. Bond Counsel is engaged by District for its unique qualifications and skills.

Bond Counsel shall not subcontract, delegate or assign the services to be provided under this
Agreement, in whole or in part, to any other person or entity not employed in Bond Counsel’s firm without
consent of District.

Bond Counsel agrees that it will comply with all ethical duties, will maintain the integrity of the Bond
Counsel-client relationship, and will take all steps available to preserve all applicable legal privileges,
confidences, and records from disclosure; however, where it is contended by third parties the Bond Counsel’s
work product or attorney-client privileged communications are subject to disclosure, and District directs Bond
Counsel to not disclose the records, District agrees to indemnify Bond Counsel from any cost or expense
related to protecting said records from disclosure.

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
-4 -
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 30 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



Section 6. No Guarantee of Qutcome.

District hereby acknowledges and agrees that this is a best efforts undertaking, and that no guarantee
of success or outcome has been, or can be, made by Bond Counsel.

Section 7. Arbitration.

Any controversy, claim or dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, shall be settled solely
and exclusively by binding arbitration in San Jose, California. Such arbitration shall be conducted in
accordance with the then prevailing commercial arbitration rules of JAMS/Endispute (“JAMS”), with the
following exceptions if in conflict: (a) one arbitrator shall be chosen by JAMS; (b) each party to the arbitration
will pay its pro rata share of the expenses and fees of the arbitrator, together with other expenses of the
arbitration incurred or approved by the arbitrator; and (c) arbitration may proceed in the absence of any party
if written notice (pursuant to the JAMS’ rules and regulations) of the proceedings has been given to such
party. Each party shall bear its own attorneys fees and expenses.

The parties agree to abide by all decisions and awards rendered in such proceedings. Such decisions
and awards rendered by the arbitrator shall be final and conclusive. All such controversies, claims or disputes
shall be settled in this manner in lieu of any action at law or equity; provided however, that nothing in this
Section shall be construed as precluding the bringing an action for injunctive relief or other equitable relief.
The arbitrator shall not have the right to award punitive damages or speculative damages to either party and
shall not have the power to amend this Agreement. The arbitrator shall be required to follow applicable law.
If for any reason this arbitration clause becomes not applicable, then each party submits to the ongoing
jurisdiction of the state of California and/or the United States District Court for the enforcement hereof.

Section 8. Indemnification.

District agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless Bond Counsel and its affiliates, and its and
their respective directors, officers, employees, agents and controlling persons (Bond Counsel and each such
person being an “Indemnified Party”) from and against any and all losses, claims, damages and liabilities,
joint or several, as incurred, to which such Indemnified Party may become subject under any applicable
United States, federal or state law, or any applicable foreign law, or otherwise, and related to or arising out
of any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any information, including
without limitation the due diligence disclosure relating to the Project or the Debt Obligations (the
“Disclosure”), furnished or made available by District, to Bond Counsel or otherwise, to the offeree of the
Debt Obligations or any of its representatives or the omission or the alleged omission to state therein a material
fact necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made; provided, however, that District will not be liable to the extent that any loss, claim,
damage or liability is found in a final judgment by a court to have resulted from Bond Counsel’s bad faith or
negligence in performing the services described above.

Section 9. Insurance.

Bond Counsel specifically represents that it maintains errors and omissions insurance of a minimum
of $1,000,000/$2,000,000 aggregate applicable to the Bond Counsel services to be rendered under this
Agreement.

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
-5-
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 31 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



Section 10. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between Bond Counsel and District. All previous
proposals, offers and communications relative to the Project, the Debt Obligations and this Agreement,
whether oral or written, are hereby superseded except to the extent that they have been incorporated into this
Agreement.

No future waiver of or exception to any of the terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement
shall be considered valid unless specifically agreed to in writing by both Bond Counsel and District. No oral
agreement or implied covenant shall be held to vary the provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement shall
bind and inure to the benefit of the parties to this Agreement and any subsequent successors or assigns as may
be permitted pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 11. Modification.

Both District and Bond Counsel understand that it may be desirable or necessary during the execution
of this Agreement for Bond Counsel or District to modify the scope of services provided for under this
Agreement. Any material extension or change in the scope of work shall be discussed with District and all
changes and their cost shall be memorialized in a written amendment to this original Agreement prior to the
performance of the additional work.

Until a written change order is so executed, District shall not be responsible to pay any charges Bond
Counsel may incur in performing such additional services, and correspondingly Bond Counsel shall not be
required to perform any such additional services.

Section 12. Severability.

All sections and subsections of this Agreement are severable, and the unenforceability or invalidity
of any of the sections or subsections of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the
remaining sections or subsections of this Agreement, but such remaining sections or subsections shall be
interpreted and construed in such a manner as to carry out fully the intention of the parties.

Therefore, if any part, term, or provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, unenforceable, or in
conflict with any law of a federal, state, or local government having jurisdiction over this Agreement, the
validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected by such holding and shall nevertheless
continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

Section 13. Waiver.

The waiver by either party of a default or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent default or breach of the same or of a different provision of that
party. No waiver or modification of this Agreement or of any covenant condition, or limitation contained in
this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and duly executed by the party or parties to be charged
therewith.

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
-6 -
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 32 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



Section 14. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each counterpart shall for all
purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same

Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
respective officers and representatives thereto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above written.

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

Will Clemens, General Manager

THE WEIST LAW FIRM

By:

Cameron A. Weist, Esq.

AGREEMENT FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES
-7 -
Agenda Item 8A April 13, 2022 - Page 33 of 79 Attachment - Bond Counsel Services



CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC
AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this _ day of April
2022, by and between the Oceano Community Services District, a public agency organized and
operating under the laws of the State of California, with its principal place of business at 1655
Front Street, Oceano, CA 93445 (the “Client”), and California Municipal Advisors LLC, a
California Limited Liability Company, with its principal place of business at 20 South Santa Cruz
Avenue, Suite 300, Los Gatos, CA 95030 (“CalMuni”), sets forth the terms and conditions under
which CalMuni shall provide financial advisory services to the Client.

WHEREAS, the Client wishes to obtain the services of a financial advisor on an exclusive
basis to assist in financial planning and financing management in connection with the execution
and delivery of bond anticipation notes (the “BANs”), as well as the long term take-out financing
of the BANs through USDA bonds (the “Bonds,” and together with the BANs, the “Debt
Obligations™), the proceeds of which are being used to acquire and construct the Client’s
Wastewater Systems’ Compliance Project (the “Compliance Project”); and

WHEREAS, CalMuni is duly licensed and has the necessary qualifications to provide the
Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the President of the Board of Directors of the Client and the Client’s General
Manager are each individually authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Client; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained
herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Client and CalMuni agree as follows:

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

A. CalMuni shall provide the services described in Exhibit A to this Agreement
(hereinafter referred to interchangeably as the “Services” or “Scope of Services”). The Client
acknowledges and agrees that most tasks requested by the Client will not require all services
provided for in Exhibit A and as such the specific scope of services for such task shall be limited
to those services required to complete the specific task. Any material changes in or additions to
the Scope of Services described in Exhibit A shall be promptly reflected in a written supplement
or amendment to this Agreement. Services provided by CalMuni which are not specifically
referenced in the Scope of Services shall be completed as agreed in writing in advance between
the Client and CalMuni. Upon request of the Client, CalMuni or an affiliate of CalMuni may agree
to additional services to be provided by CalMuni or an affiliate of CalMuni, by a separate
agreement between the Client and CalMuni or its respective affiliate.

B. CalMuni shall perform all such work with skill and diligence and pursuant to
generally accepted standards of practice in effect at the time of performance. CalMuni shall
provide corrective services without charge to the Client for work which fails to meet these
standards, and which is reported to CalMuni in writing within sixty (60) days of discovery.

Page | 1
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 34 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



C. The Client shall cooperate with CalMuni and will furnish all information, data,
records, and reports existing and available to the Client to enable CalMuni to carry out work
outlined in the Scope of Services. CalMuni shall be entitled to reasonably rely on information,
data, records, and reports furnished by the Client, however, the Client makes no warranty as to the
accuracy or completeness of any such information, data, records, or reports available to it and
provided to CalMuni which were furnished to the Client by a third party.

D. CalMuni shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish all facilities and equipment that
may be required for furnishing Services pursuant to this Agreement. The Client shall furnish to
CalMuni no facilities or equipment, unless the Client otherwise agrees in writing to provide the
same.

E. Upon the Client’s request, CalMuni shall provide, in a form acceptable to the
Client, written progress reports of all oral and written observations, opinions, recommendations,
analyses, progress and conclusions related to CalMuni’s performance of the Services.

SECTION II. WORK SCHEDULE

The services of CalMuni are to commence as soon as practicable after the execution of this
Agreement. CalMuni shall thereafter diligently perform the Services through to completion unless
otherwise directed by the Client or unless earlier terminated.

SECTION III. REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ADVISOR; REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

A. CalMuni is a registered municipal advisor with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”),
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 15Bal-2. This Agreement designates
CalMuni as the Client’s independent registered municipal advisor (“IRMA”) with regard to the
attached Scope of Services for purposes of SEC Rule 15Bal-1(d)(3)(vi) (the “IRMA Exemption™).
CalMuni shall not be responsible for, or have any liability in connection with, verifying that
CalMuni is independent from any other party seeking to rely on the IRMA Exemption (as such
independent status is required pursuant to the IRMA Exemption, as interpreted from time to time
by the SEC). The Client acknowledges and agrees that any reference to CalMuni, its personnel,
and its role as IRMA, including in the written representation of the Client required under SEC Rule
15Bal-1(d)(3)(vi)(B) shall be subject to prior approval by CalMuni. The Client further agrees not
to represent that CalMuni is the Client’s IRMA with respect to any aspect of a municipal securities
issuance or municipal financial product, outside of the attached Scope of Services or without
CalMuni’s prior written consent.

B. MSRB Rule G-42 requires that municipal advisors make written disclosures to its
Clients of all material conflicts of interest and certain legal or disciplinary events. Such disclosures
are provided in CalMuni’s Disclosure Statement delivered to the Client together with this
Agreement as Exhibit C.

Page | 2
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 350f 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



SECTION IV. FINANCIAL ADVISORY COMPENSATION

For the Services provided under this Agreement, CalMuni’s professional fees shall be paid
as provided in Exhibit B to this Agreement. Any services which are not included in the Scope of
Services set forth in Exhibit A of this Agreement will be subject to separate, mutually acceptable
fee structures.

SECTION V. TERMS AND TERMINATION

A. Unless otherwise provided, the term of this Agreement shall begin on the date of
its full execution and shall expire on April 1, 2027 unless extended by amendment or terminated
earlier as provided herein.

B. The Client may suspend this Agreement and CalMuni’s performance of the
Services, wholly or in part, for such period as it deems necessary in the Client’s sole discretion.
CalMuni will be paid for satisfactory services performed through the date of suspension.

C. If CalMuni at any time refuses or neglects to perform its Services in a timely fashion
or in accordance with the schedule identified in Exhibit A, or is declared bankrupt, or commits any
act of insolvency, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors without Client’s consent, or
fails to make prompt payment to persons furnishing labor, equipment, materials or services, or
fails in any respect to properly and diligently perform its Services, or otherwise fails to perform
fully any and all of the Agreements herein contained, this Agreement shall be terminated.

D. If CalMuni fails to cure the default within seven (7) days after written notice from
the Client, the Client may, at its sole option, demand possession of any documents or other
materials (in paper and electronic form) prepared or used by CalMuni in connection with the
provision of Services and (1) provide any such work, labor, materials or services as may be
necessary to overcome the default and deduct the cost thereof from any money then due or
thereafter to become due to CalMuni under this Agreement; or (2) terminate this Agreement.

E. This Agreement and all Services to be rendered under it may be terminated upon
fifteen (15) days written notice from either party, with or without cause. In the event Client elects
to terminate this Agreement, CalMuni shall be paid for all services rendered, unless the termination
is made for cause, in which event compensation, if any, shall be adjusted in the light of the
particular facts and circumstances involved in the termination. This continuing right to receive full
compensation shall survive the term of this Agreement. All Services to be rendered hereunder
pertaining to the issuance and sale of the Debt Obligations shall be considered concluded upon
issuance of such Debt Obligations. Therefore, upon issuance of the Debt Obligations, CalMuni
shall have no future duty of any kind to or with respect to the Client pertaining to such Debt
Obligations.

SECTION VI. ASSIGNMENT

CalMuni shall not assign any interest in this Agreement or subcontract any of the work
performed under the Agreement without the prior written consent of the Client.

Page | 3
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 36 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



SECTION VII. INFORMATION TO BE FURNISHED TO CALMUNI

All information, data, reports, and records (“Data”) in the possession of the Client or any
third party agent to the Client necessary for carrying out any services to be performed under this
Agreement shall be furnished to CalMuni, and the Client shall cause its agent(s) to cooperate with
CalMuni in its conduct of reasonable due diligence in performing the services, including with
respect to the facts that are necessary in its recommendation(s) to the Client in connection with a
municipal securities transaction or municipal financial product and/or relevant to the Client’s
determination whether to proceed with a course of action.

To the extent the Client requests that CalMuni provide advice with regard to any
recommendation made by a third party, the Client will provide to CalMuni written direction to do
so as well as any Data it has received from such third party relating to its recommendation. The
Client acknowledges and agrees that while CalMuni is relying on the Data in connection with its
provision of the services under this Agreement, CalMuni makes no representation with respect to
and shall not be responsible for the accuracy or completeness of such Data.

SECTION VIII. NOTICES

All notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing, sent by registered United States
mail, with return receipt requested, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at the designated
below. The parties designate the following as the respective places for giving notice, to wit:

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
1655 Front Street

Oceano, CA 93445

Attention: General Manager

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC
20 South Santa Cruz Avenue, Suite 300

Los Gatos, CA 95030

Attention: Andrew Flynn

SECTION IX. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Except to the extent caused by willful misconduct, bad faith, gross negligence, or reckless
disregard of obligations or duties under this Agreement on the part of CalMuni or any of its
associated persons, neither CalMuni nor any of its associated persons shall have liability to any
person for any act or omission in connection with performance of its services hereunder, or for any
error of judgment or mistake of law, or for any loss arising out of any issuance of municipal
securities, any municipal financial product or any other financial product or investment, or for any
financial or other damages resulting from the Client’s election to act or not to act, as the case may
be, contrary to or, absent negligence on the part of CalMuni or any of its associated persons, upon
any advice or recommendation provided by CalMuni to the Client.

Page | 4
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 37 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



SECTION X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY

CalMuni, its employees, officers and representatives at all times shall be independent
contractors and shall not be deemed to be employees, agents, partners, servants and/or joint
venturers of the Client by virtue of this Agreement or any actions or services rendered under this
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to give any person, other
than the Parties hereto, their successors and permitted assigns, any legal or equitable rights,
remedy, or claim under or in respect of this Agreement or any provisions contained herein.

SECTION XI. NO GUARANTEE OF OUTCOME

The Client hereby acknowledges and agrees that this is a best effort undertaking, and that
no guarantee of success or outcome has been, or can be, made by CalMuni.

SECTION XII. APPLICABLE LAW

This Agreement shall be construed, enforced, and administered according to the laws of
the State of California. CalMuni and the Client agree that, should a disagreement arise as to the
terms or enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, each party will in good faith attempt to
resolve said disagreement prior to pursuing other action.

SECTION XIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; SEVERABILITY

This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Client and CalMuni and may
not be amended or modified except in writing signed by both parties. The invalidity in whole or in
part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

SECTION XIV. EXECUTION;: COUNTERPARTS

Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants that the person or persons signing
this Agreement on behalf of such party is authorized and empowered to sign and deliver this
Agreement for such party. This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts, each of
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same
document.

[Signature Page to Follow on Next Page]

Page | 5
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 38 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



IN WITNESS THEREOQF, the Client and CalMuni have executed this Agreement as of the
day and year herein above written.

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

Name:

Title:

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

By:

Name:

Title:

Page | 6
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 39 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

A-1I Financial Planning and Financing Management.

e Refinancing Alternatives and Plan. Explore various refinancing alternatives available to
the Client pertaining to the Compliance Project and develop a refinancing plan, including
recommendations as to the method of sale, timing, sizing and structure of the Debt
Obligations to be transacted based on optimized savings opportunities, projected cash flow
requirements, bonding capacity, and targeted revenue / rate threshold.

A-II Issuance of Debt Obligations.

e Financing Schedule. Manage the financing process for each issuance of Debt Obligations
and coordinate activities of financing team members. Prepare a schedule of activities and
ensure the financing for each issuance of Debt Obligations is completed in a timely manner.

o  Method of Sale, Timing, Sizing and Structure of Debt Obligations. Assist the Client in
creating the financing plan for the Debt Obligations including timing, sizing, and structure.

a. Method of Sale. Advise as to the appropriate method of sale for the Debt Obligations.

b. Preparation of Lender Request for Proposals. Assist the Client with the preparation
and distribution of Request for Proposals to banks and assist the Client with analysis
the responses of the responding banks.

c. Timing of Issuances. Advise as to the timing for each series of Debt Obligations to be
sold based upon the Client’s historical and projected revenues and expenses, market
interest rate environment, and other factors.

d. Sizing of Issues. Advise as to the sizing of the Debt Obligations to be sold based on the
nature of the financing, federal tax law limitations, state regulatory restrictions, targeted
tax rates, goals of the financing program, and other matters.

e. Structure of Debt Obligations. Advise as to the repayment structure of the Debt
Obligations to be sold based on targeted tax rates, impact on interest costs, prudent debt
management practices, and other considerations.

e Rating Agency Preparation. Prepare the rating strategy and rating agency credit
presentation to optimize the credit rating assigned to the Debt Obligations, if applicable.

e Lender Due Diligence Assistance. Assist the Client in providing due diligence information
requested by lenders, if applicable.

Page | A-1
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 40 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



e Authorizing Documentation. Provide bond counsel with information necessary for the
preparation of authorizing documentation. Review authorizing documentation prior to their
approval.

e Pricing Strategy. CalMuni will assist the Client throughout the sales negotiation process
with the Underwriter / Placement Agent.

a. Advise the Client on the propriety of the Underwriter's or Placement Agent’s proposed
pricing and compensation relative to the current market conditions;

b. Negotiate to provide the lowest available rates and costs to the Client;
c. Provide the Client with a pricing analysis of proposed financing alternatives; and
d. Provide quantitative schedules showing the results of the final pricing.

o Closing Documentation. Review closing documents and otherwise assist in the closing of
the transaction.

A-III. Annual CDIAC Debt Transparency Reporting (SB 1029)

In the case of financing transactions, Effective January 1, 2017, state and local issuers are required
to submit an annual debt transparency report for any issue of debt for which they have submitted a
Report of Final Sale to CDIAC during the reporting period. The annual debt transparency report is
due to CDIAC no later than January 31st of each year (beginning January 31, 2018) for any debt
outstanding at any point during the prior fiscal year. At a minimum, the annual debt transparency
report will require issuers to include:

* Debt authorized during the reporting period, which shall include:
- Debt authorized at the beginning of the reporting period
- Debt authorized and issued during the reporting period
- Debt authorized but not issued at the end of the reporting period
- Debt authority that has lapsed during the reporting period

* Debt outstanding during the reporting period, which shall include the following:
- Principal balance at the beginning of the reporting period
- Principal paid during the reporting period
- Principal outstanding at the end of the reporting period

* The use of proceeds of issued debt during the reporting period, which shall include the following:
- Debt proceeds available at the beginning of the reporting period
- Proceeds spent during the reporting period and the purposes for which it was spent
- Debt proceeds remaining at the end of the reporting period

CalMuni will work with the Client to complete the Annual Debt Transparency reports and submit
them on behalf of the Client.

Page | A-2
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 41 0f 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



A-IV Non-Contingent Services.

e Ongoing Program Management. Provide ongoing support for the Client’s debt
management program as mutually agreed upon between the Client and CalMuni including,
but not limited to, investment of debt obligation proceeds and reserve fund moneys,
continuing disclosure compliance management, assistance with the levy and collection of
taxes/revenues, and the repayment of the debt obligations.

e Ongoing Responsibilities. Review certain ongoing responsibilities of the Client as an issuer
of debt obligations, including responsibilities with regard to state law obligations, federal
tax law obligations, and other, and assist in the arrangement of certain ongoing services at
the written request of the Client.

COST IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CLIENT

The Client understands that there are several program costs that are required for completion of the
Debt Obligations that shall be the responsibility of the Client. These may include the cost of
printing and distributing the Official Statements, notices, accountants, insurance, title reports,
rating services, bond insurance, bond counsel, trustees, disclosure counsel, and of any other experts
required for completion of the Debt Obligations.

Page | A-3
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 42 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES

For the Services described in Sections A-I (Financial Planning and Financing
Management) and A-II (Issuance of Debt Obligations) of Exhibit A, CalMuni will be paid a flat
fee of $15,000 for each series of Debt Obligations to be paid at the time of issuance from such
Debt Obligation proceeds, plus reasonably incurred out of pocket expenses, including travel,
conference calls, printing, data services, and other reimbursable expenses not to exceed $1,350. If
there are material changes to the complexity of the financing or other unanticipated circumstances,
a different fee may be negotiated by mutual written agreement between CalMuni and the Client.

For the Services described in Section A-III (Annual CDIAC Debt Transparency Reporting)
of Exhibit A, CalMuni will be compensated on the basis an annual flat fee of $450 per annual
transaction report, plus reasonably incurred out of pocket expenses, including printing, data
services, and other reimbursable expenses not to exceed $150. The invoice for these services will
be submitted upon completion and submission of the Report to CDIAC.

For non-contingent services described Section A-IV (Non-Contingent Services) of Exhibit
A, CalMuni shall be compensated at the following hourly rates:

Title Rate

Principal $325
Associate $225
Analyst $175

Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 43 0f 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



EXHIBIT C
DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND OTHER INFORMATION
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL ADVISORS LLC

I. Introduction

California Municipal Advisors LLC (hereinafter, referred to as “CalMuni”) is a registered
municipal advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Rule 15Bal-2. In accordance with MSRB rules, this disclosure statement is provided by us to each
client prior to the execution of its advisory agreement with written disclosures of all material
conflicts of interests and legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed with respect
to providing financial advisory services pursuant to MSRB Rule G-42(b) and (c) (ii). CalMuni
employs a number of resources to identify and subsequently manage actual or potential conflicts
of interest in addition to disclosing actual and potential conflicts of interest provided herein.

How We Identify and Manage Conflicts of Interest

Code of Ethics. CalMuni requires all of its employees to conduct all aspects of our business with
the highest standards of integrity, honesty and fair dealing. All employees are required to avoid
even the appearance of misconduct or impropriety and avoid actual or apparent conflicts of interest
between personal and professional relationships that would or could interfere with an employee’s
independent exercise of judgment in performing the obligations and responsibilities owed to a
municipal advisor and our clients.

Policies and Procedures. CalMuni has adopted policies and procedures that include specific rules
and standards for conduct. Some of these policies and procedures provide guidance and reporting
requirements about matters that allow us to monitor behavior that might give rise to a conflict of
interest. These include policies concerning the making of gifts and charitable contributions,
entertaining clients, and engaging in outside activities, all of which may involve relationships with
clients and others that are important to our analysis of potential conflicts of interest.

Supervisory Structure. CalMuni has both a compliance and supervisory structure in place that
enables us to identify and monitor employees’ activities, both on a transaction and firm-wide basis,
to ensure compliance with appropriate standards. Prior to undertaking any engagement with a new
client or an additional engagement with an existing client, appropriate municipal advisory
personnel will review the possible intersection of the client’s interests, the proposed engagement,
our engagement personnel, experience and existing obligations to other clients and related parties.
This review, together with employing the resources described above, allows us to evaluate any
situations that may be an actual or potential conflict of interest.

Disclosures. CalMuni will disclose to clients those situations that it believes would create a
material conflict of interest, such as:

1) any advice, service or product that any affiliate may provide to a client that is directly related
to the municipal advisory work of CalMuni;

2) any payment made to obtain or retain a municipal advisory engagement with a client;

Page | C-1
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 44 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



3) any fee-splitting arrangement with any provider of an investment or services to a client;

4) any conflict that may arise from the type of compensation arrangement we may have with a
client; and

5) any other actual or potential situation that CalMuni is or becomes aware of that might constitute
amaterial conflict of interest that could reasonably be expected to impair our ability to provide
advice to or on behalf of clients consistent with regulatory requirements.

If CalMuni identifies such situations or circumstances, we will prepare meaningful disclosure
describing the implications of the situation and how we intend to manage the situation. CalMuni
will also disclose any legal or disciplinary events that are material to a client’s evaluation or the
integrity of our management or advisory personnel. CalMuni will provide this disclosure (or a
means to access this information) in writing prior to starting our proposed engagement, and will
provide such additional information or clarification as the client may request. CalMuni will also
advise clients in writing of any subsequent material conflict of interest that may arise, as well as
the related implications, its plan to manage that situation, and any additional information such
client may require.

I1. General Conflict of Interest Disclosures
Disclosure of Conflicts Concerning the Firm’s Affiliates

CalMuni’s affiliates offer a wide variety of financial and legal services, and our clients may be
interested in pursuing an affiliate’s services separately. The affiliate’s business with the client
could create an incentive for CalMuni to recommend a course of action designed to increase the
level of the client’s business activities with the affiliate or to recommend against a course of action
that would reduce the client’s business activities with the affiliate. In either instance, CalMuni may
be perceived as recommending services for a client that are not in the best interests of our clients,
but rather are in our interests or the interests of our affiliates. Accordingly, CalMuni mitigates any
perceived conflict of interest that may arise in this situation by disclosing it to the client, and by
requiring that there be a review of the municipal securities transaction or municipal financial
product to ensure that it is suitable for the client in light of various factors, after reasonable inquiry,
including the client’s needs, objectives and financial circumstances. Further, CalMuni receives no
compensation from its affiliates with respect to a client introduction or referral. If a client chooses
to work with an affiliate, we require that the client consult and enter into a separate agreement for
services, so that the client can make an independent, informed, evaluation of the services offered.

Disclosure of Conflicts Related to the Firm’s Compensation

From time to time, CalMuni may be compensated by a municipal advisory fee that is or will be set
forth in an agreement with the client to be, or that has been, negotiated and entered into in
connection with a municipal advisory service. Payment of such fee may be contingent on the
closing of the transaction and the amount of the fee may be based, in whole or in part, on a
percentage of the principal or par amount of municipal securities or municipal financial product.
While this form of compensation is customary in the municipal securities market, it may be deemed
to present a conflict of interest since we may appear to have an incentive to recommend to the
client a transaction that is larger in size than is necessary. Further, CalMuni may also receive
compensation in the form of a fixed fee arrangement. While this form of compensation is

Page | C-2
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 450f 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



customary, it may also present a potential conflict of interest if the transaction ultimately requires
less work than contemplated and we are perceived as recommending a more economically friendly
pay arrangement. Finally, CalMuni may contract with clients on an hourly fee basis. If CalMuni
and the client do not agree on a maximum amount of hours at the outset of the engagement, this
arrangement may pose a conflict of interest as we would not have a financial incentive to
recommend an alternative that would result in fewer hours. CalMuni manages and mitigates all of
these types of conflicts by disclosing the fee structure to the client, and by requiring that there be
a review of the municipal securities transaction or municipal financial product to ensure that it is
suitable for the client in light of various factors, after reasonable inquiry, including the client’s
needs, objectives, and financial circumstances.

Disclosure Concerning Provision of Services to State and Local Government, and Non-Profit
Clients

CalMuni regularly provides financial advisory services to state and local governments, their
agencies, and instrumentalities, and non-profit clients. While our clients have expressed that this
experience in providing services to a wide variety of clients generally provides great benefit for
all of our clients, there may be or may have been clients with interests that are different from (and
adverse to) other clients. If for some reason any client sees our engagement with any other
particular client as a conflict, we will mitigate this conflict by engaging in a broad range of conduct,
if and as applicable. Such conduct may include one or any combination of the following: 1)
disclosing the conflict to the client; 2) requiring that there be a review of the municipal securities
transaction or municipal financial product to ensure that it is suitable for the client in light of
various factors, including the client’s needs, objectives and financial circumstances; 3)
implementing procedures that establishes a “firewall” that creates physical, technological and
procedural barriers and/or separations to ensure that non-public information is isolated to particular
area such that certain governmental transaction team members and supporting functions operate
separately during the course of work performed; and 4) in the rare event that a conflict cannot be
resolved, we will withdraw from the engagement.

Disclosure Related to Legal and Disciplinary Events

As registered municipal advisors with the SEC and the MSRB, pursuant to the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 Rule 15Bal-2, our legal, disciplinary and judicial events are required to be disclosed
on our forms MA and MA-I filed with the SEC, in ‘Item 9 Disclosure Information’ of form MA,
‘Item 6 Disclosure Information’ of form MA-I, and if applicable, the corresponding disclosure
reporting page(s). To review the foregoing disclosure items and material change(s) or
amendment(s), if any, clients may electronically access CalMuni filed forms MA and MA-I on the
SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system, listed by date of filing starting
with the most recently filed.

III. Specific Conflicts of Interest Disclosures — Client

The principal of Weist Law LLP (“WeistLaw”), Cameron Weist, is also a principal of CalMuni.
We do not believe that this duel representation creates a conflict because the California Rules of
Professional Conduct governing the ethical standards imposed on lawyers are aligned with and
equal or exceed the fiduciary duties imposed on municipal advisors, and also because CalMuni
receives no compensation from WeistLaw, or vice versa, and both firms are independently engaged

Page | C-3
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 46 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



under separate contracts which have been vetted in light of various factors, including the client’s
needs, objectives and legal and financial circumstances, to ensure that each such client has made
an independent, informed, evaluation of the type and quality of services offered by each entity. If
you believe this creates a conflict, please do not sign this Agreement.

To our knowledge, following reasonable inquiry, we are not aware of any other actual or potential
conflict of interest that could reasonably be anticipated to impair our ability to provide advice to
or on behalf of the Client in accordance with applicable standards of conduct of MSRB Rule G-
42.

Page | C-4
Agenda Item 8A April 13,2022 - Page 47 of 79 Attachment - Financial Advisory Services



Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730  FAX (805) 481-6836

Date: April 13, 2022
To: Board of Directors
From: Will Clemens, General Manager

Subject: Agenda Item #8(b): Consideration of whether to fill the vacancy on the Board of Directors
by appointment until the person elected in the November 2022 election to fill the vacancy
has been qualified.

Recommendation

It is recommended that your Board consider whether you will fill the vacancy on the Board of
Directors by appointment until the person elected in the November 2022 election to fill the vacancy
has been qualified.

Discussion

Attached are provisions of the California Government Code Section 61042 relating to vacancies
on the Board of Directors for a Community Services District, which refers to Government Code Section
1780 for determining how the vacancy may be filled. Director Replogle’s recent resignation was
greater than 130 days prior to the next general election in November 2022. As a result, staff has been
advised by both legal counsel and the office of the County Clerk that your Board may fill the vacancy
for an interim period, but not for the remainder of Ms. Replogle's term. Also attached is the Manual
on How to Fill a Vacancy prepared by the County of San Luis Obispo Clerk-Recorder.

The November 2022 ballot will include the vacancy and the person elected, once qualified, will
fill the remainder of Ms. Replogle's term (two years). The Board's option to fill the vacancy for the
interim period requires that "the district shall post a notice of the vacancy in three or more
conspicuous places in the district at least 15 days before the district board makes the appointment."
The posting requirement will allow your Board to make the interim appointment at your May 11, 2022,
regular meeting, or sooner if your Board chooses to hold a special meeting. Normally, persons elected
are sworn in at the first regular meeting in December. As a result, if your Board chooses to appoint a
Board member, the period of the appointment would be approximately seven (7) months.

April 13, 2022 - Page 48 of 79



Oceano Community Services District

Board of Directors Meeting

Because Director Replogle was elected At-large in 2020, any appointment to fill the vacancy, as
well as the election in November 2022 to fill the remainder of her term, will be done At-large.
Subsequent elections, beginning in November 2024 for the newly created Division 4 Board position,
will be held by-division.

Other Agency Involvement

The County Clerk's office conducts the elections.
Financial Considerations

n/a
Results

Consideration of appointing an interim Director is optional.
Attachments:

e Government Code Section 61042.
e Government Code Section 1780.
e Vacancy Manual

April 13, 2022 - Page 49 of 79



@
rl_’LJlll STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHENTICATED

ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL
State of California
GOVERNMENT CODE

Section 61042

61042. (a) The term of office of each member of a board of directors is four years
or until his or her successor qualifies and takes office. Directors shall take office at
noon on the first Friday in December following their election.

(b) For districts formed before January 1, 2006, where the members of the board
of directors are not serving staggered terms, at the first meeting after January 1, 2006,
the members shall classify themselves by lot into two classes. One class shall have
three members and the other class shall have two members. For the class that has
three members, the terms of the offices that begin after the next general district election
shall be four years. For the class that has two members, the initial terms of the offices
that begin after the next general district election shall be two years. Thereafter, the
terms of all members shall be four years.

(¢) Any vacancy in the office of a member elected to a board of directors shall be
filled pursuant to Section 1780.

(Added by Stats. 2005, Ch. 249, Sec. 3. Effective January 1, 2006.)

April 13, 2022 - Page 50 of 7Q&tachment - GOV § 61042



@
"-"‘J'ul STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHENTICATED

ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL

State of California
GOVERNMENT CODE

Section 1780

1780. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a vacancy in any elective
office on the governing board of a special district, other than those specified in Section
1781, shall be filled pursuant to this section.

(b) The district shall notify the county elections official of the vacancy no later
than 15 days after either the date on which the district board is notified of the vacancy
or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later.

(c) The remaining members of the district board may fill the vacancy either by
appointment pursuant to subdivision (d) or by calling an election pursuant to
subdivision (e).

(d) (1) The remaining members of the district board shall make the appointment
pursuant to this subdivision within 60 days after either the date on which the district
board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is
later. The district shall post a notice of the vacancy in three or more conspicuous
places in the district at least 15 days before the district board makes the appointment.
The district shall notify the county elections official of the appointment no later than
15 days after the appointment.

(2) If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at least 130 days
prior to the next general district election, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall
hold office until the next general district election that is scheduled 130 or more days
after the date the district board is notified of the vacancy, and thereafter until the
person who is elected at that election to fill the vacancy has been qualified. The person
elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired balance of the term of
office.

(3) Ifthe vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office, but less than 130 days
prior to the next general district election, or if the vacancy occurs in the second half
of a term of office, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall fill the balance of
the unexpired term of office.

(e) (1) Inlieu of making an appointment the remaining members of the board may
within 60 days of the date the district board is notified of the vacancy or the effective
date of the vacancy, whichever is later, call an election to fill the vacancy.

(2) The election called pursuant to this subdivision shall be held on the next
established election date provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1000) of
Division 1 of the Elections Code that is 130 or more days after the date the district
board calls the election.

(f) (1) If the vacancy is not filled by the district board by appointment, or if the
district board has not called for an election within 60 days of the date the district board

April 13, 2022 - Page 51 of 79ttachment - GOV § 1780



is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later, then
the city council of the city in which the district is wholly located, or if the district is
not wholly located within a city, the board of supervisors of the county representing
the larger portion of the district area in which the election to fill the vacancy will be
held, may appoint a person to fill the vacancy within 90 days of the date the district
board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is
later, or the city council or board of supervisors may order the district to call an
election to fill the vacancy.

(2) The election called pursuant to this subdivision shall be held on the next
established election date provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1000) of
Division 1 of the Elections Code that is 130 or more days after the date the city council
or board of supervisors calls the election.

(g) (1) If within 90 days of the date the district board is notified of the vacancy
or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later, the remaining members of the
district board or the appropriate board of supervisors or city council have not filled
the vacancy and no election has been called for, then the district board shall call an
election to fill the vacancy.

(2) The election called pursuant to this subdivision shall be held on the next
established election date provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1000) of
Division 1 of the Elections Code that is 130 or more days after the date the district
board calls the election.

(h) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, if the number of
remaining members of the district board falls below a quorum, then at the request of
the district secretary or a remaining member of the district board, the appropriate
board of supervisors or the city council shall promptly appoint a person to fill the
vacancy, or may call an election to fill the vacancy.

(2) The board of supervisors or the city council shall only fill enough vacancies
by appointment or by election to provide the district board with a quorum.

(3) If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at least 130 days
prior to the next general district election, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall
hold the office until the next general district election that is scheduled 130 or more
days after the date the district board is notified of the vacancy, and thereafter until
the person who is elected at that election to fill the vacancy has been qualified. The
person elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired balance of the
term of office.

(4) If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office, but less than 130 days
prior to the next general district election, or if the vacancy occurs in the second half
of a term of office, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall fill the balance of
the unexpired term of office.

(5) The election called pursuant to this subdivision shall be held on the next
established election date provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1000) of

April 13, 2022 - Page 52 of 79ttachment - GOV § 1780



Division 1 of the Elections Code that is held 130 or more days after the date the city
council or board of supervisors calls the election.

(Amended by Stats. 2007, Ch. 343, Sec. 4. Effective January 1, 2008.)

April 13, 2022 - Page 53 of 79ttachment - GOV § 1780



HOW TO FILL A
VACANCY

COUNTY OFFICES
SPECIAL DISTRICT BOARDS
SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARDS
JUDICIAL OFFICES
FEDERAL & STATE OFFICES
CENTRAL COMMITTEES/COUNTY COUNCILS

2017
County of San Luis Obispo
TOMMY GONG, County Clerk-Recorder
ELECTIONS DIVISION
1055 Monterey St., Suite D 120
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408
805-781-5228

This guide has been prepared to assist staff and the public with general information on filling
vacancies in local offices. It is for general information only and does not have the force and
effect of law, regulation or rule. In case of conflict, the law, regulations or rule will apply. This
manual is made available with the understanding that the County Clerk-Recorder’s Office staff are
not rendering legal advice and cannot make a legal determination for you.

April 13, 2022 - Iiage 54 of 79 Attachment - Manual




TABLE OF CONTENTS

VACANCIES - DEFINITION

VACANCIES IN COUNTY OFFICES

Terms of County Offices

VACANCIES ON SPECIAL DISTRICT BOARDS

Action Required by the Governing Board

Appointments to Fill Vacancies

Elections to Fill Vacancies

If the District Board Fails to Act

If the District Board Lacks a Quorum to Act Within 60 Days
If the Board of Supervisors Fails to Act

Term of Office

Vacancy on Harbor Commission

VACANCIES ON SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARDS

Action Required by the Governing Board
Election Ordered

Provisional Appointment

Public Notice

Contents of Public Notice

Petition Calling for a Special Election
Petition Requirements

Signature Requirements

Who Can Sign Petition

Petition Circulator

Filing the Petition

Term of Office

FEDERAL, STATE & JUDICIAL OFFICES

President of the United States
United States Senator
Congressional & Legislative Offices
Governor=s Proclamation
Vacancies Occurring After the Close of Nominations
Time to Call Election

Nominations

Absentee Ballot Requests

Ballot Layout

General Run-Off Ballot

Order of Contest on Ballot

Vacancies in Congressional Offices Caused by Catastrophe
Governor=s Proclamation
Time to Call Election

Nominations
April 13, 2022 - Iﬁage 55 of 79

ArhAhrAPAPROOW w

coN~N~NOOOOOOOOTOTI OO (3]

©
]

-

w

0 O

9

10

10

10

10

10 - 11
11

11 -12

11
12

Attachment - Manual

11



Absentee Ballot Requests

Governor

Other State Constitutional Offices
Supreme and Appellate Court Justices
Superior Court Judges

COUNTY CENTRAL COMMITTEES/COUNTY COUNCILS

NOTICE OF VACANCY
Sample Form

APPLICATION-APPOINTMENT TO A SPECIAL DIST. VACANCY
Sample Form

PUBLIC NOTICE OF VACANCY
& PROVISIONAL APPOINTMENT Sample Form

PETITION FOR SPECIAL ELECTION
Sample Format

April 13, 2022 - Page 56 of 79
111

12
12
12
13
13
14

15

17

18

Attachment - Manual

16



VACANCIES - DEFINITION (GC §1770)

An office becomes vacant on the happening of any of the following events before the
expiration of the term:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

The death of the incumbent.

The incumbent is physically or mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness or
accident and that there is reasonable cause to believe that the incumbent will not
be able to perform the duties of the office for the remainder of his/her term.
Resignation.

Removal from office.

Ceasing to be an inhabitant of the state or local jurisdiction.

Absence from the state without the permission required by law beyond the period
allowed by law.

Ceasing to discharge the duties of the office for the period of three consecutive
months, except when prevented by sickness, or when absent from the state with
permission.

Conviction of a felony or of any offense involving a violation of the official duties.
Refusal or neglect to file the required oath or bond within the time prescribed.

The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void the election or appointment.

Making of an order vacating the office or declaring the office vacant when the officer
fails to furnish an additional or supplemental bond.

Commitment to a hospital or sanitarium by a court of competent jurisdiction as a
drug addict, dipsomaniac, inebriate, or stimulant addict; but in that event the office
shall not be vacant until the order of commitment has become final.

SCHOOL DISTRICT VACANCIES
Education Code 5090

Vacancies on school district governing boards or community college district boards are
caused by any of the events specified in Section 1770 of the Government Code, or by a
failure to elect.

April 13, 2022 - Iiage 57 of 79 Attachment - Manual



VACANCIES IN COUNTY OFFICES (GC §25060, 25061, 25062)

Member, Board of Supervisors (General Law)

Whenever a vacancy occurs in any Board of Supervisors, the Governor shall fill the
vacancy. The appointee shall hold office until the election and qualification of his
Successor.

The election of a supervisor to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term shall be held at the
next general election, unless the term expires on the first Monday after January 1st
succeeding the election.

When a vacancy occurs from the failure of the person elected to file his oath or bond as
provided by law, and the person elected is appointed to fill the vacancy, he shall hold
office for the unexpired term.

County Offices (GC §25304, 25304.5)

Assessor

Auditor-Controller

District Attorney

County Clerk-Recorder

Sheriff-Coroner

Treasure-Tax Collector-Public Administrator

The Board of Supervisors shall fill a vacancy by appointment. The appointee shall hold
office for the unexpired term or until the first Monday after January 1st succeeding the next
general election.

If on the first Monday after January 1st following a general election the person elected to
an elective county office has resigned or died, the Board of Supervisors shall provide that
the office which was made vacant shall be filled at the next regularly scheduled election.
The Board of Supervisors may appoint a person to temporarily carry out the duties of the
office to be filled by such an election and that person shall serve until the results of the
election are declared.

The person elected shall serve for the remainder of the term that began on the first
Monday after January 1st immediately preceding the election.

Terms of County Offices (EC §1300)

County offices are up for election every four years at the Gubernatorial Primary Election.
In the event that county officers are not elected pursuant to Elections Code § 8140 and
8141, this election shall be deemed a primary election and a county general election shall
be held with the statewide general election to select county officers.

April 13, 2022 - Eage 58 of 79 Attachment - Manual



VACANCIES ON SPECIAL DISTRICT BOARDS (GC §1780)

Action Required by the Governing Board

The district shall notify the county elections official of the vacancy no later than 15 days
following either the date on which the district board is notified of the vacancy or the effective
date of the vacancy, whichever is later.

The remaining district board members have 60 days immediately subsequent to either the
date on which the district board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy,
whichever is later, to either fill the vacancy

1. By appointment, or
2. By calling a special election

Appointments to Fill Vacancies

If the Board decides to appoint someone to fill the vacancy, the board first must post a notice
of the vacancy in three or more conspicuous places in the district at least 15 days before the
appointment is made. (Sample Notice for posting & Sample Application on Pages 15 & 16)

The Board must notify the county elections official of the appointment no later than 15
days after the appointment is made.

The person appointed shall hold office until the next general district election that is scheduled
130 or more days after the date the district board is notified of the vacancy, and thereafter
until the person elected at that election to fill the vacancy has been qualified. The person
elected to fill the vacancy shall fill the balance of the unexpired term. If the term of office is
due to expire following the next general district election and that election is scheduled 130 or
more days after the date the county elections official is notified of the vacancy, the person
appointed to the vacancy shall fill the balance of the unexpired term of his or her predecessor.

Elections to Fill Vacancies

In lieu of making an appointment, the remaining members of the board may within 60 days of
the date the district board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy,
whichever is later, call an election to fill the vacancy.

The election shall be held on the next established election date thatis 130 or more days after
the date the district board calls the election.

An established election date as defined by Elections Code §1000 is:

The second Tuesday of April in each even-numbered year.

The first Tuesday after the first Monday in March of each odd-numbered year.
The first Tuesday in March in each even-numbered year.

The first Tuesday after the first Monday in June of each odd-numbered year.
The first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each year.

April 13, 2022 - Igage 59 of 79 Attachment - Manual



If the District Board Fails to Act

If the vacancy is not filled by the district board by either making an appointment or calling a
special election within 60 days of the date the district board is notified of the vacancy or the
effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later, the following shall occur:

Within the next 30 days, the Board of Supervisors of the county representing the larger
portion of the district area in which the election to fill the vacancy will be held, may fill
the vacancy by appointment or may order the district to call an election to fill the
vacancy. The election shall be held on the next established election date thatis 130 or
more days after the date the Board of Supervisors orders the election.

If the District Board Lacks a Quorum to Act Within 60 Days

If the number of remaining members of the district board falls below a quorum, at the request
of the district secretary, or a remaining board member, the Board of Supervisors may waive
the 60-day period during which time the district board is allowed to take action, but can’t
because there is no quorum, and move directly to the 30-day period where the Board of
Supervisors may take action.

The Board of Supervisors may either appoint immediately or call an election to fill the
vacancy. The election shall be held on the next established election date that is 130 or more
days after the date the Board of Supervisors calls the election. The Board of Supervisors
shall only fill enough vacancies to provide the district board with a quorum.

If the Board of Supervisors Fails to Act

If within 90 days of the date the district board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of
the vacancy, whichever is later, no action has been taken by any governing body to fill the
vacancy, the district board must call an election to fill the vacancy. The election shall be held
on the next established election date that is 130 or more days after the district board calls the
election.

Term of Office

District board members take office on the first Friday in December following the election in
November and shall serve for four years. A person appointed to fill a vacancy shall hold
office only until the next general district election that is scheduled 130 or more days after the
date the county elections official is notified of the vacancy and thereafter until the person
elected at that election has been qualified, but persons elected to fill a vacancy shall hold
office for the remainder of the unexpired term.

Vacancy on Harbor Commission:

Government Code Section 1780 supersedes Harbors & Navigation Code Section 6054.3, so
appointment will be made pursuant to Section 1780.

April 13, 2022 - zage 60 of 79 Attachment - Manual



VACANCIES ON SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARDS (ED
Code §5017, 5090-5092)

A vacancy resulting from resignation occurs when the written resignation is filed with the
County Superintendent of Schools having jurisdiction over the district. A vacancy also exists if
no person filed candidate papers during the nomination period for an office. A deferred
effective date not to exceed 60 days may be specified by the incumbent, in which case the
resignation becomes effective on that date. Upon being filed with the County Superintendent
of Schools, the written resignation is irrevocable.

Action Required By the Governing Board

Whenever a vacancy occurs, the school district or community college district governing board
has one of two options available to it. Either of these two options must be exercised within 60
days of the date a vacancy occurs or the date a deferred resignation is filed with the County
Superintendent of Schools.

1. Immediately call an election to fill the vacancy; or
2. Make a provisional appointment pursuant to §5091 of the Education Code.

In the event that the governing board fails to make a provisional appointment or order an
election within the prescribed 60-day period as required by this section, the County
Superintendent of Schools shall call an election to fill the vacancy.

As a matter or practice, a copy of the resignation, notices, resolutions, etc. should be sent to
the Elections Division of the County Clerk-Recorder’s Office as soon as possible.

Election Ordered

When an election is ordered, it shall be held on the next regular election date not less than
130 days after the Order of Election. Vacancy elections shall be conducted in as nearly the
same manner as practicable as other governing board member elections.

Provisional Appointment

If the Governing Board makes a provisional appointment, the appointee is immediately
conferred with all powers and duties of a governing board member.

Public Notice

Within 10 days of making a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy the school district
governing board must:

1. Post a notice described below (Sample on Page 17) in at least three public places in
the district; and
2. Publish the notice at least once in a newspaper of general circulation published within

the district (GC §6061). If there is no newspaper of general circulation published in the
district, the notice need not be published.

April 13, 2022 - Igage 61 of 79 Attachment - Manual



Contents of Public Notice

The notice to be posted and published must state the following:

1. The fact of the vacancy or resignation and the date of the occurrence of the vacancy or
the date of the filing of, and the effective date of, the resignation.

2. The full name of the provisional appointee and the date of his/her appointment.

3. A statement that unless a petition calling for a special election, containing a sufficient
number of signatures, is filed in the office of the County Superintendent of Schools
within 30 days of the date of the provisional appointment, it shall become an effective
appointment.

Petition Calling for a Special Election

If a provisional appointment is made within the 60-day period, the registered voters of the
district may, within 30 days from the date of the appointment, petition for the conduct of a
special election to fill the vacancy. (Sample on Page 18)

Petition Requirements

Whenever a petition calling for a special election is circulated, the petition shall meet all of the
following requirements:

1. The petition shall contain the estimate of the elections official of the cost of conducting
the special election.
2. The name and residence address of at least one, but not more than five proponents of

the petition shall appear on the petition, each of which proponents shall be registered
voters of the district.
3. None of the text or other language of the petition shall appear in less than six-point
type.
4.  The petition shall be prepared and circulated in conformity with Sections 100 and 104
of the Elections Code.

Signature Requirements

A petition shall be deemed to bear a sufficient number of signatures if signed by whichever
means below results in the greater number of registered voters:

1 percent of the number of registered voters of the district at the time of the last regular
election for governing board members, or 25 registered voters.

However, in districts with registered voters of less than 2,000 persons, a petition shall be
deemed to bear a sufficient number of signatures if signed by at least 5 percent of the number
of registered voters of the district at the time of the last regular election for governing board
members.

April 13, 2022 - I%age 62 of 79 Attachment - Manual



Who Can Sign Petition

Only a person who is an eligible registered voter at the time of signing the petition is entitled to
sign it. Each signer shall at the time of signing the petition personally affix his or her
signature, printed name, and place of residence, giving number and street. A space at least
one inch wide shall be left blank after each name for the use of the elections official in
verifying the petition. The part of a petition for the voters’ signatures, printed names, and
residence addresses shall be numbered consecutively commencing with the number one and
continuing through the number of signature spaces allotted to each section.

Petition Circulator

Each section of the petition shall have attached to it a declaration signed by the circulator of
the petition, setting forth, in the circulator’'s own hand, the following:

The printed name of the circulator.

The residence address of the circulator, giving number and street.

The dates between which all the signatures to the petition were obtained.

That the circulator circulated the section of petition and witnessed the appended
signatures being written.

That according to the best information and belief of the circulator, each signature is
the genuine signature of the person whose name it purports to be.

rObM=

o

The circulator shall certify to the content of the declaration as to its truth and correctness,
under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, with the signature of his or
her name in full. The circulator shall state the date and the place of execution on the
declaration immediately preceding his or her signature.

Filing the Petition

The petition must be filed with the County Superintendent of Schools within the 30-day period
following the making of the provisional appointment.

The County Superintendent of Schools then has 30 calendar days to verify the signatures. As
a matter of practice, the Superintendent forwards the petitions to the County Clerk-Recorder’s
Office, Elections Division for signature verification. A certificate of the results of the petition
checking will be forwarded to the County Superintendent of Schools.

If the petition is determined to be legally sufficient by the County Superintendent of Schools,
the provisional appointment is terminated, and the County Superintendent of Schools shall
call a special election to be conducted no later than the 120th day after the determination.
However, if a regular election date, as defined in Section 1000 of the Elections Code, occurs
between the 120th day and the 150th day following the determination, the County
Superintendent of Schools may call the special election to be conducted on the regular
election date.

If any of the legal requirements are not met as to any petition calling for a special election, the
County Superintendent of Schools shall not verify the signatures, nor shall any further action
be taken with respect to the petition.

No person shall permit the list of names on petitions prescribed by this section to be used for

any purpose other than qualification of the petition for the purpose of holding an election
April 13, 2022 - %age 63 of 79 Attachment - Manual



pursuant to this section.
The petition filed with the County Superintendent of Schools is not a public record and may

not be open to public inspection. The proponents, however, may have access to the petition if
it found to be insufficient. (GC §6253.5)

FEDERAL, STATE & JUDICIAL OFFICES (ED Code 5017)

Term of Office

A person appointed to fill a vacancy shall hold office only until the next regularly scheduled
election for district governing board members, whereupon an election shall be held to fill the
vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term.

A person elected at an election to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the remainder of the
term.

A person elected at a regular biennial governing board member election shall hold office for a
term of four years commencing on the first Friday in December following the election.

April 13, 2022 - I§age 64 of 79 Attachment - Manual



President of the United States (US Const, Amendment XXV)

In case of the removal of the President from office or of his death or resignation, the Vice
President shall become president.

Whenever there is a vacancy in the office of the Vice President, the President shall nominate

a Vice President who shall take office upon confirmation by a majority vote of both Houses of
Congress.

United States Senator (EC §10720)

If a vacancy occurs in the representation of this state in the Senate of the United States, the
Governor may appoint and commission an elector of this state who possesses the
qualifications for the office to fill the vacancy until his or her successor is elected and qualifies
and is admitted to his or her seat by the united States Senate. However, whenever a vacancy
occurs within a term fixed by law to expire on the third day of January following the next
general election, the person so appointed shall hold office for the remainder of the unexpired
term unless the vacancy is filled at a special election help prior to the general election, in
which case the person elected at the special election shall hold office for the remainder of the
unexpired term. An election to fill a vacancy in the term of a united States Senator shall be
held at the general election next succeeding the occurrence of the vacancy or at any special
election.

Congressional and Legislative Offices (EC §10700)

Governor’s Proclamation:

The Governor shall call all statewide special elections by issuing a proclamation pursuant to
Elections Code Section 12000. In the case of a vacancy in a congressional or legislative
office the Governor shall issue a proclamation, within 14 calendar days of the occurrence of
the vacancy, calling a special election to fill the vacancy. See Elections Code Section 10730
for the exception to the process of calling a special election. A copy of the proclamation shall
be sent to the Board of Supervisors of each affected county.

Vacancies Occurring After the Close of Nominations: (EC §10701)

When a vacancy occurs in a congressional office after the close of the nomination period in
the final year of the term of office, the Governor may decline to issue an election proclamation
at his discretion.

When a vacancy occurs in a legislative office after the close of the nomination period in the
final year of the term of office, no special election shall be held.

April 13, 2022 - Bage 65 of 79 Attachment - Manual



Time to Call Election: (EC §10703, 10704)

A special election to fill a vacancy in the office of Representative in Congress, State Senator,
or Member of Assembly shall be conducted on a Tuesday at least 126 days, but not more
than 140 days, following the issuance of an election proclamation by the Governor pursuant to
Section 1773 of the Government Code, except that any special election may be conducted
within 180 days following the proclamation in order that the election or the primary election
may be consolidated with the next regularly scheduled statewide election or local election
occurring wholly or partially within the same territory in which the vacancy exists, provided that
the voters eligible to vote in the local election comprise at least 50 percent of all the voters
eligible to vote on the vacancy.

In no event may a special election or a primary election be conducted on the day after a state
holiday. See §10703 for exceptions to these provisions.

A special primary election shall be held in the district in which the vacancy occurred on the
ninth Tuesday or, if the ninth Tuesday is the day of or the day following a state holiday, the
tenth Tuesday preceding the day of the special general election at which the vacancy is to be
filled.

Nominations: (EC §10704)

Candidates at the primary election shall be nominated in the same manner as a regular
election, except that nomination papers shall not be circulated more than 73 days before the
primary election, shall be left with the county elections official for examination not less than 53
days before the primary election, and shall be filed with the Secretary of State not less than 53
days before the primary election.

Absentee Ballot Requests: (EC §10704)

Applications for absent voter ballots may be submitted not more than 25 days before the
primary election. However, if the special vacancy election is consolidated with a statewide
election, the absentee period will begin on the 29th day before the election as usual.
Applications received by the elections official prior to the 25th day shall not be returned to the
sender, but shall be held by the elections official and processed following the 25th day prior to
the election.

Ballot Layout: (EC §10705)

All candidates shall be listed on one ballot. If any candidate receives a majority of all votes
cast, he or she shall be declared elected, and no special general election shall be held. Or, if
only one candidate qualifies to have his or her name printed on the special general election
ballot, that candidate shall be declared elected, and no special general election shall be held,
even if that candidate received less than a majority of the votes cast.

General Run-Off Ballot: (EC §10706, 8605)

If no candidate receives a majority of votes cast, the name of that candidate of each qualified
political party who receives the most votes cast for all candidates of that party shall be placed
on the special general election ballot as the candidate of that party.

April 13, 2022 -f@ge 66 of 79 Attachment - Manual



The name of a write-in candidate shall not be placed on the ballot unless he or she receives
votes in the primary election equal in number to 1% of all votes cast for the office at the last
preceding general election at which the office was filled. In the case of an office that has not
appeared on the ballot since its creation, the requisite number of votes shall equal 1% of the
number of all votes cast for the office that had the least number of votes in the most recent
general election in the jurisdiction in which the write-in candidate is seeking office.

In addition to the candidates referred to above, each candidate who has qualified for the ballot
by reason of the independent nomination procedure in Elections Code §8300, et. al, shall be
placed on the special general election ballot as an independent candidate. However, if two or
more of these candidates are recorded on their affidavits of registration as being affiliated with
the same political body, only the candidate with the greatest number of votes shall be placed
on the special general election ballot.

Order of Contest on Ballot: (EC §10707)

Whenever a special general election, or a special primary election, to fill a vacancy in
Congress or the State Legislature is consolidated with a statewide election, the candidates to
fill the vacancy shall appear on the consolidated ballotimmediately preceding the candidates
for that same seat in Congress or the seat in the legislature that most nearly encompasses the
same geographical area at the statewide election, or the elections official at his or her option
may print a separate and distinct ballot.

Vacancies in Congressional Offices Caused by Catastrophe: (EC §10730)

The procedures provided by Chapter |, commencing with Section 10700, shall apply to special
elections to the extent those provisions are not inconsistent with this chapter.

Governor’s Proclamation: (EC §10732)

Within seven calendar days of a catastrophe, the Governor shall issue a proclamation calling
a special election pursuant to Section 10703.

Time to Call Election: (EC §10733)

In the event of a catastrophe, a special election to fill a vacancy in the office of Representative
in Congress shall be conducted on a Tuesday not more than 49 days following the
announcement of the vacancy by the Speaker of the United States House of
Representatives. A special election may be conducted within 75 days following the
proclamation in order that the special election may be consolidated with the next
regularly scheduled statewide election or local election occurring wholly or partially within
the same territory in which the vacancy exists, provided that the voters eligible to vote in
the local election comprise at least 50 percent of all the voters eligible to vote on the
vacancy.

April 13, 2022 -ffge 67 of 79 Attachment - Manual



Nominations: (EC §10734a)

No special primary election shall be held. Candidates at the special general election shall be
nominated in the manner set forth in Chapter 1, commencing with Section 8000, or Part 1 of
Division 8, except that nomination papers shall not be circulated more than 46 days before the
special general election, shall be left with the county elections official for examination not less
than 39 days before the special general election, and shall be filed with the Secretary of State
not less than 35 days before the special general election.

Absentee Ballot Requests: (EC §10734b)

Notwithstanding Section 3001, applications for absent voter ballots may be submitted not
more than 30 days before the special general election, except that Section 3001 shall apply if
the special general election is consolidated with a statewide election. Applications received
by the elections official prior to the 30th day shall not be returned to the sender, but shall be
held and processed following the 30th day prior to the election in the same manner as if
received at that time.

Governor (CA Const., Article V, Section 10)

The Lieutenant Governor shall become Governor when a vacancy occurs in the office of
Governor.

The Lieutenant Governor shall act as Governor during the impeachment, absence from the

State, or other temporary disability of the Governor or of a Governor-elect who fails to take
office.

Other State Constitutional Offices (CA Const., Article V, Section 5)

Whenever there is a vacancy in the office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the
Lieutenant Governor, Secretary of State, Controller, Treasurer, or Attorney General, or on the
State Board of Equalization, the Governor shall nominate a person to fill the vacancy who
shall take office upon confirmation by a majority of the membership of the Senate and a
majority of the membership of the Assembly and who shall hold office for the balance of the
unexpired term.

In the event the nominee is neither confirmed nor refused confirmation by both the Senate
and the Assembly within 90 days of the submission of the nomination, the nominee shall take
office as if he or she had been confirmed by a majority of the Senate and Assembly; provided,
that if such 90-day period ends during a recess of the Legislature, the period shall be
extended until the sixth day following the day on which the Legislature reconvenes.

Proposition 103, an initiative statute passed by voters in November 1988, established the

office of the State Insurance Commissioner. While the Insurance Code §12900 provides how
the person is elected, there are no provisions for filling a vacancy in this office.

April 13, 2022 -ffge 68 of 79 Attachment - Manual



Supreme and Appellate Court Justices (CA Const., Article VI, Section 16d)

Within 30 days before August 16 preceding the expiration of the judge’s term, a judge of the
Supreme Court or a court of appeal may file a declaration of candidacy to succeed to the
office presently held by the judge. If the declaration is not filed, the Governor before
September 16 shall nominate a candidate. Atthe next general election, only the candidate so
declared or nominated may appear on the ballot, which shall present the question whether the
candidate shall be elected. The candidate shall be elected upon receiving a majority of the
votes on the question. A candidate not elected may not be appointed to that court but later
may be nominated and elected.

The Governor shall fill vacancies in the Supreme and Appellate courts by appointment. An
appointee holds office until the Monday after January 1 following the first general election at
which the appointee had the right to become a candidate or until an elected judge qualifies. A
nomination or appointment by the governor is effective when confirmed by the commission on
Judicial Appointments.

Electors of a county, by majority of those voting and in a manner the Legislature shall provide,
may make this system of selection applicable to judges of superior courts.

Superior Court Judge (CA Const., Article VI, Section 16c¢)

Terms of judges of superior courts are 6 years beginning the Monday after January 1 following
their election. A vacancy shall be filled by election to a full term at the next general election
after the second January 1 following the vacancy, but the Governor shall appoint a person to
fill the vacancy temporarily until the elected judge’s term begins.

April 13, 2022 -ffge 69 of 79 Attachment - Manual



COUNTY CENTRAL COMMITTEES/COUNTY COUNCILS

Democratic Party/Republican Party/American Independent Party (EC §7212-7215,
7410-713, 7657-7658)

In the event of the appointment or election to a committee of an ineligible person, or whenever
any member of the committee dies, resigns or becomes incapacitated to act, or removes from
the jurisdiction of the committee, or ceases to be a member of this party, a vacancy exists
which shall be filled by appointment by the committee in which the ineligibility or vacancy
occurs. A committee may remove any member, other than an ex-officio member if:

1. The member misses more than three consecutive regularly called meetings, unless
his or her absence is caused by illness or temporary absence from the county on
the date of the meeting; or

2. The member, during his or her term of membership affiliates with, or registers as a
member of another party, who publicly advocates that the voters should not vote for
the nominee of this party for any office, or who gives support or avows a preference
for a candidate of another party or candidate who is opposed to a candidate
nominated by this party.

The removal of residence by an elected or appointed member of a committee from the
Assembly district or supervisorial district from which he or she has been elected or appointed
a member of that committee shall constitute his or her automatic resignation from the
committee.

Libertarian Party/Peace and Freedom Party/Green Party (EC §7850, 7853-7855)

For election purposes, the Libertarian, Natural Law and Green parties opted to utilize the
provisions in the Elections Code pertaining to the Peace and Freedom Party. The Peace and
Freedom Party was disqualified in 1998 and the Reform Party was disqualified after the
November, 2002, General Election. A committee/council may remove any member if:

1. The member misses more than three consecutive regularly called meetings, unless
his or her absence is caused by illness or temporary absence from the county on
the date of the meeting; or

2. The member, during his or her term of membership affiliates with, or registers as a
member of another party, who publicly advocates that the voters should not vote for
the nominee of this party for any office, or who gives support or avows a preference
for a candidate of another party or candidate who is opposed to a candidate
nominated by this party.

The removal of residence by an elected or appointed member of a committee from the
Assembly district or supervisorial district from which he or she has been elected or appointed
a member of that committee shall constitute his or her automatic resignation from the
committee.

Whenever new appointments are made to county central committees or county councils,
committees obtain Certificates of Appointment and Oaths of Office from the Elections
Department. Signed originals are then filed with the Elections Department

April 13, 2022 -fjge 70 of 79 Attachment - Manual




NOTICE OF VACANCY

(Sample Notice For Posting)

Interested persons are hereby notified that pursuant to Government Code §1780 there is a
vacancy on the

Board of Directors

The Position to be filled is for a term expiring

Eliminate this next sentence if the seat is up for a full term in the next election.

The seat will go to election in November 20 for the final two years of the term.

Applications are available at the

District Office, located at

Phone:

Website:

Applications Due by:

This District Board has 60 days from the date the Board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date
of the vacancy, whichever is later, to fill the vacancy by appointment or call a special election. Gov.
Code §1780

Pursuant to Government Code §1780, this notice will be posted for 15 days in 3 or more conspicuous
places in the district from to

April 13, 2022 -fsage 71 0of 79 Attachment - Manual



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO A
SPECIAL DISTRICT VACANCY

(Sample Application to be used at District’s option)
If you are interested in serving on a special district Board of Directors, please complete

This application and return it to:

Date Due:

You will be advised by the district board if your appointment is confirmed. Thank you for your
interest.

DISTRICT: DATE:

NAME: AGE (optional)

RESIDENCE ADDRESS:

MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE (Daytime): (Evening):

E-MAIL:

Statement of Qualifications: (Briefly describe you qualifications and why you are interested
in serving on the Board of Directors.)

Certification:

| certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct. | authorize the
verification of the information in this application.

Signature: Date:

April 13, 2022 -fgge 72 of 79 Attachment - Manual



PUBLIC NOTICE OF VACANCY AND
PROVISIONAL APPOINTMENT

(Sample Notice For Posting & Publishing)

1. A vacancy in the membership of the Governing Board on the
(Name of District) District has

occurred by reason of: _(resignation or other reason) of _(name of trustee)

effective (date)

2. The resignation was filed in the office of the San Luis Obispo County Superintendent of

Schools on _(date) .
3. (Name of appointee) was appointed by the Governing Board on _(date)  tofill

The above named vacancy.

4. To challenge the appointment and order a special election, the following must be filed in
the office of the San Luis Obispo County Superintendent of Schools within 30 days from the
date of the provisional appointment:

A. File a petition calling for a special election containing the valid signatures of at
least 1 2 percent of the number of registered voters of the district at the time of
the last regular election for governing board members held within the (name of
district), or 25 registered voters of the district, whichever is greater, or

B. In districts with less than 2,000 registered voters, a petition shall be deemed to
bear a sufficient number of signatures if signed by at least 5 percent of the
number of registered voters of the district at the time of the last regular election
of governing board members.

If a petition is not filed within the 30 day time frame, the provisional appointment shall become
an effective appointment.

Governing Board of the (name of district)

Governing Board Secretary/Clerk

Date:

(Sample Petition Format)

April 13, 2022 -f7age 73 of 79 Attachment - Manual



PETITION FOR SPECIAL ELECTION
TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
(NAME OF DISTRICT)
IN SAN LUIS OBISPO County of San Luis Obispo

The proponents of this petition as named herewith are registered voters of the aforementioned school
district.

(Name & Residence Address of at least one, but not more than five proponents)

Pursuant to Education Code §5091, we the undersigned, who are registered voters of the (name of
district) of San Luis Obispo County, California, hereby petition the County Superintendent of
Schools to call a special election for the purpose of filling the vacancy on the governing board of
said school district.

If an election is called pursuant to this petition, the provisional appointment heretofore made by the
governing board of said school district to fill the vacancy shall be terminated.

The County Elections Official has estimated the cost of conducting the special election called pursuant

to this petition to be approximately $ (insert estimated cost here)

1. 1” Space
Print Name Residence Address Only
Sign Name City Zip

2. 1” Space
Print Name Residence Address Only
Sign Name City Zip

3. 1” Space
Print Name Residence Address Only
Sign Name City Zip

DECLARATION OF PERSON CIRCULATING SECTION OF PETITION FOR SPECIAL ELECTION
(Set forth in circulator’s own hand)

I, declare:
(Print Name)

1. My residence address is , in San Luis Obispo County, California,
and | am a registered voter in the (name of school district) , in San Luis Obispo
County;

2. | personally circulated the petition section for signing.

3. | witnessed each of the appended signatures being written on the petition and to my best
information and belief, each signature is the genuine signature of the person whose name it
purports to be: and

4 The appended signatures were obtained between the dates of and

inclusive.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct.
Executed on (date) at (place of signing)

(complete signature of petition circulator)

It is recommended that you leave a 1” margin at the top, & a 2 “ margin on the left, right & bottom.
April 13, 2022 -fgge 74 of 79 Attachment - Manual



Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730 FAX (805) 481-6836

Date: April 13,2022
To: Board of Directors
From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager

Subject:  Agenda Item #8(c): Consideration to adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference
Meetings

Recommendation

It is recommended that your Board consider adopting a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote
Teleconference Meetings

Discussion

The District continues to carefully monitor the COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic and follow the direction
of the County Public Health Department in coordination with other local agencies. The Virtual Public Meeting
Protocols were adopted by the Board on April 8, 2020, and revised on July 8, 2020, with the Declaration to alter
the meeting location and establish virtual public meeting protocols because of the coronavirus pandemic.

AB 361 was signed by the Governor on September 16, 2021, which allows public agencies to continue to
meet remotely during the state of emergency. The Board has adopted five Resolutions authorizing remote
teleconference meetings since the month of October. Attached is a Resolution to re-authorize remote
teleconference meetings for the period of April 27" to May 26%™. Adoption of the Resolution will allow the
District to continue to hold remote meetings and help protect the health of the public, Board members, and
staff.

Staff intends to continue with remote public meetings for as long as legally permissible. Once in-person
meetings resume, the District will continue to follow County Public Health Department recommendations and
OSHA regulations. The Brown Act does allow for continued use of videoconference locations under normal
circumstances, however, notice of public meetings must be posted at each location and the public must be able
to attend at each location.

Other Agency Involvement
None
Other Financial Considerations

None

Agenda Item 8(c) April 13, 2022 - Page 75 of 79



Oceano Community Services District

Board of Directors Meeting

Results

The District’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic contributes to a safe, healthy, livable, and well-
governed community.

Attachments:

®  Resolution

Agenda Item 8(c) April 13, 2022 - Page 76 of 79



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, RE-
RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE
GOVENOR ISSUED ON MARCH 4, 2020 AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 27TH TO MAY 26TH PURSUANT TO BROWN
ACT PROVISIONS.

WHEREAS, the Oceano Community Services District is committed to preserving and
nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, all meetings of Oceano Community Services District are open and public, as
required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 — 54963), so that any member of the
public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct their business;
and

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the
existence of certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or
of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as
described in Government Code section 8558; and

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended
measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution 2021-10 on
September 22, 2021 finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative bodies of Oceano
Community Services District to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section

54953(e), the Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that
exists in the District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and

Agenda Item 8(c) April 13, 2022 - Page 77 of 79 Attachment - Resolution



WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, the State of Emergency
declared by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 due to COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that COVID-19 has caused, and will
continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the District that are likely to
be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires
to affirm a local emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the
Governor of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors
does hereby find that the legislative bodies of the Oceano Community Services District shall
continue to conduct their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of
Government Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such
legislative bodies shall continue to comply with the requirements to provide the public with access
to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted virtual meeting protocols on July 8, 2020
which include options for public participation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OCEANO COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.

2. Section 2._Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors
hereby considers the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and
proclaims that a local emergency persists throughout the District, and COVID-19
has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons
within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel,
equipment, and facilities of the District.

3. Section 3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The
Board hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of
State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020.

4. Section 4._Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager, staff and
legislative bodies of Oceano Community Services District are hereby authorized
and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this
Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable
provisions of the Brown Act.

Agenda Item 8(c) April 13, 2022 - Page 78 of 79 Attachment - Resolution



5. Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect on April
27" and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) May 26", or such time the Board
of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code
section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of
Oceano Community Services District may continue to teleconference without
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Oceano Community Services District
on __ by the following roll call votes:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

President of the Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary for the Board of Directors

Agenda Item 8(c) April 13, 2022 - Page 79 of 79 Attachment - Resolution



	04132022 Regular Meeting Agenda
	04132022 Agenda Item 7A - 03232022 Minutes
	04132022 Minutes - DRAFT
	Attachment Final OEDC

	04132022 Agenda Item 7B - Cash Disbursements
	04132022 Draft Staff Report
	04132022 AP  59474-59504   CR Check Reconciliation Register - 1084
	04132022 REFUNDS  59505-59507   CR Check Reconciliation Register - 1085
	PAYROLL SUMMARY 03 30 2022
	PAYROLL SUMMARY 03 31 2022
	04132022 BOD Replogle Stipend MAR2022--200
	04132022 BOD White Stipend MAR2022--250
	04132022 UTILITY  59508-59514        CR Check Reconciliation Register - 1092

	04132022 Agenda Item 7C - CDBG
	Draft Staff Report CDBG Letter of Support
	Attachment 1 DRAFT Letter of Support
	Attachment 2 Action-Plan_Draft-Recs_22

	04132022 Agenda Item 7D - Community Project
	Draft Staff Report Community Project Funding
	Congressman Carbajal_ FY23 Community Project Funding
	Attachment 2 DRAFT Letter of Support

	04132022 Agenda Item 8A - USDA
	Staff Report on USDA Financing
	Attachment 1 Bond_Counsel_Agreement--USDA Water Project_Draft_04-01-22
	Attachment 2 Oceano CSD CalMuni Agreement (Draft_2022_04_01)

	04132022 Agenda Item 8B - Board Vacancy
	Draft Staff Report Interim Appointment
	Attachment 1 GOV_61042.
	Attachment 2 GOV_1780
	Attachment Vacancy Manual
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	VACANCIES - DEFINITION (GC §1770)
	SCHOOL DISTRICT VACANCIES
	Terms of County Offices (EC §1300)

	VACANCIES ON SPECIAL DISTRICT BOARDS (GC §1780)
	Action Required by the Governing Board
	Appointments to Fill Vacancies
	Elections to Fill Vacancies
	If the District Board Fails to Act
	If the District Board Lacks a Quorum to Act Within 60 Days
	If the Board of Supervisors Fails to Act
	Term of Office
	Vacancy on Harbor Commission:

	VACANCIES ON SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARDS (ED Code §5017, 5090-5092)
	Action Required By the Governing Board
	Election Ordered
	Provisional Appointment
	Public Notice
	Contents of Public Notice
	Petition Calling for a Special Election
	Petition Requirements
	Signature Requirements
	Who Can Sign Petition
	Petition Circulator
	Filing the Petition
	FEDERAL, STATE & JUDICIAL OFFICES (ED Code 5017)
	Term of Office
	President of the United States (US Const, Amendment XXV)
	United States Senator (EC §10720)
	Congressional and Legislative Offices (EC §10700)
	Governor’s Proclamation:
	Vacancies Occurring After the Close of Nominations: (EC §10701)
	Time to Call Election: (EC §10703, 10704)
	Nominations: (EC §10704)
	Absentee Ballot Requests: (EC §10704)
	Ballot Layout: (EC §10705)
	General Run-Off Ballot: (EC §10706, 8605)
	Order of Contest on Ballot: (EC §10707)
	Vacancies in Congressional Offices Caused by Catastrophe: (EC §10730)
	Governor’s Proclamation: (EC §10732)
	Time to Call Election: (EC §10733)
	Nominations: (EC §10734a)
	Absentee Ballot Requests: (EC §10734b)
	Governor (CA Const., Article V, Section 10)
	Other State Constitutional Offices (CA Const., Article V, Section 5)
	Supreme and Appellate Court Justices (CA Const., Article VI, Section 16d)
	Superior Court Judge (CA Const., Article VI, Section 16c)

	COUNTY CENTRAL COMMITTEES/COUNTY COUNCILS



	04132022 Agenda Item 8C - Teleconference



